Meeting:
Date/Time:
Location:
Contact:
Email:

Health and Wellbeing Board
Thursday, 17 July 2014 at 2.00 pm
County Hall, Glenfield
Mrs. R. Palmer (Tel: 0116 305 6098)
rosemary.palmer@leics.gov.uk
Membership
Mr. E. F. White CC (Chairman)
Gillian Adams
John Adler
Cllr. J. Boyce
Dr Dave Briggs
Mick Connell
Lesley Hagger
Ch. Supt. Sally Healy
Mr. Dave Houseman MBE, CC
Dr Satheesh Kumar

Dr Mayur Lakhani
Dr Hamant Mistry
Rick Moore
Mr. I. D. Ould CC
Cllr. P. Posnett
Toby Sanders
Mike Sandys
Trish Thompson

AGENDA
Item

Report by

1.

Minutes of the meeting held on 8 May 2014.

2.

To advise of any other items which the
Chairman has decided to take as urgent
elsewhere on the agenda.

3.

Declarations of interest in respect of items on
the agenda.

4.

Position Statement by the Chairman.

(Pages 5 - 12)

Democratic Services ◦ Chief Executive’s Department ◦ Leicestershire County Council ◦ County Hall
Glenfield ◦ Leicestershire ◦ LE3 8RA ◦ Tel: 0116 232 3232 ◦ Email: democracy@leics.gov.uk
www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy

www.facebook.com/leicsdemocracy

www.leics.gov.uk/local_democracy

Strategy.
5.

Better Care Together 5 Year Health and
Social Care Strategy.

Better Care
Together

The report and appendices to this item are enclosed with the
agenda as a supplementary document pack for Health and
Wellbeing Board members. They can also be viewed on the County
Council’s website –
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1038&MId=3983&Ver=4

6.

Implementation of the Better Care Fund Plan

Director of Health
and Care
Integration

(Pages 13 - 32)

7.

Section 106 Update.

NHS England

(Pages 33 - 38)

8.

GP Practice Funding Update.

NHS England

This will be a verbal update.
9.

Communications Strategy

Chief Executive,
Leicestershire
County Council

(Pages 39 - 54)

10.

Refresh of the Joint Strategic Needs
Assessment.

Director of Public
Health

(Pages 55 - 58)

11.

Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment.

Director of Public
Health

(Pages 59 - 70)

12.

Community Strategy Consultation.

Chief Executive,
Leicestershire
County Council

(Pages 71 110)

13.

Young Carers: Delivery Action Plan - Progress
Since September 2013.

Director of
Children and
Family Services

(Pages 111 116)

Governance.
14.

Leadership Development Workshop Update.

Director of Health
and Care
Integration

This will be a verbal update.
Performance.
15.

Performance Assurance Framework
Development Update.

Chief Executive
and Greater East
Midlands
Commissioning
Support Unit

(Pages 117 136)

Quality.
16.

Our Progress Since The Francis Report.

University
Hospitals of
Leicester NHs
Trust and
Leicestershire
Partnership NHS
Trust

There will be a powerpoint presentation for this item.
17.

Quality Account for 2013/14.

University
Hospitals of
Leicester NHS
Trust

(Pages 137 218)

18.

12 Hours in A&E - Patient's Experiences of
Accident and Emergency

Healthwatch

(Pages 219 220)

Director of Adults
and Communities

(Pages 221 222)

Information Items.
19.

Care and Support Act Briefing Note on
Consultation Arrangements.

20.

Date of Next Meeting.
The next meeting of the Board will be held on Tuesday 16th September at 2.00pm.

21.

Any other items which the Chairman has
decided to take as urgent.

This page is intentionally left blank

5

Agenda Item 1

Minutes of a meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board held at County Hall, Glenfield on
Thursday, 8 May 2014.
PRESENT
Mr. E. F. White CC (in the Chair)
Adams
John Adler
Cllr. J. Boyce
Ch. Supt. Sally Healy
Mr. Dave Houseman MBE, CC
Dr Satheesh Kumar

Dr Mayur Lakhani
Dr Hamant Mistry
Rick Moore
Mr. I. D. Ould CC
Cllr. P. Posnett
Mike Sandys

Apologies
Mick Connell and Peter Huskinson
82.

Minutes.
The minutes of the meeting held on 1 April 2014 were taken as read, confirmed and
signed.

83.

Urgent Items.
There were no urgent items for consideration.

84.

Declarations of interest.
The Chairman invited members who wished to do so to declare any interest in respect of
items on the agenda for the meeting.

85.

Position Statement by the Chairman.
The Chairman presented a position statement on the following matters:•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Elective Care;
Better Care Fund;
Minor Injuries Consultation in East Leicestershire and Rutland;
Primary Care Commissioning;
Dementia: Prevalence Calculator and Dementia Friends Campaign;
BBC Research examines the availability of Mental Health Beds;
Long Term Conditions: Approaches for Tackling Co-morbidities;
Older People: Ageing Alone – the impact of loneliness on the health and wellbeing
of older people;
Call for Evidence: Commission on the Future of the Home Care Workforce;
Information Management and Technology: Care.data update from Tim Kelsey,
NHS England’s National Director for Patients and Information;

6
•
•
•

King’s Fund Publication: A new settlement for health and social care – interim
report;
Regional Events;
Regional Innovation Fund.

A copy of the position statement is filed with these minutes.
86.

Implementation of the Better Care Fund Plan.
The Board considered a report of the Director of Health and Care Integration which
provided an update on the implementation of the Better Care Fund. A copy of the report
marked ‘Agenda Item 5’ is filed with these minutes.
RESOLVED:
That the update on the implementation of the Better Care Fund Plan be noted.

87.

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland Mental Health and Wellbeing Strategic Group.
The Board considered a report of the Director of Public Health which provided an update
on the development of a mental health strategic group for Leicester, Leicestershire and
Rutland as a subgroup of the Better Care Together (BCT) Programme. A copy of the
report marked ‘Agenda Item 6’ is filed with these minutes.
It was noted that the priorities of the mental health strategic group would include acute
crisis services, adult mental health promotion and young people.
RESOLVED:
That the progress on the establishment of the Mental Health and Wellbeing Strategic
Group for Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland be noted.

88.

Update on the Development of the Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland Five Year
Strategy.
The Board received an oral update from the Interim Programme Director for Better Care
Together on the development of the Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland Five Year
Health and Social Care Strategy. The development of the Strategy was being supported
by Ernst and Young in line with the Government requirement that ‘challenged’ health
economies were supported by external consultants.
The Five Year Strategy was being developed in partnership with all health and social
care partners and a governance structure had been established. The process included
the following stages:• Working with partners to understand the potential savings across the system;
• The development by 20th May of the preferred options and their likely impact;
• Sharing the direction of travel with partners during June, July and August;
• Having a consultation draft agreed by September, in order for more formal
consultation to start in October 2014.
It was noted that the Better Care Fund Plans that were being implemented across
Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland were being incorporated into the Five Year
Strategy.

7
Arising from discussion the following points were raised:(i) A communication group for the Five Year Strategy was in place. It was working on
shared protocols so that all partners had a shared understanding of progress and
would give the same messages. The Group would also be responsible for
planning the consultation and engagement process as well as producing a plan for
internal communications and engagement.
(ii) The financial challenge faced by the health and social care system was
acknowledged. However, the process would be driven by the need to eradicate
inequalities in care and demonstrate clinical effectiveness, balanced against the
need for a sustainable model.
(iii) It would be important for the Strategy to promote self-care. To that end, the
Interim Programme Director had met with the voluntary sector and organisations
supporting self-care to consider how they could be involved with the Strategy.
(iv) It was hoped that the Five Year Strategy would reflect the culture change needed,
including the empowerment of patients and the importance of shared decision
making.
(v) It was felt that the Five Year Strategy should reflect the needs of out of county
patients as well as those who accessed secondary care services in within
Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland.
RESOLVED:

89.

That the update on the development of the Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland Five
Year Strategy be noted.
Transforming Care for People with Learning Disabilities (Winterbourne View).
The Board considered a report which sought agreement to the Leicestershire Joint
Commissioning Plan in response to the requirements laid out by the Winterbourne View
Transforming Care concordat and action plan. A copy of the report marked ‘Agenda Item
8’ is filed with these minutes.
It was noted that there was a primary care liaison nurse in each CCG area to support
practices with patients who had learning disabilities. It was suggested that, in the light of
the increased focus on health and social care integration and locality working, the
number of liaison nurses should be increased. In addition, consideration was needed of
ways of improving the connections between primary and secondary care and the system
for identifying patients with learning disabilities on admission to secondary care.
RESOLVED:
That the Leicestershire Joint Commissioning Plan in response to the requirements laid
out by the Winterbourne View Transforming Care Concordat and action plan be agreed.

90.

Change to the Order of Business.
The Chairman sought and obtained the consent of the Board to vary the order of
business from that shown on the agenda.

8
91.

Urgent Care Update
The Board considered a report of the University Hospitals of Leicester NHS Trust which
presented the action plan to improve urgent care developed by the Urgent Care Working
Group. A copy of the report marked ‘Agenda Item 12’ is filed with these minutes.
It was noted that an additional assessment of the action plan had been carried out to
prioritise actions in terms of their impact and achievability. This would ensure focus on
the following key areas:• Reducing admissions to hospital;
• Increasing acute bed capacity;
• Expediting discharge; and
• Improving the reliability of the system.
There was no specific timescale for the completion of the action plan. However, NHS
England would be assessing CCG performance in this area at the end of June.
RESOLVED:
That the action plan to improve urgent care developed by the Urgent Care Working
Group be noted.

92.

2014/15 Business Plan.
The Board considered a report of the Leicestershire and Rutland Local Safeguarding
Children Board and Safeguarding Adults Board which presented its 2014/15 Business
Plan. A copy of the report marked ‘Agenda Item 9’ is filed with these minutes.
As part of the protocol between the Health and Wellbeing Board and Local Safeguarding
Boards, the Board welcomed the opportunity to receive this report.
It was noted that the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and other needs analyses had
been used to inform the development of the business plan. The risk register would be
incorporated into the Business Plan following the next meeting of the Safeguarding
Board.
The Safeguarding Board was seeking support from the Health and Wellbeing Board in
the following areas:• Ensuring that constituent organisations were aware of safeguarding requirements;
• Ensuring that safeguarding was a cross cutting strand in strategic planning;
• Extending the capacity of partner organisations to engage with service users and
undertake appropriate, two way consultation with children, young people and
adults;
• Monitoring the key risk areas of mental health, female genital mutilation and
promoting the ‘think family’ concept.
It was suggested that consideration was given to how to strengthen the engagement of
primary care with the safeguarding agenda, particularly for children and young people.
This could take the form of a baseline assessment for GP safeguarding effectiveness.
The Independent Chair of the Safeguarding Board was pleased to note the focus that the
Board gave to safeguarding matters, as illustrated by the agenda for the Board’s meeting.

9
RESOLVED:
That the LSCB/SAB Business Plan for 2014/15 be noted.
93.

Healthwatch Leicestershire Strategy.
The Board considered a presentation from Healthwatch Leicestershire which provided an
update on the development of the vision, mission and objectives and priority workstreams
for 2014/15. A copy of the slides forming the presentation is filed with these minutes.
RESOLVED:
That the vision, mission and objectives and 2014/15 priorities for Healthwatch
Leicestershire be noted.

94.

Performance Assurance Framework Development Update.
The Board considered a report of the Chief Executive which provided an update on the
development of the new reporting framework for performance assurance for the Health
and Wellbeing Boards and supporting boards. A copy of the report marked ‘Agenda Item
11’ is filed with these minutes.
RESOLVED:
That the progress made to date in developing the performance framework alongside
reporting arrangements to support the Board’s role be noted.

95.

2013/14 Quality Account.
The Board considered a report of Leicestershire Partnership NHS Trust which presented
the draft 2013/14 Quality Account and invited commentary on its content. A copy of the
report marked ‘Agenda Item 13’ is filed with these minutes.
The Board indicated that it supported the priorities identified in the Quality Account. It
also believed that the Quality Account presented a balanced view of the Trust’s
performance.
RESOLVED:
That officers be requested to produce a formal commentary on the Quality Account,
based on this Board’s discussions, and forward it to Leicestershire Partnership NHS
Trust.

96.

Health and Wellbeing Board Annual Report.
The Board considered a report of the County Council which set out the Board’s Annual
Report. A copy of the report marked ‘Agenda Item 14’ is filed with these minutes.
The Board was pleased to note progress with delivering the Joint Health and Wellbeing
Strategy.

10
It was suggested that the impact of the Care Bill should be made a priority for the Health
and Wellbeing Board going forward.
RESOLVED:
(a) That the progress made in 2013/14 against the key responsibilities of the Health
and Wellbeing Board be noted;
(b) That the key priorities for the Health and Wellbeing Board’s work programme for
2014/15 be approved.
97.

Board Development Programme 2014/15.
The Board considered a report of the Director of Health and Care Integration which
provided an update on the development programme for the current financial year. A copy
of the report marked ‘Agenda Item 15’ is filed with these minutes.
RESOLVED:
(a) That the proposed development programme for 2014/15 be approved;
(b) That members of the Integration Executive who are not members of the Health
and Wellbeing Board be included in Board Development Sessions where
appropriate;
(c) That the sourcing of external support to scope and facilitate the leadership
behaviours session be approved;
(d) That a further update be submitted to the next meeting of the Health and
Wellbeing Board including detail of the leadership behaviours session and the
process for the 360° feedback.

98.

S106 Contributions for Healthcare.
The Board considered a report of NHS England (Leicestershire and Lincolnshire Area
Team) which set out the current process for obtaining section 106 contributions to
healthcare. A copy of the report marked ‘Agenda Item 16’ is filed with these minutes.
Arising from discussion the following points were raised:(i)

NHS England had to be very precise in its justification for requesting Section 106
monies to prevent legal challenge. It worked closely with local authorities,
particularly on large planning applications such as sustainable urban extensions
(SUEs). NHS England had a good relationship with all local authorities within
Leicestershire.

(ii)

The Section 106 process was not strategic and did not allow for the future proofing
of health services. It could also not be used to address existing issues, only for
increasing capacity.

(iii)

The role of the Health and Wellbeing Board should be to ensure that concerns
about the provision of primary care were addressed through the Primary Care
Strategy. It was also suggested that District Council Planning Officers should be

11
asked to consider how services could be future proofed in the large planning
developments which could take a number of years to come to fruition.
RESOLVED:
(a) That the process for securing S106 contributions for healthcare be noted;
(b) That Sandra Whiles be requested to give further consideration to how developer
contributions could be used to future proof healthcare services in larger
developments.
99.

CCG Quality Premium Requirement - Increased Reporting of Medication Incidents.
In support of CCG assurance, the Board considered a report of West Leicestershire
Clinical Commissioning Group and East Leicestershire and Rutland Clinical
Commissioning Group which presented the details relating to the quality premium
indication for the increased level of reporting of medication errors and the proposed
approach for 2014/15. A copy of the report marked ‘Agenda Item 17’ is filed with these
minutes.
RESOLVED:
That the quality premium requirement for CCGs for 2014/15 be noted.

100. Date of Next Meeting.
It was noted that the next meeting of the Board would take place on Thursday 17th July at
2.00pm.

2.00 - 4.20 pm
08 May 2014

CHAIRMAN

12

This page is intentionally left blank

13

Agenda Item 6

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: July 17 2014
REPORT OF DIRECTOR OF HEALTH AND CARE INTEGRATION
Purpose of report
1.

The purpose of this report is to update the Health and Wellbeing Board about four
key areas:
a. Government announcements made on July 5, 2014 which change the national
policy implementation arrangements for the Better Care Fund;
b. The requirement for all areas to resubmit their BCF plans in response to these
changes;
c. Our local response and next steps;
d. Highlights of our progress to date in implementing the BCF plan as approved in
April (please also refer to further details in the performance assurance report later
in the agenda).

Policy Framework and Previous Decisions
2.

National guidance was originally issued in December 2013 and January 2014, which
required all Health and Wellbeing Boards to approve and submit a local Better Care
Fund Plan by April 4th 2014.

3.

BCF plans had to demonstrate the support of all partners including acute providers,
meet a number of national conditions number, and provide a baseline and trajectory
against 5 national and 1 local metric against which the performance of the plan would
be measured.

4.

2014/15 is the preparatory year for the BCF. The full implementation of the
developments within the plan and the financial allocations associated with these
developments do not come into effect until 2015/16. For Leicestershire our BCF plan
assumes a pooled budget of £38m.

5.

Appendix 1 shows the current breakdown of the BCF schemes and spending plan
across both financial years.

Background
6.

During April and May regional and national assurance has been taking place to
assess the 151 BCF plans against all the national requirements.

7.

During this period there have been a series of discussions between NHSE and Local
Government, including ministerial level meetings between the Department of Health

14
and the Department of Communities and Local Government to discuss the levels of
assurance BCF plans provide at this early stage, in particular with respect to
a. The ability of plans to demonstrate evidence based schemes to reduce avoidable
emergency admissions to a sufficient level of ambition;
b. The involvement of acute providers in approving local plans.
8.

At the time of the BCF submissions in April the BCF performance and financial
regime did not entail any funds being held back centrally on the basis of
performance.

9.

However there was a clear expectation that a local contingency/risk pool would need
to operate (to be set out within the section 75 agreement for each BCF) with effect
from 2015/16.

10. If performance against the metrics did not reach the locally agreed thresholds, funds
from this risk pool would be used to mitigate the financial consequences between
partners.
11. There was also an expectation that if local areas were falling short of their trajectories
additional support and oversight from NHSE and Local Government would be in
place, where necessary, to assist with getting plans back on track.
12. Leicestershire’s BCF plan submission on April 4th set out the level of contingency
partners agreed for the financial plan, and the Integration Executive is leading the
work needed to develop the section 75 agreement and supporting risk sharing
agreement.
13. During June 2014 it became apparent that all local areas would shortly be asked to
resubmit their BCF plans with additional evidence and assurance.
14. At the time of writing this report 15 areas have already been notified to resubmit their
plans in the first cohort by July 9. They have been issued with revised submission
templates for this purpose. Leicestershire is not in this cohort. We understand further
guidance is imminent for the remainder of the areas and that we may be asked to
make this resubmission by August 1st.
15. On July 5, 2014 an announcement was made by the Department of Health setting
out some fundamental changes to the BCF planning arrangements which we will
need to take account of in our resubmission. Appendix 2 provides a copy of the
announcement.
16. We anticipate the further guidance for submitting plans will cover the implications of
these changes in more detail.
17. There are three immediate main areas of change/concern to note in taking forward
our local response, all of which are subject to further clarification and guidance.
a. There is now a very high emphasis on the avoidable emergency admissions
metric – this is could mean:
i. A change to the overall number of metrics against which the plan will be
measured;

15
ii. A change to the level of ambition for the avoidable emergency admissions
metric (a minimum level of 3.5% reduction in 2015/16 is indicated in the
announcement);
iii. A change to the underpinning definition of the avoidable emergency
admissions metric;
iv. A greater level of risk for Leicestershire in achieving the performance levels
within the BCF plan;
v. A more centralised and regular upward reporting requirement than
anticipated;
vi. BCF plans become focused wholly on reducing avoidable emergency
admissions within one financial year, and fail to implement medium term
integration and prevention schemes, which are key to a sustainable change
in shifting care outside of hospital.
b.

Pay for performance has been introduced – this could mean:
i. A proportion of the funds will be held back centrally and allocated
incrementally based on performance achieved, with effect from 2015/16;
ii. A reduction in the overall monies available in the Leicestershire BCF plan if
we cannot achieve the level of performance for the avoidable emergency
admissions metrics;
iii. A much greater level of central scrutiny, control and upward reporting in
this performance regime;
iv. The potential loss of a locally flexible risk pooling arrangement, depending
on how the centralised system works.

c. A requirement that a proportion of the funds allocated from 2015/16 are spent on
NHS provision outside of acute hospital settings – this could mean:
i. Less flexibility in implementing integrated care market solutions (esp. for
non-nhs provider solutions)
ii. Adjustments may be needed to BCF plans if the threshold for expenditure
on non-acute NHS providers is not considered adequate to meet the
guidance.
18. The above changes, and risks they represent, could jeopardise the progress already
being made between partners in Leicestershire and across the wider LLR footprint as we
set out our plans to transform health and care over the next 5 years, with the 3 local BCF
plans as a key enabler to the medium term vision.
19. It could lead to increased tensions between local government and NHS partners both
nationally and locally due to the high level of emphasis being placed on NHS
finances/activity, which could be seen to be detracting from other aspects of the vision
for integration, affecting the overall balance of BCF plans for the future, and placing
additional risks on Local Authority adult social care budgets in particular
20. It is therefore essential that we jointly assess the local implications of the above
changes, work together on assessing the risks and mitigations, and agree any
adjustments needed to our BCF plan together, so that we can:-

16
a. Continue our good progress in developing integrated care and support for local
citizens;
b. Provide a consistent message as a partnership about our intentions;
c. Resubmit our BCF plan in line with the national requirements.
Proposals/Options
21. The work to digest the guidance and resubmit our BCF plan in line with the national
timetable will be led by the Integration Executive.
22. Should the national timetable extend beyond August 1st we will consider the
feasibility/timing of an additional H&WB Board meeting ahead of submission and confirm
these arrangements as soon as possible.
23. The Director of Health and Care Integration convened an operational meeting on 9th July
with representatives from CCGs and local government across LLR to consider
implications collectively and provide assurance that preparations and various analyses
are already underway for the resubmission, using the materials issued to the first cohort
of 15 areas, on the basis that these materials may be very similar for the remainder of
the country.
24. A strategic level meeting between Leicestershire County Council, the two CCGs,
University Hospitals of Leicester and Leicestershire Partnership Trust was also convened
by the Director of Health and Care Integration on 9th July to provide executive level
direction and leadership to the next steps.
25. Specific actions taken/in progress during the next 2-3 weeks include:
a. Preparation of joint statements and media lines
b. Assessing the feasibility and risks associated with the 3.5% emergency
admissions threshold, including quantifying the financial risks;
c. Analysing our current and future spend on NHS providers outside of the acute
setting;
d. More detailed analysis by BCF scheme (this work was already in progress)
against each of the BCF metrics) to give additional assurance on impact by
scheme;
e. Recommending any adjustments to the plan;
f. Populating the revised submission templates;
g. Digesting the additional guidance when available.
26. A further policy announcement was made by Simon Stevens, the Chief Executive of
NHSE, on 9 July relating to personal budgets. This also has implications for the
integration and the BCF and a copy is given at Appendix 3 for information. Where
possible, a verbal update can be given at the meeting.
27. In terms of the progress made to date on implementing the developments within the BCF
plan for 2014-15, a fuller report is made on these in the performance paper later in this
agenda. Two power point slides have also been attached at Appendix 4 by way of
summary.

17

Consultation/Patient and Public Involvement
28. We will continue to engage with Local Healthwatch via the Integration Executive,
however the timescales for resubmission are likely to prevent wider engagement.
Resource Implications
29. The changes to the national arrangements for the BCF could lead to a reduction in
the funds available within the Leicestershire BCF, depending on the pay per
performance guidance which has not yet been published.

Timetable for Decisions
30. In the absence of firm guidance, we are currently planning for a resubmission by
August 1, 2014.
Conclusions/Recommendations
31. The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to:
a. Consider and discuss the implications of the changes outlined in the report;
b. Approve the next steps/actions as set out in paragraphs 21 – 25 of the report:
c. Provide joint leadership and support in directing the work of the Integration
Executive over the next period of BCF resubmission.
Background papers
Leicestershire BCF Plan (submitted April 4, 2014)

Officer to Contact
Name and Job Title Cheryl Davenport, Director of Health and Care Integration
(joint appointment)
Telephone: 0116 305 4212/ 07770 281610
Email:
cheryl.davenport@leics.gov.uk
List of Appendices
Appendix 1 – BCF spending plan summary
Appendix 2 – Department of Health Announcement 5 July 2014
Appendix 3 – Simon Stevens announcement on personal budgets 9 July 2014
Appendix 4 – 2014/15 BCF implementation update slides

18

Equalities and Human Rights and Partnership working Implications
The changes now proposed by Central Government could undermine partnership working
and delay progress towards integration of health and social care services, which given the
pressures on the public purse, could impact adversely on those with long term conditions
and disabilities who are more reliant on such services. Paragraphs 17-20 of the report
highlight the issues and risks associated.

Better Care Fund Spending Plan 2014/15 & 2015/16

Theme

$0ou23thk.xlsx
09/07/14

Existing /
New

Recurrent /
Non
recurrent

First Contact
Existing
R
Carers Services
Expanding
R
Time Banking
Existing
NR
Advice & Information (c/f from 2013/14)
Existing
NR
Carers Assessments (Care Bill Implications)
New
R
Specialist Support to People with Dementia & Carers
Existing
R
Strengthening Autism Pathway
Existing
R
Assistive Technology
Existing
R
Assistive Technology (replacement equipment)
Existing
NR
Local Area Co-ordination
New
R
Disabled Facilities Grants
Existing
R
NHS - LD Short Breaks
NHS Protection
R
Proactive Care (West Leics)
Existing
R
Long Term Conditions (East)
Existing
R
Pathway to Housing
Existing
NR
Memory Plus Service Evaluation
Existing
NR
Improving Quality in Care Homes
Existing
R
IT Enablers - Data sharing, care plans, t/health & t/care
New
NR?
Social Care - Nursing care packages
Social Care Protection R
Social Care Protection R
Social Care - Sustainable community services
Social Care - Increasing demographic pressures
Social Care Protection R
Social Care - Protection of community care packages
Social Care Protection R
Integrated Crisis Response Service (Health & Social Care)
Expanding
R
Health & Social Care Older People's Frail Service
New
R
Ambulance Falls Prevention
New
Expanded Role of Primary Medical Care
New
R
HART Reablement
Existing
R
Intermediate Care
Existing
R
Integrated Residential Reablement
Expanding
R
Hospital to Home
Existing
R
HART Scheduling System
Existing
NR
Patient Transfer Minimum Data Set
New
NR
Bridging Service
New
R
Strengthening Mental Health Discharge Provision
Existing
R
NHS Protection
R
NHS - Step Down
NHS - Intensive Community Service
NHS Protection
R
NHS - Assertive InReach
NHS Protection
R
NHS - Reablement
NHS Protection
R
Social Care - Residential Respite
Social Care Protection R
Social Care - cost pressures linked to new models of working
Social Care Protection R
Better Care Fund Programme Leads
Existing
R
Better Care Fund - Programme Support
Existing
R

Lead budget

LCC
LCC
LCC
LCC
LCC
LCC
LCC
LCC
LCC
LCC
Districts
CCG
CCG
LCC
LCC
LCC
LCC
LCC / CCG
LCC
LCC
LCC
LCC
LCC / CCG
CCG
CCG
LCC
CCG
LCC / CCG
LCC
LCC
CCG
LCC?
CCG
CCG
CCG
CCG
CCG
LCC
LCC
LCC
LCC

2014/15
2015/16
Expenditure Expenditure

£'000

£'000

158.9
370.0
72.0
4.0

161.6
450.0

294.0
162.8
984.0
1,444.5
240.0

540.0
460.0
72.2
10.0
486.3
2,995.2
1,466.0
1,741.0
1,038.7
1,000.0
50.0
300.0
432.0
580.0
556.0
72.0
95.0
90.0
500.0
254.8

275.0
320.0
94.9
995.0
600.0
1,739.0
844.0
540.0
460.0

501.3
650.0
3,360.6
1,876.0
4,584.0
3,852.0
2,000.0
2,000.0
100.0
750.0
432.0
580.0
556.0
72.0
130.0

742.6
220.0
164.1
85.5

750.0
260.7
529.0
1,821.0
569.0
4,132.0
742.6
1,640.0
26.0
86.8

-18,250.6

-38,480.5

569.0

19

Unified Prevention Offer
Unified Prevention Offer
Unified Prevention Offer
Unified Prevention Offer
Unified Prevention Offer
Unified Prevention Offer
Unified Prevention Offer
Unified Prevention Offer
Unified Prevention Offer
Unified Prevention Offer
Unified Prevention Offer
Unified Prevention Offer
Long Term Conditions
Long Term Conditions
Long Term Conditions
Long Term Conditions
Long Term Conditions
Long Term Conditions
Long Term Conditions
Long Term Conditions
Long Term Conditions
Long Term Conditions
Urgent Response
Urgent Response
Urgent Response
Urgent Response
Discharge & Reablement
Discharge & Reablement
Discharge & Reablement
Discharge & Reablement
Discharge & Reablement
Discharge & Reablement
Discharge & Reablement
Discharge & Reablement
Discharge & Reablement
Discharge & Reablement
Discharge & Reablement
Discharge & Reablement
Discharge & Reablement
Discharge & Reablement
Enablers
Enablers

Scheme

This page is intentionally left blank

20

21

APPENDIX 2

DH BCF announcement
Weblink to article on DH website
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/better-care-plans-to-provide-dignity-independenceand-reduce-ae-admissions
Article in Full
Plans to improve out of hospital care for the elderly and vulnerable will reduce emergency
admissions.
Plans to improve out of hospital care for the elderly and vulnerable will reduce emergency
admissions, the Department of Health and Department for Communities and Local Government
announced today (5 July 2014).
Following a review of the first set of local plans for the Better Care Fund, a renewed agreement has
strengthened a commitment to bring health and care service providers closer together to make joint
decisions, ensuring more people receive joined-up, personalised care closer to home. The fund and
the benefits it is creating will be an enduring feature of health and care provision beyond 2016.
Building on existing practices whereby local government already purchases care services from a
range of suppliers, the fund, with a shared budget of at least £3.8 billion, will bring from next April:
•
•
•
•
•

more dignity and independence for the frail and elderly by providing the care they need at
or closer to home
7-day health and care services — to ensure that people can access the care they need when
they need it
a named professional— who can join up services around individuals, and prevent them from
falling through the gaps
better data sharing — so that people don’t need to endlessly repeat their story to every
professional who cares for them
joint assessments — so that services can work together to assess and meet people’s needs
all in one go

Today’s news means that as well as providing this kind of service to patients, Health and Wellbeing
Boards – made up of councils and local health services – will be able to set their own performance
pot with a guideline reduction in unplanned admissions of at least 3.5%. This equates to at least
185,500 fewer admissions a year. The balance of their current performance allocation will then be
spent on NHS-commissioned community services.
Following a review of 151 local area ‘Better Care’ plans, NHS England and the Local Government
Association (LGA) found that more than 80% of local area plans are on course to transform ‘out of
hospital’ services. NHS England and the LGA have also identified 14 areas that can fast track the

22

completion of their plans because they are already showing high potential, some 9 months out from
the formal start of the programme.
The plans will be further reviewed by DCLG Permanent Secretary Sir Bob Kerslake and NHS Chief
Executive Simon Stevens later in the summer to ensure they are ambitious enough to achieve
improvements in care and that every area is on track to begin in April next year. In order to drive this
through at pace a new Better Care Fund programme director will also be appointed with an
expanded team, working across Whitehall, local government and the NHS.
More than 100 Clinical Commissioning Group areas have expressed an interest in ‘co-commissioning’
primary care services. This will mean that GPs have unprecedented involvement in not only how
hospital services should be shaped to meet the needs of their patients, but also how primary care
services are set up to prevent people from experiencing unnecessary hospital visits.
Health Secretary, Jeremy Hunt said:
Local authorities and the NHS are making excellent progress in developing plans that will give
patients better, joined up care and allow hospitals to focus on treating the people who really need to
be there. The plans are packed full of ideas and show that strong partnerships are being forged with
different teams like never before.
Successive governments have talked about bringing the NHS and social care together for decades –
this is the first, transformative step to making that a reality. We will continue to nurture and support
the development of these plans to deliver our shared ambition so that every part of the country
provides better care for patients closer to home.
Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government, Eric Pickles said:
The Better Care Fund is about bringing health and social care together to provide better, more
dignified care and independence for the elderly and vulnerable, not leaving them with no choice but
to turn up at A&E or be stuck unnecessarily in hospital for weeks when they could be helped at
home. The great advantage of the system is local flexibility to get the mix of services right for the
user. The revised plans will help cement this new partnership at a local level, with services built
around the user, and provide a good deal for the taxpayer too.
Chief Secretary to the Treasury, Danny Alexander said:
This fund will help ensure more people benefit from the dignity and independence of being cared for
at home instead of a hospital ward. Empowering local areas by pooling budgets will help unlock real
improvements in a wide range of public services in the years to come.
It’s clear from the plans we have seen that these are only first steps in improving services. The Better
Care Fund will be an established feature of the care system for the coming years so areas can
continue to fund care designed around people’s needs rather than institutional divides.
Care and Support Minister, Norman Lamb said:

23

Too often care is uncoordinated, leaving too many people needlessly going back to A&E again and
again. We want to make the system fairer and provide better care for patients, no matter where
they are being treated. We already have 14 pioneer areas proving that an integrated approach can
save money, reduce demand on services and improve patient care.
Background information
1. Up to £1 billion of the Better Care Fund will be allocated to local areas to spend on out-ofhospital services according to the level of reduction in emergency admissions they achieve.
Local areas will agree their own ambition on reducing emergency admissions and they will
be allocated a portion of the £1 billion performance money in the fund in accordance with
the level of performance against this ambition. The remaining money from the performance
pot not earned through reducing emergency admissions will be used to support NHScommissioned local services, as agreed by Health and Wellbeing Boards.
2. Revised guidance for local areas to shape the further development of local Better Care Fund
plans will be set out shortly. This will include information on the revised performance
payment scheme, as well as specific areas where local plans need to be strengthened
through providing further detail on local plans.
3. We expect local areas to submit revised plans later in the summer, ahead of a further
process of national assurance and ministerial sign off. Better Care Fund plans will launch in
all local areas from 1 April 2015, as set out in the 2013 Spending Review.
4. Based on 2013/14 figures the total number of emergency admissions in 2013/14 was
5,300,439.
5. The 14 areas that can fast-track the completion of their plans are:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Dudley
Hammersmith and Fulham
Kensington and Chelsea
Westminster
Greenwich
Leeds
Liverpool
Nottinghamshire
Reading
Sunderland
Rotherham
Torbay
Warwickshire
Wiltshire

24

This page is intentionally left blank

25

APPENDIX 3
For immediate release on Wednesday 9 July 2014

NHS ENGLAND CHIEF OFFERS LOCAL GOVERNMENT LEADERS RADICAL NEW HEALTH AND SOCIAL
CARE INTEGRATION OPTION

High-need individuals to be offered ability to control their own blended NHS and community care,
in partnership with voluntary sector.

The NHS will offer local councils across England a radical new option in which individuals could
control their combined health and social care support, Simon Stevens CEO of NHS England will
announce today.

Speaking at the annual conference of the Local Government Association in Bournemouth, Stevens
will set out plans for a new Integrated Personal Commissioning (IPC) programme, which will for the
first time blend comprehensive health and social care funding for individuals, and allow them to direct
how it is used.

Four groups of high-need individuals are likely to be included in the first wave from next April 2015,
although councils, voluntary organisations, and NHS clinical commissioning groups may also propose
others. These are:
- people with long term conditions, including frail elderly people at risk of care home admission
- children with complex needs
- people with learning disabilities, and
- people with severe and enduring mental health problems.

At the same time, voluntary/Third Sector organisations will be commissioned locally to support
personal care planning, advocacy and service 'brokerage' for these individuals enrolled in the IPC
programme.

26

This new approach builds upon, but is in addition to, the constructive joint work now under way
locally on the groundbreaking Better Care Fund.

It also extends and combines current work on 'year of care' NHS commissioning, personal budgets in
'continuing care', and the early experience of 14 'integrated care pioneers'. (For more details of these,
see Notes to Editors, below.) The new IPC programme does not require any structural reorganisation
in either the NHS or local authorities.

In his speech today Simon Stevens will say:

"Patients, service users and carers have the biggest interest in getting things right, but they can only
do so if we give them real power to shape their own care.

"If Beveridge was alive today he'd clock the fact that - given half a chance - people themselves can be
the best 'integrators' of the health and social care they are offered.

"We need to stop treating people as a collection of health problems or treatments. We need to treat to
them as individuals whose needs and preferences should be seen in the round and whose choices
shape services, not the other way round.

"That's the big offer the NHS increasingly has to make to our fellow citizens, to local authorities, and
to voluntary organisations. We need a double N in 'NHS' - a National Health Service offering more
Neighbourhood health support."

Under the new IPC programme, a combined NHS and social care funding endowment will be created
based on each individual's annual care needs. This will blend funds contributed from local authorities
and NHS commissioners (CCGs and NHS England). Individuals enrolled in the programme will be
able to decide how much personal control to assume over how services are commissioned and
arranged on their behalf.

27

NHS care will in all cases remain free at the point of use, and available according to individual need.

NHS England will now work with partners in local government, CCGs, patient groups and the
voluntary sector to develop an IPC Prospectus which will be published at the end of July. This will
formally invite local expressions of interest in jointly developing and participating in the IPC
programme from April 2015.

NHS England will provide technical support to develop projects, and fund independent evaluation.
Wider scale rollout of successful projects is envisaged from 2016/17.

Experience with pilots has shown that this approach has the potential to join-up services and funding
at the level of the individual, for people who often need multiple services. It gives control to those
people who have the biggest interest in getting things right - people receiving services and their
carers. It often brings in peer support, and is a source of innovation and expertise on what really
works in practice. It allows people to flex support over the year as conditions get better or worse,
and brings different expertise to the care planning process. (For actual case studies of individuals
who have benefited from this approach, see the examples set out below.)

Notes to editors

Prior research and practice

The new IPC programme draws on and expands upon prior research and practice in several related
areas. These include the NHS' so-called 'year of care' commissioning pilots, personal health budgets,
and fourteen local 'integrated care pioneers'. Details of each are as follows:

1. Year of Care Early Implementation sites:
http://www.icase.org.uk/pg/cv_content/content/view/116506/88229
http://www.kingsfund.org.uk/sites/files/kf/sir-john-oldham-year-of-care-capitation-paymentsjan13.pdf

2. Personal Health Budgets:

28

A summary of the original controlled trial of personal health budgets is
at: http://www.personalhealthbudgets.england.nhs.uk/_library/Resources/Personalhealthbudgets/T
oolkit/PHBHowToGetGoodResults.pdf.
http://www.personalhealthbudgets.england.nhs.uk/About/

Personal health budgets began under the last government and have continued under the current
Administration. Under the NHS Mandate, from April 2014 people eligible for NHS Continuing
Healthcare funding (people with very high health needs) have a 'right to ask' for personal health
budgets and every CCG in the country is engaged in a national support programme to get ready for
this. Sites that have been going beyond the Continuing Healthcare requirement are exploring
offering personal health budgets to people with long term conditions, children and their carers, and
people who use mental health services.

3. Integration Pioneer sites:
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/integration-pioneers-leading-the-way-for-health-and-carereform--2

Progress Update:
Leicestershire’s Better
Care Fund Plan
29

A partnership of Leicester, Leicestershire & Rutland Health and Social Care

1

BCF Recap

A partnership of Leicester, Leicestershire & Rutland Health and Social Care

30

• Leicestershire’s BCF plan is :
– Approved by the Health and Wellbeing Board
(April 2014)
– Aligned to the LLR 5 year strategy (June 2014)
– Due to start in full in 2015/16, with 2014/15 the
preparatory year
– Directed on a day to day basis by the Integration
Executive, which reports to the Health and
Wellbeing Board
– Subject to further national assurance (this is still in
progress for all BCF plans nationally)

Leicestershire BCF Progress Highlights - 1

A partnership of Leicester, Leicestershire & Rutland Health and Social Care

31

• 2 hour urgent response
– Integrated model being recommended by
September 2014
• Frail Older People
– Outline Business Case produced
– Agreement to an initial site based model in
Loughborough, intention to commence within
14/15.
• 7 day services in Primary Care
– Initial plans received from both CCGs – some
early testing planned within 14/15

Leicestershire BCF Progress Highlights - 2

A partnership of Leicester, Leicestershire & Rutland Health and Social Care

32

• Local Area Coordination
– Outline Business case produced - implementation
in progress for initial roll out in 8 areas in the
autumn
• Preparation of a new housing offer – called the
Lightbulb Project in conjunction with Districts
– Expression of interest for national transformation
monies submitted
– Business Case and market development in
2014/15 for go live in 2015/16

33

Agenda Item 7

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: 17 JULY 2014
REPORT OF NHS ENGLAND (LEICESTERSHIRE AND
LINCOLNSHIRE AREA)
S106 CONTRIBUTIONS FOR HEALTHCARE
PLANS FOR EXPENDITURE
Purpose of Report
1.

The purpose of this report is to update the Health and Wellbeing Board on the
proposed expenditure of secured and available S106 contributions for
healthcare within Leicestershire and Rutland

Background
2.

The Area Team (AT) and its predecessor organisations have been working with
local authorities for many years to secure financial contributions through S106
from housing developers to mitigate the impact of new residents on healthcare
capacity.

3.

Until approximately 2010, the process for securing healthcare contributions was
based on a simple formula applied to the number of dwellings proposed in each
planning application. Consequently there are a number S106 funds for
healthcare being held by local authorities which do not have a specific purpose
(other than for healthcare) or recipient (other than PCT and now NHS England)
stated in the legal agreement.

4.

The legal S106 agreement itself for a particular development will state where
the funds should be spent and on the specific project to reflect the initial S106
request. The Area Team works closely with the local authorities in
Leicestershire and Rutland in securing and spending s106 funds.

5.

There have been a number of successful projects undertaken using S106 funds
which have increased healthcare capacity. With few exceptions, the projects
have been focused on general practice. They range from the purchase of
medical equipment to premises extensions to provide additional consulting
rooms.

6.

Local authorities are currently holding S106 funds for healthcare. The funds
would not be drawn down by the Area Team until expenditure against a project
is due. The majority of proposed projects are in the planning and development
stages. This paper provides an outline of the planned projects using s106 funds
held by local authorities.

34

7.

The following tables show the most recent known position as notified by each
local authority. There will be continued additions/reductions to the lists as S106
contributions are paid in/spent. The values may also change as the
contributions are index linked.

8.

The process of securing funds in Melton, Oadby and Wigston areas is not as
well developed although consultation responses on the impact of growth on
healthcare are always given to core strategy proposals. In Harborough District
Council area, funds have been secured but are not yet available to spend.

Blaby District Council
Location
Countesthorpe

Amount Available
£178,661.55

Littlethorpe

£16,338

Stoney Stanton

£195,792.21

Glenfield

£119,751.41

Leicester Forest East

£6,709.40

Whetstone
Blaby

£2,339.84
£10,781.10

Proposed expenditure
The Countesthorpe GP practice
has already built an extension to
provide additional clinic rooms.
These funds will be drawn down
asap
Bids are to be requested from the
Narborough practices
The Stoney Stanton GP practice
is proposing to use the funds to
build an extension to the existing
surgery. Awaiting full plans for
approval
The Glenfield GP practice is
proposing to use the funds to
bring into use and connect an
adjoining building for clinical use.
Awaiting full plans for approval
These funds have already been
spent on a new telephone system
to provide increased access for
patients. The funds will be drawn
down asap.
These funds will be used in
conjunction with other
contributions when received.

Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council
Location
Hinckley

Amount Available
£220,530.51

Barwell

£15,219.48

Proposed expenditure
Bids have been received from
Hinckley GP practices and
approved by the Area Team.
Awaiting approval by HBBC
These funds will be used towards
the new GP surgery in Barwell

35

Desford

£22,173.00

Ratby

£44,334.00

which is under discussion.
Funds to be used by Desford GP
practice to bring into use garage
as admin space which will
release other space for clinical
use. Awaiting planning
permission
Funds to be used by Ratby GP
practice to build an extension.
Awaiting approval by HBBC

North West Leicestershire District Council
Location
Ashby

Amount Available
£221,457.59

Coalville
Ellistown

£205,184.99
£48,858.52

Hugglescote

£10,408.85

Measham

£39,063.65

Ibstock

£144,142.00

Kegworth

£82,937.64

Proposed expenditure
The funds will be used towards
the new GP surgery in Ashby or
to support the CCG in the
reconfiguration of services
following the community hospital
review. Bid awaited from CCG.
A project is being worked up to
potentially relocate two Coalville
GP practices into MRC building.
The proposal is subject to
approval by the Area Team and
consultation with patients.
The Hugglescote practice is
putting together a bid to spend
the funds on equipment
The Measham practice is
currently upgrading current
clinical rooms to increase
capacity. The funds will be drawn
down asap
The Ibstock GP practice has
plans to extend the Ibstock
surgery and is working on this
currently.
NWLDC has said that the funds
must be spent in Kegworth so this
has been raised with the
neighbouring Area Team who
hold the contract with the local
GP surgery in Kegworth

Charnwood Borough Council
Location
Anstey

Amount Available
£61,404.70

Proposed expenditure
The Anstey practice has been
made aware of this and proposals

36

Barrow upon Soar

£49,903.83

Hathern

£135,137.26

Loughborough

£424,802.40

Mountsorrel

£6,301.91

Quorn

£91,930.15

Rothley

£200,454.65

Shepshed

£34,518.59

Sileby

£224,186.12

Woodhouse Eaves

£11,000

are awaited.
The Barrow Health Centre
practice has submitted proposals
to increase capacity through
bringing into use an unused
storage space and create an
additional clinic room. This is
currently going through approval
processes.
The Hathern practice has been
made aware of this and proposals
are awaited.
Allocated to Pinfold Gate HC GP
practice in Loughborough to fund
the expansion of their surgery.
Awaiting approval through NHS
Property Services process.
These funds have already been
used to increase capacity at
Linkfield Road GP surgery,
Mountsorrel. The funds will be
drawn down asap.
The Quorn practice has been
made aware of this and proposals
are awaited.
Approx £6000 has been used to
carry out a feasibility study on the
expansion of the Alpine House
surgery in Mountsorrel which is
the main recipient of Rothley
patients (funds to be drawn down
asap). The remainder of the
funds will be used to carry out the
extension. Full plans awaited
The funds have been spent on
internal works to Forest House
GP surgery Shepshed to provide
additional clinic rooms. Funds to
be drawn down asap
The two Sileby GP practices have
been made aware of the
availability of the funds and are
working up proposals for its
expenditure. The Highgate
surgery has already put in a
proposal for the use of some of
the funds (equipment) which is
going through the approval
processes
These funds can only be spent at

37

the Woodhouse Eaves GP
surgery. The practice has been
made aware of this and proposals
are awaited.
Future Arrangements for negotiating developer contributions
There has been ongoing debate amongst planning officers across Leicester and
Leicestershire (and nationally) as to the approach that should be taken to assess
requests from infrastructure providers for developer contributions.
The legal and policy framework relating to planning obligations has changed
significantly in recent years with the advent of the Community Infrastructure Levy
(CIL) Regulations (which also govern the use of S106) in 2010 and the publication of
the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) in 2012 which had the effect of
cancelling the previous Government Guidance on Planning Obligations (Circular
05/2005).
The effect of these changes is that all requests for Planning Obligations must now be
judged against the three tests set out in the NPPF and the CIL regulations. The tests
are as follows:
(a)
(b)
(c)

necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms;
directly related to the development; and
fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.

Whilst these tests are not new it is worthy of note that the status of the tests has
changed and some of the other presumptions relating to planning obligations no
longer exist. The effect of the change has been to place increased pressure on
planning authorities to rigorously assess obligation requests on the basis of the three
tests; inevitably such assessments can be subjective and involve a large degree of
planning judgment.
Application of the CIL (S106) Tests
“CIL Test”
Regulation 122
Community
Infrastructure
Regulations 2010
1. Necessary to
make the
development
acceptable in
planning terms

Definition and Explanation Evidence Required

a. Needed to mitigate an
unacceptable impact of
development.
b. Needed following an
assessment of existing
and planned
infrastructure capacity.
c. Needed to mitigate an
impact up to a minimum
standard.

I.

II.

III.

Clear demonstration of the
“minimum standard” of
service provision,
Clear demonstration of
how existing minimum
service provision is funded
and whether said funding
streams include allowance
for population growth.
The extent of current and

38

d. Needed to mitigate an
impact that should not
normally be provided by IV.
general taxation or any
other public means.
e. Supported by local
planning policy.
2.Directly related to a. Geographically linked in I.
the development
terms of the infrastructure
provider’s operational
geography.
b. Infrastructure that might
reasonably be impacted
by the type and use of
development.
c. A type of obligation
recognised in local
planning policy.
3. Fairly and
reasonably related
in scale and kind to
the development

a. Proportional to the scale
and impact of the
development.
b. Proportional to the
financial viability of the
development

I.

predicted demand for said
infrastructure.
An assessment of existing
and planned capacity.

Clear demonstration of the
operational structure and
model of infrastructure
delivery broken down into
functional units where
applicable.

An assessment of the
increase in demand created
by the development taking
account of relevant social,
economic and demographic
trends and population
displacement.

The 7 District Councils as Local Planning authorities are working with Leicester City
Council to develop a sub-regional approach to negotiating S106 contributions from
developers so that there is strategic approach to the infrastructure requirements to
support housing growth. Consultation with infrastructure providers, including the
Local Area Team will be carried out during August and September with a view to
each Council adopting the protocol .
Recommendation
9.

That the proposed expenditure of secured and available S106 contributions for
healthcare be noted. A regular update will be provided to the HWWB

Officer to Contact
Amanda Anderson
Medical and Pharmacy Asst Contracts Manager (Leicestershire), NHS England
Tel: 0116 295 0819
Email: amanda.anderson8@nhs.net

39

Agenda Item 9

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: 17th JULY 2014
REPORT OF LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD COMMUNICATIONS STRATEGY
Purpose of report
1. The purpose of this report is to outline the draft communications and engagement
strategy for the Health and Wellbeing Board – incorporating the work of the
Integration Executive.
Policy Framework and Previous Decisions
2. The draft strategy was taken to the Integration Executive in June; the executive’s
feedback will be incorporated into the ongoing development of the implementation
strategy.
Background
3. Each Health and Wellbeing Board has a statutory duty to communicate and
engage with the public, particularly with respect to the outcomes prioritised within
the local Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy. With the recent introduction of the
Better Care Fund, each Health and Wellbeing Board is now also engaged in
promoting integration.
4. In March 2014, the Health and Wellbeing Board agreed to prepare a
communications strategy for consideration.
5. The draft strategy has been aligned to the Better Care Together communications
plan.
Proposals/Options
6. The communications strategy has been drafted and will be updated in line with the
emerging priorities and detailed proposals arising from the work of the board and
the executive.
Resource Implications
7. The communications team at Leicestershire County Council will develop and
implement the strategy within existing resources, with advice from the Better Care
Together communications lead, Local HealthWatch and the communication leads
in the County CCGs.

40

Conclusions/Recommendations
8. The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to offer its feedback at this stage and
support the ongoing work as outlined.
Officer to Contact
Name:
Jo Morrison
Job Title:
Corporate Communications Manager
Organisation:
Leicestershire County Council
Telephone Number: 0116 305 5850
Email:
Joanna.morrison@leics.gov.uk
List of Appendices
Appendix 1 - Draft Communications Strategy

41

Appendix 1

Leicestershire Health and Wellbeing Board
COMMUNICATIONS STRATEGY
DRAFT V0.2

42
Background
1. The public sector faces its biggest ever challenge. Both local and national bodies
are tackling unprecedented financial, legislative and demographic pressures.
Large-scale transformation and integration is on the horizon for most.
2. The role of the Health and Wellbeing Board is to lead and advise on work to
improve the health and wellbeing of Leicestershire through the development of
improved and integrated health and social care services.

3. Health and Wellbeing Boards (HWBs) were given legal status by the Health and
Social Care Act 2012. Each local authority and its partner clinical commissioning
groups is responsible for:

•

Assessing the health and wellbeing needs of local people (adults, children and
young people), including wider factors which create inequalities, and bringing
this analysis together in a Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA).

•

Preparing a joint health and wellbeing strategy (JHWS), prioritising actions
and underpinning commissioning in the short, medium and long term.

•

Promoting integration and partnership working at the local level by joining up
commissioning plans across the NHS, social care and public health.

Scope of this document
4. This communications strategy and implementation plan will support the delivery
of the Health and Wellbeing Board’s objectives. Outputs and outcomes will be
initially monitored on a monthly basis and reported to the internal team.
5. It will be revised, according to the shape and focus for the board and its partners
– and will therefore remain a live, working document.

6. A quarterly review of communications will be undertaken to ensure that
resource is targeted appropriately, working effectively and helping the board to
achieve its aims.

43
Research and insight
7. It’s vital that we understand the context in which we are attempting to engage
our target audiences. For the Health and Wellbeing Board, there are some things
that we know, for example:
a. Trust in public and private organisations has declined. Negative media
stories surrounding events such as publication of the Francis report,
continue to erode public confidence and heighten a general scepticism
about public services working together.
b. There is a level of trust placed in GPs to shape local services – and this
perception may influence how the board positions its spokespeople.

“Four fifths (80%) of the public agree that GPs are bestplaced to understand which services their patients need.”1
c. There is public appetite for health and social care partners to work
together to improve services and reduce cost. In the county council’s
latest budget consultation over 7,200 people commented on what they
saw as council priorities. 93% said that the council should work with the
NHS and GPs.
d. In a recent consultation conducted by Healthwatch Leicestershire to
identify priorities for 2014-15, 66% of respondents ranked ‘joining up
health and social care’ as their number one priority.
e. 62% highlighted improving mental health care services. Half of
respondents named: early diagnosis of disease, support for people with
long-term conditions, and care for older people.
f. The Healthwatch report highlighted the following key audiences for
engagement work:

-

BME service users
Children and Young People
Rurally isolated
Working parents
Men

1 – Public Perceptions of the NHS and Social Care, IPSOS MORI, June 2013

44
g. People don’t seem to seek out information about how health and care
services are run, or whether they are performing well. So we should not
expect our audiences to ‘stumble’ into our messages – we must be
deliberate, proactive and compelling in telling our story.

“Only a small minority of people (14%) have looked
for information about how their local healthcare
services are performing… and over eight in ten
people who looked for, and found, this information
say that it was easy to find.”1
h. There is generally confusion over NHS services which are provided locally
and nationally. Add to this the changes in recent years to CCGs, Public
Health and the emerging Better Care Fund and it’s easy to see how
messages can be opaque and distorted to the public and stakeholders.
Our communications must seek to cut through and position the work of
the board clearly.

“The NHS perception gap remains… Almost eight in ten
(77%) people agree that my local NHS is providing me
with a good service. However, two thirds agree (66%)
that the NHS is providing a good service nationally.”1
8. Knowing how best to communicate with and engage our audiences will help us
to create a meaningful dialogue in the most cost-effective way.
9. Nationally, we know that most people engage with their health and care services
face-to-face or via telephone. Young people are those in social groupings A and
B are more likely to use email or online services. This insight should influence
our choice of communication channel. 1
10. We are already aware that in Leicestershire:

a. 62% of residents read Leicestershire Matters

2

b. 73.5% of residents are informed about public services
c.

3

Social media use to engage with public services is increasing. The
county council’s twitter account increased its reach by 81% last year.

2 – Leicestershire Media Habits Survey – BCG Research, 2012
3 – Leicestershire Community Based Survey – Leicestershire County Council – 2014

45

11. From the 2012 survey of media habits in Leicestershire, we also know that:
•

92% had watched some news in the previous week. BBC East Midlands Today
was among the most popular. Compared with 2010, significantly more people
watched BBC East Midlands Today and Central Tonight.

•

Radio Leicester was the key local station for news. Capital FM and Gem 106
were also important channels.

•

Males (85%) and middle age groups (89% of 25-44 year olds and 84% of 45-64
year olds) were more likely than others to listen to the radio. 65+ were more
likely to listen to BBC Radio Leicester (36%).

•

The Daily Mail and The Sun were the most popular national daily newspapers.
But almost half of respondents had not read any national papers.

•

66% had read local newspapers in the previous month – especially 65+. The
Leicester Mercury was read by a third of all respondents. The Loughborough
Echo was read by 11%. Again, this contrasts with anecdotal feedback at one
of the focus groups held in July 2013 at which no-one had read a recent
newspaper. Evidence suggests online readership is growing.

•

21% had read at least one community newspaper in the previous month.

•

Three quarters of respondents had broadband at home during 2012, and
national trends show that use continues to grow. Mobile internet use is now
more common than ever.

Communications objectives

46

9. The Health and Wellbeing Board has a statutory duty to communicate and
engage with the public. Our communications should explicitly support the
board’s strategy for health and wellbeing in Leicestershire. Below, we have set
out our initial objectives:
12. With the recent introduction of the Better Care Fund, each Health and Wellbeing
Board is now also engaged in promoting the joining up of social care and health.
13. Taking this into account, the objectives of this communications plan are to:
a. Improve amongst key audiences the understanding of the board’s
purpose, benefits and successes – highlighting how the board is adding
value to the work of individual partners
b. In delivering the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy, we will inform and
engage with local people about how they can take responsibility for their
own health and wellbeing and achieve the best possible quality of life.
This work will link to behaviour change campaigns run or commissioned
by the county council
c. Inform and engage key stakeholders to support the integration of health
and social care and help achieve the outcomes within the Better Care
Fund (BCF)
d. Communicate Leicestershire’s role and purpose within the context of the
wider health and social care strategy with Leicester and Rutland (the
Better Care Together programme)

Audiences

47

Internal
Management teams within partner
organisations (Police, Healthwatch, CCGs,
County, Districts and Borough Councils)
Staff affected

Partners / stakeholders
Parish councils
Schools / FE providers
Universities
Leicestershire and Rutland Sport

Wider staff groups
Transformation leads within partner
organisations

Opinion formers and influencers
•
Local MPs
•
Professional networks

Members
All members
Governance / key stakeholders
Local
Integration Executive
Staying Healthy Board
Substance Misuse Board
LLR Board for Health Protection
Better Care Together Board and substructures
Scrutiny
District/Borough HWBBs
Safeguarding boards
Leicester City Council
Rutland County Council
National
Department of Health
NHS England
Trust Development Agency
Health Protection Agency
Public Health England
Care Quality Commission
Monitor
Ofsted
Suppliers / providers
National contractors
Local contractors
LPT
UHL
Voluntary sector providers
Private and independent providers
Media
Local media
Trade / specialist media
National media

Communities
Via Healthwatch
Patient participation groups
Community groups
Voluntary sector leaders
Sports clubs and associations
Harder to reach groups
Equalities groups
Older people
Children
Young people
Families with children
Men
BME groups
Rural community networks

Residents and service users
Council tax payers
Social care service users
Patients
Advocacy / service user groups

Business community
LLEP
Chamber of Commerce

10. This mapping will be reviewed at regular points so that we can understand the
impact of communications and make necessary improvements.

Strategy and tools

48
11. The Health and Wellbeing Board will communicate and engage with its audiences
in the context of the wider strategy for health and care in Leicester,
Leicestershire and Rutland.
12. The board will need to target a range of stakeholders – including professionals
working in different sectors – so we will need to tailor our communications and
make it meaningful. We are also likely to have a variety of contact points within
an organisation – at both a strategic and operational levels. Our narrative must
be consistent, but our communications will need to be tailored.

13. We will engage our partners and audiences via established networks using email
updates or briefings. Contact with partners and stakeholders will be mapped to
avoid inconsistency of message.

14. To the outside world – we will demonstrate how we are working together
helping to reshape and improve care and health services. Through media work,
social media and stakeholder engagement we will seek to improve our
reputation and seek to influence policy decisions and other issues at the national
and local levels.

15. Internally, within the board we will communicate clearly and regularly, ensuring
that we equip spokespeople with key messages and we maintain – making the
most of low-cost digital communications.

16. For example we will exploit social media to reach stakeholders – including the
media. This will be done primarily through the county council’s twitter account
(@LeicsCountyHall) to promote positive news and encourage debate where
appropriate.

17. Our media relations will be proactive as well as responsive to national or local
news stories. For example, we will scan for national and local media coverage
which we can lever for the benefit of the board.

18. Key spokespeople for the communications campaigns will be Ernie White,
Chairman of the Health and Wellbeing Board and Prof. Mayur Lakhani, Chairman
of the Integration Executive. Other ‘subject matter experts’ will be fielded as
appropriate from the board’s membership.

Message and style

49
19. Our key messages will be tailored according to the purpose of communication.
20. Our style of communication will be clear, transparent and direct.
21. Case studies will be used to bring examples to life. Complex financial information
will be distilled – using graphics where needed to illustrate key points.

22. We will avoid jargon – explaining terms simply and using plain English at all times
- and alternative formats such as Easy Read if necessary.

High level implementation
June

July

Aug

Sept

Oct

Nov

Dec

Jan

Feb

Mar

Integration – progress communicated via monthly updates

Better Care Together engagement

HWB annual report
– good news

JSNA refresh

Stakeholder
bulletin

Campaign re Local
Area Coordination,
frail older people,
2-hr response

Stakeholder
bulletin

Leicestershire
Matters

Stakeholder
bulletin

Media / social media
campaign (focus tbc)

Stakeholder
bulletin

Leicestershire
Matters

Media / social media
campaign (focus tbc)

Stakeholder
bulletin

Leicestershire
Matters

50

GP awareness
campaign

Detailed implementation plan
Timescale
rd
3 June
th

10 June (papers)
th
17 June (mtg)
th
26 June

Strategic strand
Integration
Getting it right
from childhood
Integration

Task / message
Better Care Together – summit
• Cllr White – reactive position statement
Comms to coincide with publication of Cabinet report on new
Public Health responsibility for children’s health commissioning
Better Care Together submission is published – internal comms
and reactive media lines starts

Audience

Activity / tool

Responsible
MA

Media

Statement

MA

Internal
Staff
Media

Briefing

JM

Media statement

MA

Public health – staff
matters
Intranet
Email bulletin
Statement

JM

Statement

SK / MA

Briefing

CD

Integration

Integration (BCF) update

Staff

End June 14

Integration

Better Care Fund (BCF) plan approved

Internal
Governance
Media

June 14

ALL

PNA stakeholder (residents and professionals) questionnaire –
statement from Cllr White
Briefing voluntary and community sector stakeholders on
integration and Better Care Together

Residents
Stakeholders
Voluntary sector
stakeholders

MA/SK

nd

Integration / LLR

rd

ALL

Briefing County Council senior managers stakeholders on social
care, integration, prevention and signposting to Better Care
Together

Council senior
managers

Briefing / display
materials

JM / CD

4 July

th

Integration / LLR

Briefing County Councillors on integration and Better Care
Together

County
Councillors

Briefing

CD

July 14

Integration

Planning

JM/SK

July 14

Early intervention
/ prevention
Early intervention
/ prevention

Scoping of integration communications milestones – linked to
business case development
Scope District/Borough health and wellbeing campaign focused
on housing offer
Comms to coincide with publication of Cabinet report on Local
Area Coordination (LAC) – link to Derby case study

Planning

SK

Press release

MA

2 July

3 July

July 14

Residents
Stakeholders
Media

51

June 14

Strategic strand
Integration

Task / message
Progress on integration (BCF)

Audience
Staff

August 14

ALL

Start of JSNA refresh

Stakeholders

September 14

ALL

PNA statutory consultation begins (60 days) – statement from
Cllr White encouraging people to take part in the consultation.

September 14

ALL

Update on progress / focus on key roles of board members

Media
Internal staff
Residents /
stakeholders
Residents

October 14

ALL

Publication of the Director of Public Health annual report

October 14

Integration

HWBB update linked to BCF timescales/milestones

Media
Internal staff
Residents /
stakeholders
Staff

November 14

Influencing other
Boards
ALL

LSCB and SAB annual reports

Internal

Update on progress / focus on key roles of board members

Residents
Media
Internal staff
Residents /
stakeholders
Stakeholders

December 14
January 15

Early intervention
/ prevention

Launch of LAC service

February 15

ALL

Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy engagement event –
emerging JSNA priorities

Activity / tool
Public health staff
matters
Email/article

Responsible
JM/SK
SK

Press release
CIS/Staff Matters

GEM/MA
SK
GEM

Leicestershire
Matters
Press release
Intranets/Staff
newsletter

JM / MA

Public health staff
matters
Intranets

MA/SK

JM/SK
SK

Leicestershire
Matters
Various

JM / MA
SK

Event

JM / SK

52

Timescale
August 14

53
Resources
Team member
Jo Morrison

Role
Strategic communications
advice

Mel Atkinson

Media relations

Sally Kilbourne

Delivery of communications
activity

Risks
20. The following provides an overview of the current communications risks. This will be reviewed
regularly.
Risk
Volume of stakeholders is unmanageable

Mitigation
Segment into ‘high priority’ and focus on reaching and
engaging these audiences first

Messages are unclear and confused

Be clear about the alignment with national, LLR and other
messages
Be clear about the target audience – and tailor message
Provide a clear route to ask questions by email and
telephone – as well as through social media and online
Always use plain English

National coverage causes negativity /
confusion

Establish effective horizon-scanning so that media stories
can be prepared for and the board can position itself
appropriately
Establish joint or aligned messages with partners
Train key spokespeople for handling interviews

Internal staff are remote and remain
isolated
Review regularly and add other risks

Monitor social media effectively
Ensure that staff communications is planned appropriately
and reviewed regularly

54
Evaluation
Awareness

Action

Feedback

Indicator
Target / progress
• Media coverage (volume, tone & Balanced coverage
secured. Scale, tone and
use of key messages)
influence measured
through points.
• Website page visits

•

Social media coverage and
dialogue

•

No. of attendees at stakeholder
events

•

Levels of participation of staff
and managers in engagement
activities

•

Feedback gathered through
evaluation

14

No. of attendees to be
confirmed based on type
of events
No. of responses to be
confirmed

55

Agenda Item 10

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: 17 JULY 2014
REPORT OF JHWS/JSNA STEERING BOARD
REFRESH OF THE JOINT STRATEGIC NEEDS ASSESSMENT
Purpose of report
1.

The purpose of this report is to present the Health and Wellbeing Board with the
JHWS/ JSNA Steering Boards proposals for the JSNA refresh that is due to be
completed in 2015.

Policy Framework and Previous Decisions
2.

The existing JHWS runs from 2013-2016 and the JSNA prioritisation will underpin the
development of a revised JHWS between June 2015 and January 2016.

Background
3.

The JSNA, published in 2012, was used to underpin the development of
Leicestershire’s Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2013-16. The existing strategy
will run to 2016 and at this time the JHWS/ JSNA Steering Board will be responsible
for reviewing the progress that has been made against the strategic priorities and
identifying the key strategic priorities to address for 2016-19.

4.

In order to refresh the JHWS there is a significant body of work that needs to be done
to update the evidence base for the strategy. This will involve a refresh of the JSNA.

5.

The JSNA refresh needs to support a number of other priorities. These include:
i. The 5 year Better Care Together strategy
ii. Greater linkages in the evidence base for health and social care integration
iii. The Better Care Fund
iv. The LCC Corporate Strategy
v. The business and planning of the three core teams in LCC (adults, children
and public health)
vi. Planning of health care by the CCGs and NHS England

Proposals/Options
6.

The JSNA project team are proposing that the 2015 refresh moves away from the
very detailed JSNA that was produced in 2012 and becomes a more strategic
document.

7.

The refresh will review the JHWS priorities across a number of themed reports, The
chapters will be:
i. Overarching chapter reviewing the health needs of the population cut
across a number of different localities
ii. Giving children the best start in life
iii. Managing the shift to early intervention and prevention
iv. Supporting the ageing population

56
v. Improving mental health and wellbeing
vi. Learning disabilities
vii. Recommendations for priorities
8.

The JSNA Project Team is also planning to make the JSNA data more accessible
through the development of a number of topic specific dashboards linked to the
JSNA core dataset.

9.

The JSNA will review:
i. The level of need in the population
ii. Current service provision
iii. Projected service use in 3-5 years time
iv. Evidence of what works
v. User views
vi. Unmet need and service gaps
vii. Recommendations for commissioning

Consultation/Patient and Public Involvement
10. The JSNA will have to go through a period of consultation. This will be integrated into
the HWBs communications and engagement plan to ensure that this is done
effectively and efficiently.
Resource Implications
11. This is a significant project that will need resources from across the council. It is also
essential that intelligence from the CCGs is integrated into the JSNA refresh. It is
proposed that a small dedicated team of people across each team take forward the
reports development.
12. There are specific pieces of work that will require additional resource and the JHWS/
JSNA Steering Board will review this later in the year:
i. Integrating the JSNA engagement work with the HWB communications and
engagement strategy
ii. Redevelopment of the web pages used for the JSNA
iii. Specific support around JSNA dashboard development
13. There are still significant gaps in the evidence base, particularly with respect to:
i. Protected characteristics
ii. User views
iii. Community assets
It is proposed that there needs to be a greater focus on these areas going forwards
and a way to ensure that these gaps are filled with relevant local and national
evidence in the future.
Timetable for Decisions
14. This work needs to start in August 2014.

57
Conclusions/Recommendations
15. The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to:
a. Approve the approach set out in this report
b. Review the content proposals proposed within this report under (8), (9) and (10)
and confirm that this approach is acceptable to the JHWS/ JSNA Steering Board
c. Confirm that the agreed approach is the right approach to underpin the refresh of
the JHWS 2016-19
Officers to Contact
Mike Sandys
Director of Public Health
Telephone: 0116 3054239
Email: Mike.sandys@leics.gov.uk
Relevant Impact Assessments
Equality and Human Rights Implications
16. The revised JSNA will be subject to an EIA.
Partnership Working and associated issues
17. The JSNA will underpin planning across all partners that commission for health and
wellbeing. This is reflected in the structure of the JHWS/ JSNA Steering Board and
the HWB.
Risk Assessment
18. There are capacity risks with respect to the scale of the project and the number of
staff that will be delivering this.
19. There are risks with the project with respect to the interdependencies within LCC and
with external stakeholders/ partners.

58

This page is intentionally left blank

59

Agenda Item 11

LEICESTERSHIRE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: 17 JULY
2014
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH
PROGRESS UPDATE - PHARMACEUTICAL NEEDS
ASSESSMENT
Purpose of Report
1.

The Health and Wellbeing Board has a statutory responsibility to prepare a
Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA) for Leicestershire and publish it
by March 2015. This paper presents information regarding the background
and purpose, governance, consultation requirements and overview of
proposed content and timescales

Background and purpose of the PNA
2.

The purpose of the PNA is to:
• Identify the pharmaceutical services currently available and
assess the need for pharmaceutical services in the future;
• inform the planning and commissioning of pharmacy services by
identifying which services should be commissioned for local
people, within available resources, and where these services
should be;
• inform decision making in response to applications made to
NHS England by pharmacists and dispensing doctors to provide
a new pharmacy. The organisation that will make these
decisions is NHS England.

3.

The last PNA for Leicestershire was produced in 2010 by the then
Leicestershire County and Rutland Primary Care Trust. The responsibility
shifted to Health and Wellbeing Boards in the general reforms embodied in
the Health and Social Care Act (2012). The NHS (Pharmaceutical Services
and Local Pharmaceutical Services) Regulations 2013 set out the legislative
basis for developing and updating PNAs and can be found at
http://www.dh.gov.uk/health/2013/02/pharmaceutical-services-regulations/

4.

The PNA is a statutory document that is used by NHS England to agree
changes to the commissioning of local pharmaceutical services. As such, if
NHS England receive a legal challenge to the services they commission
based on the PNA, the local authority could also be part of that legal
challenge. As such it is essential that the process that is followed meets the
legislation that is set out and the PNA is a robust document.

5.

There are specific requirements for consultation which will be considered
below.

60

6.

The PNA will need to be signed-off by the Health and Wellbeing Board by
the end of March 2015.

Governance
7.

Arrangements for governance of the production of the PNA were approved
by the Joint Health and Wellbeing Board / JSNA Steering Board. The key
features are as follows:
•

Interagency PNA Project Team - Because many of the relationships
required for the PNA are Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland (LLR)
wide – involving representation from NHS England Area Team, the
Leicestershire Pharmaceutical Committee, Local Professional Network
for Pharmacists and the Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland Local
Medical Committee - a PNA Project Team has been established to
support this work across the three Health and Wellbeing Boards,
provide mutual assistance, identify any economies of scale that can be
delivered through joint work and to ensure that there is an effective
process for the development of the PNA. It should however be clear
that there will be separate PNAs which will reflect local needs and
priorities for each of Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland and each
will be signed off by the respective Health and Wellbeing Board.

•

The terms of reference and membership of the PNA Project Team
were approved by the Joint Health and Wellbeing Board / JSNA
Steering Board.

•

Accountability and sign-off - the Joint Health and Wellbeing Board /
JSNA Steering Board will approve the pre-consultation draft version of
the PNA and provide assurance to the Health and Wellbeing Board
that the final PNA is an accurate reflection of the pharmaceutical needs
of the population and has been developed using robust processes. The
PNA Project Team will report regularly to the Joint Health and
Wellbeing Board / JSNA Steering Board and submit the preconsultation draft PNA for approval in September 2014.

•

Resourcing - The principal resourcing for the development of the PNA
is provided by the Leicestershire County Council Public Health Team,
with information and advice provided through the PNA Project Team by
NHS England, the LPC, CCGs and others

•

Conflict of interest - All members of the PNA Project Team have signed
a declaration regarding confidentiality and any conflict of interest they
may have.

61

Consultation
8.

The PNA is subject to a 60 day statutory consultation period which will start
in the second half of September 2014. Regulation 8 of the Pharmaceutical
Services Regulations specifies that the Health and Wellbeing Board must
consult with the following :•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•
9.

the Local Pharmaceutical Committee
the Local Medical Committee
any persons on the pharmaceutical lists and any dispensing doctors
list for its area
any LPS chemist in its area with whom the NHS England has made
arrangements for the provision of any local pharmaceutical services
Healthwatch, and any other patient, consumer or community group
in its area which in the view of the Health and Wellbeing Board has
an interest in the provision of pharmaceutical services in its area;
any NHS trust or NHS foundation trust in its area
the NHS England
any neighbouring HWB.

Health and Wellbeing Boards must consult the above at least once during
the process of developing the PNA. Those being consulted can be directed
to a website address containing the draft PNA but can, if they request, be
sent an electronic or hard copy version.

10. The draft PNA will be published on the Leicestershire County Council
Website and views invited more widely than that of only the statutory
consultees. The three local authorities have also commissioned
engagement support to supplement the consultation mechanisms of each
local authority through GEM CSU which will include an engagement plan
that seeks user and stakeholders views as part of the development of the
PNA and which fulfils the requirements of the statutory consultation.
Content and Timescales
11. The regulations and guidance provide guidance on content and this has
been reflected in the overview of proposed content of the PNA provided in
Appendix B. Appendix B also provides the project timescales. The project
plan is tight with respect to delivering a signed off PNA by the 31st March
2015. The PNA Project Team will monitor this and report any issues of
concern to Joint Health and Wellbeing Board / JSNA Steering Board.
Equality Impact Assessment
12. The PNA will be subject to an EIA.

62

Recommendations
It is recommended:
•
•

That the report be noted;
That further progress reports be presented to the Board along with the final
Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment report in March 2015 for approval.

Officers to Contact
Mike Sandys, Public Health mike.sandys@leics.gov.uk 0116 3055439
Janine Dellar, Public Health Janine.dellar@leics.gov.uk 0116 3054257
Appendices:
Appendix A – Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment Project Team, Terms of
Reference
Appendix B – Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment – Working Outline and
Timescale

63

APPENDIX A
LEICESTER CITY COUNCIL, LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL,
RUTLAND COUNTY COUNCIL
PHARMACEUTICAL NEEDS ASSESSMENT
PROJECT TEAM
TERMS OF REFERENCE
Purpose:
The Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA) is a legal duty of the Health and
Wellbeing Board (HWB) and each HWB will need to publish its own revised PNA
for its area by 1st April 2015.
The purpose of this project team is to identify opportunities to work together
across Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland to jointly develop PNA across the
three HWBs and to identify areas where there are key benefits to working
together.
The team will set the timetable for the development of the PNA, agree the format
and content of the PNA and ensure that each PNA fulfils statutory duties around
consultation for the PNA.
The team will be a task and finish group, meeting between March 2014 and
March 2015.
Key responsibilities:
• To oversee the PNA process across the three Health and Wellbeing Board
areas
• To ensure that the development of the PNA meets the statutory duties of the
HWBs
o

•
•
•
•
•
•

To support the three HWBs in the development of their PNAs by working
collaboratively across the LLR area to ensure that the evidence base is
effective and joined up to better support NHS England, CCGs and Local
Authorities in their commissioning decisions

To ensure active engagement from all stakeholders
To communicate to a wider audience how the PNA is being developed
To ensure that the PNA addresses issues of provision and identifies need
To map current provision of pharmaceutical services
To identify any gaps in pharmaceutical provision
To map any future provision

Governance:
The three Health and Wellbeing Boards are each responsible for ensuring that
there is a PNA for its area. The governance is as follows:
• Leicester City Council – The Leicester Joint Integrated Commissioning Board
(JICB) has responsibility on behalf of the Leicester Health and Wellbeing

64

Board with ensuring the PNA is conducted according to the legislation. There
will be direct reporting between this group and the JICB.
•

Leicestershire County Council – the Health and Wellbeing Board have tasked
the JHWS/ JSNA Steering Board with ensuring the PNA is conducted
according to the legislation and there will be direct reporting between this
meeting and the JHWS/ JSNA Steering Board

•

Rutland County Council – the Health and Wellbeing Board have tasked the
Executive Group with ensuring that the PNA is conducted according to the
legislation and there will be direct reporting between this meeting and the
Executive.

•

The project team will be chaired by the lead for PNA at Leicester City Council.

PNA Project Team membership:
•

Local Authority PNA Leads

Rod Moore, Leicester City Council , Chair
Janine Dellar, Leicestershire County Council
Katy Lynch/ Gabi Price, Rutland County Council
•

NHS England

Salim Isaak, Pharmacy Contracts Manager, NHS England
•

Local Pharmaceutical Committee

Rosemary Plum, Chief Officer and Secretary
•

Local Professional Network for Pharmacists

Avril McDermot
•

Clinical Commissioning Groups

Phyllis Navti, Medicines Management, East Leicestershire and Rutland CCG
Jasmeen Islam, Medicines Management, West Leicestershire CCG
Lesley Gant, Medicines Management, Leicester City CCG
•

HealthWatch

To be confirmed
•

Public Health Intelligence leads

Helen Reeve, Leicester City Council
Carrie Pailthorpe, Leicestershire County Council
Gabbi Price, Leicestershire County Council
•

Local Medical Committee

GP representative to be confirmed
NB: Membership will be reviewed regularly and may be extended by agreement
of the Steering Board members

65

Frequency of meetings: five meetings to be arranged – March 2014, April 2014,
June 2014, September 2014, December 2014.
Additional meetings may be required between March 2014 and June 2014 as this
will be the main development phase of the PNA.
Support arrangements:
The meetings will be minuted with support alternating between Leicester City and
Leicestershire County Council.
Confidentiality
An undertaking of confidentiality will be signed by non-Local Authority employed
group members.
During the period of membership of the Steering Group members may have
access to information designated by the Local Authorities or other members as
being of a confidential nature and which must not be divulged, published or
disclosed without prior written consent. Improper use of or disclosure of
confidential information will be regarded as a serious disciplinary matter and will
be referred back to the employing organisation. For the avoidance of doubt as to
whether an agenda item is confidential all papers will be marked as confidential
before circulation to the group members.
Declarations of Interest
Where there is an item to be discussed, where a member could have a
commercial or financial interest, the interest is to be declared and formally
recorded in the minutes of the meeting.

66

APPENDIX B
PHARMACUETICAL NEEDS ASSESSMENT – WORKING
OUTLINE AND TIMESCALE
Purpose
1. To support local commissioners in deciding on the provision of NHS funded
services through community pharmacies in Leicester. These services are part
of the local healthcare provision and affect NHS and Local Authority budgets.
2. To support the NHS England-Leicestershire and Lincolnshire Area Team in
the determination of market entry decisions.
3. To provide a robust governance framework should a market entry decision
are contested or challenged legally by an applicant or by existing NHS
contractors.
4. To provide a source of relevant reference to Leicester, Leicestershire and
Rutland local authorities, clinical commissioning groups and NHS England for
the commissioning of any future of local pharmaceutical services.
Publication Outline
The PNA will review and include:
•

Existing pharmacy provision and services including dispensing, health
care and lifestyle advice, medicines reviews and information and
implementation of public health messages and services.

•

Dispensing by GP surgeries.

•

Services available in neighbouring Health and Wellbeing Board areas that
could affect the need for services.

•

Demographics of the relevant population shown as a whole and more
specifically by locality with clear indication of needs specific to each area.

•

Gaps in the provision of services, taking into account future requirements,
that could be met by providing more pharmacies or pharmacy services.

•

Local area maps locating pharmacies and pharmaceutical services.

The PNA will not include:
•

Prison pharmaceutical services;

67

•

Hospital pharmacies.

The published document will cover the following key areas of review (this
list is a guide and will evolve alongside the development of report):
1. Context for the Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment
2. Description of current services
2.1. Essential Services
• Dispensing
• Repeat Dispensing
• Disposal of Unwanted Medication
• Promotion of Healthy Lifestyles
• Sign Posting
• Support for Self Care
• Clinical Governance
2.2. Advanced Services – these are optional services that are
commissioned nationally by NHS England through the core
contract
• Medicine Use Review (MUR)
• New Medicines Services (NMS)
• Appliance use reviews (AUR)
• Stoma Appliance Customisation Service
2.3. Enhanced Services which are locally commissioned(list is an
example)
• Out of Hours Services
• Supply of Palliative Care Drugs
• Minor Ailment Scheme
• Advice and Support to Care Homes
• Emergency Hormonal Contraception (EHC)
• Chlamydia Screening
• Stop Smoking Services
• Alcohol Brief Interventions
• NHS Health Checks
• Flu vaccinations
• Supervised Consumption
• Needle Exchange
• Healthy living pharmacys
2.4. Pharmacies facilities
• Wheelchair access
• Access to disabled car parking within 100m
• Private consultation rooms
• Customer toilets
• IT facilities
• Foreign languages spoken

68

2.5. Different types of pharmacy contract
• Internet/distance selling
• 100 hour dispensing
• Dispensing practices
• Dispensing appliance contractors
• One-Stop primary care centres
• Cross-border pharmacies affecting local population
• Hospital pharmacy discharge medication arrangements
• Prison pharmacy arrangements
• Rurality
3.

Each local authority will produce an overarching health needs
document as part of their JSNA process which will inform the PNA.
3.1. Local Health Needs
• This will be the section that identifies the health needs that need
to inform the commissioning of the pharmaceutical needs
assessment – so the interpretation of the health needs
document into the services that can be commissioned through
community pharmacy
• For example, mapping of teenage pregnancy hotspot wards to
EHC provision.
• Include a review of patients that are not within a 10 minute drive
time or a 20 minute walk time of a pharmacy
• Leicestershire and Rutland need to include a section on rurality
and the changes to the areas designated as rural linked to the
existing PNA

4. Changes to demography, services, etc that will effect pharmaceutical
needs
• Demographic changes
• Planning intentions and housing developments
• Care homes and retirement villages
• Issues such as the impact of the co-operative pharmacy plans
5. Key Strategic Priorities
• Local Authority JHWS
• NHS England Primary Care Strategy
• Better Care Fund
• Better Care Together 5 year strategy
• CCG 5 year plans
6. Neighbouring and Regional Services
7. Engagement
8. Conclusions
9. Recommendations

69

10. Equality Impact Assessment
11. Table of Abbreviations/Glossary
12. Appendices

Implementation

Project Schedule – Under Development
Stage 1 – Project implementation (1st - 31st March 2014)

Milestone
Formally initiate project
Establish Project Team
Set up project templates
Confirm recruitment of key project team
members

Complete
24 March
24th March
24th March
31st March
th

Stage 2 – Stakeholder Consultation & Initial Document Drafts
(1st April – 15th August 2014)

Milestone
Draft PNA template (contents) agreed
Draft risk register
Develop engagement plan
Equality Impact Assessment
1st draft PNA document
Communications plan in place

COMPLETE
2 May 2014
2nd May 2014
17th June 2014
nd

Stage 3 – Final Document Draft, Approval & Publication
(16th August 2014 – 31st March 2015)

2nd draft PNA – Full Document
Start 60 day consultation
End of consultation period
Revised draft PNA document
Health and Wellbeing Board sign off (Thursday

70

26 March 2015)
PNA document published

31st March 2015

71

Agenda Item 12

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: 17 JULY 2014
REPORT OF LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
COMMUNITIES STRATEGY
Purpose of Report
1. The purpose of this report is to seek the Board’s comments on the County
Council’s draft Communities Strategy, which is attached as Appendix A to this
report. The draft Strategy sets out how the Council will address three specific
priorities:
Priority 1: Building the resilience and capacity of communities to support
themselves and vulnerable individuals and families - thus reducing demand
on public services
Priority 2: Supporting community groups to take over relevant services,
including those currently delivered by the County Council, and to work more
closely alongside us to design and deliver services
Priority 3: Developing voluntary and community sector organisations in
Leicestershire as effective providers in a mixed, diverse market which
supports delivery of our service devolution and support for vulnerable people
priorities, and effective commissioning of the sector
2. It is felt that there are a number of important links between the ambitions set out
this Strategy and the role and remit of the Health and Wellbeing Board.
Policy Framework and Previous Decisions
3. The County Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 2014/15 –
2017/18, including the 2014/15 revenue budget and capital programme, was
approved by the County Council on 19 February 2014. The MTFS sets out a new
vision for the County Council and a new Target Operating Model (TOM) which
reflects the imperative to adopt a much more integrated approach to prevention
and early intervention so that fewer people are reliant on costly public services.
4. The County Council’s Strategic Plan was approved by the Council on 21 May
2014. It sets out high level priorities and supporting actions and targets for the
Authority over the next four years. The Transformation Programme, approved by
the Cabinet on 6 May, sets out how the Council will transform both services and
the ways it operates to deliver its priorities and meet financial challenges. The
programme also highlights the need for a new relationship with communities.

72

5. As a detailed plan for supporting Leicestershire communities, the Communities
Strategy aligns closely to both the Transformation Programme and Strategic
Plan.
6. The County Council Cabinet approved the draft Communities Strategy for a 10
week consultation period, from 23 June to 1 September, at its meeting on June
17.
Background
7. The Council has a longstanding track record of working in partnership with its
communities and ‘helping them to help themselves’, including through its
previous Big Society and Communities in Charge initiatives. In 2010, the Council
worked with partners, local community groups and voluntary sector organisations
to develop and agree four Leicestershire aspirations:
•
•
•
•

Everyone can be involved in their community
Everyone has opportunities to influence decisions that affect them
Local people are able to shape and deliver public services
Local people and organisations grow the Big Society together

8. However, there is now less money, increasing demand for services and major
changes to both public services and the welfare system are in train. The
combined effect of these changes on communities is that fewer services will be
available to fewer people and there are likely to be more vulnerable people at
risk.
9. In response to the more challenging financial climate, the Council has developed
a new Communities Strategy. This moves away from the generic aspirations set
out in paragraph 7, to instead focus on working with communities to reduce
demand for services, supporting communities to work alongside the Council to
deliver services/take on devolved service delivery and repositioning the voluntary
sector as part of a vibrant and effective market that supports the Council in
delivering its ambitions.
10. Significant change is required in order to achieve the required savings whilst
protecting the most vulnerable individuals and communities. It is therefore
essential that the Council works with partners in the public, private and voluntary
and community sectors to reduce demand for services through prevention and
early intervention approach and empowers communities to work alongside it to
deliver key services to Leicestershire citizens.
Proposals/Options
11. The diagram below sets out the four distinct, but closely connected,
dimensions to our approach to working with communities. These are
described in detail, working from the top of the diagram:

73

Interface between services and communities/individuals
12. The interface between services and communities/individuals, level four on the
diagram, will become increasingly important over the coming months and
years. There are a number of different ‘enablers’ within this interface, one of
which is Local Area Co-ordination (LAC). LAC is a key dimension of the
unified prevention approach at the heart of the Better Care Plan and will be
tested in eight learning sites from autumn 2014. Local Area Coordinators
(LACs) will be based within the community, have close links to the local GP
practice(s), work with between 50-65 individuals and their families at any time
and provide a vital interface between vulnerable individuals/families, services
and communities. They are a single, accessible point of contact, identifying
and supporting vulnerable people, particularly those with disabilities, the frail
elderly and those with mental health issues, before they hit crisis.
Priorities
13. The three level in the diagram reflects our three priorities:
•

•

•

a longer term ‘demand management’ role, which involves building
capacity and resilience of local communities to support themselves and
vulnerable individuals and families;
supporting community groups to take over relevant services, including
those currently delivered by the County Council, and to work more
closely alongside us to design and deliver services
an intention to developing voluntary and community sector
organisations in Leicestershire as effective providers in a mixed,
diverse market which supports delivery of our service devolution and

74

support for vulnerable people priorities, and effective commissioning of
the sector
‘Building blocks’
14. The second level shows the ‘building blocks’ of the Communities Strategy.
These are the things that local voluntary organisations, Town and Parish
Councils, community groups and partner organisations have told us need to
be in place in order for communities and the voluntary sector to be able to
work with us to deliver our priorities:

Strong and Resilient Communities…
•

understand community needs and priorities

•

engage actively with public services

•

communicate effectively with service providers

•

have active local councils and residents groups

•

nurture a network of champions

•

support formal and informal volunteering

•

operate a wide range of activities from one or more community ‘hub’

•

have access to the right funding, support and training

Role of individuals
15. The final level is about how we encourage individuals to make better choices,
including how to live healthier lives and how and where to live. We also want
to encourage people to take greater responsibility for themselves and others,
including by improving their physical and emotional wellbeing, to reduce the
risk that they will need to rely on services in the future.
Consultations/Patient and Public Involvement
16. The consultation on the draft Communities Strategy runs for a ten week
period between 23 June and 1 September 2014. This will enable a final
version to be considered by the Council’s Cabinet on 14 October 2014. All
members of the County Council will be consulted, along with LCC staff, Town
and Parish Councils, community groups, voluntary sector organisations and
public sector partners and stakeholders.
17. The consultation will seek views on the draft Strategy document as a whole,
the three identified priorities and eight ‘building blocks’, and on specific
aspects of the outline delivery plan. As outlined above, this will include

75

questions about the best way for the Council to engage with communities and
their representatives in the future.
Resource Implications
18. A number of the Council’s budgets will be aligned to the final Communities
Strategy, including a range of Voluntary Sector contracts and grant funding
arrangements. The Communities Strategy has a role to play in terms of
establishing the role of communities in all relevant future transformation and
service change proposals.
19. The repositioning of the funding and staffing resource currently used to support
Community Forums will ensure robust engagement with communities, residents,
stakeholders and partners around the Council’s transformation agenda.
Timetable for Decisions
20. The 10-week consultation period on the draft Strategy runs from 23 June to 1
September 2014.
21. A further report, summarising the consultation findings including any
comments from this Board and proposed changes to the draft Strategy, will be
presented to the Council’s Cabinet on 14th October 2014.
Conclusions
22. The draft Strategy represents a move away from generic support for all
communities in Leicestershire towards a more nuanced approach, focusing on
new ways of working with communities to utilise the Council’s reduced
resources to best effect. The consultation exercise will help the Council to
develop the final Strategy and refine the outline delivery plan.
23. There are a number of obvious links to the work of the Health and Wellbeing
Board, not least the emphasis on individuals taking responsibility for
themselves, including their own health and well-being, communities
supporting vulnerable individuals and families in a preventative/early
intervention capacity and ensuring an effective interface between services
and communities, including through Local Area Coordination.
24. Comments are therefore sought from the Board on the draft Communities
Strategy.
Background Papers
Cabinet 12th June 2012 Final Report of the Scrutiny Review Panel on the Big
Society
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/Published/C00000135/M00003392/AI00031496/$BBigSocietyPanelReport.doc.pdf

Cabinet 16th January 2013 Communities in Charge Programme
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/Published/C00000135/M00003628/AI00033436/$Hcommunitiesinchargeprogramme.doc.pdf

76

Circulation under the Local Issues Alert Procedure
25. A copy of the Cabinet report was sent to all Members of the County Council
under the Members News in Brief service.
Officers to Contact
Nicole Rickard, Interim Head of Policy and Communities
0116 305 6977
nicole.rickard@leics.gov.uk
Tom Purnell, Acting Assistant Chief Executive
0116 305 7019
tom.purnell@leics.gov.uk
List of Appendices
Appendix A – Draft Communities Strategy
Appendix B – Equalities and Human Rights Impact Assessment

Relevant Impact Assessments
Equal Opportunities Implications
An Initial Equalities and Human Rights Assessment has been carried out on the
Strategy. This is attached as Appendix B.
Partnership Working and Associated Issues
It is anticipated that the County Council will work with partners to deliver specific
aspects of the Communities Strategy, including through the Stronger
Communities Board.

77

Leicestershire’s future
The plan for change

Have your say on our proposed
Communities Strategy
Leicestershire County Council
Working in partnership with communities
June 2014

Local
Library

We’re consulting the public on this proposed strategy from 23 June
to 1 September 2014. Your feedback is important and will inform
the final version of the strategy, and help to develop a delivery plan.
Please have your say at www.leics.gov.uk/communities_strategy

Leicestershire’s future

78

Proposed Communities Strategy

What is the Communities Strategy?
The Leicestershire Communities Strategy sets out the way in which Leicestershire County Council
proposes to work with communities in the coming months and years.
The financial challenges facing the Council mean that budgets to provide support to all communities
in the County are being reduced at a time when these communities are being asked to deal with the
practical impacts of a range of funding reductions and service withdrawals in their local area
The council therefore proposes to focus the resources still available to it on helping communities to
support the individuals and families who are most in need, and enabling community groups to provide
services for their communities, including services that the county council can no longer afford to
provide.
We have identified eight ‘building blocks’ – the things that need to be in place for communities to be
strong and resilient. We are proposing changes to ensure that the support we can provide through these
‘building blocks’ helps us to deliver the following two priorities:
Priority 1: Helping communities to support vulnerable people
Priority 2: Helping communities to design and deliver services
To achieve that, we also need to ensure we enable and support the voluntary sector in Leicestershire to
develop its potential further – which is why our third priority is:
Priority 3: Effective commissioning of, and support for, the voluntary sector.
We welcome your views - your feedback will inform the final version of the strategy and help us to
develop a delivery plan. We’re consulting with the public on this proposal from 23 June to
1 September 2014.
Please have your say on the proposals at:
www.leics.gov.uk/communities_strategy

Local
Library

p2

Leicestershire’s future

79

Proposed Communities Strategy

Contents
1. Foreword
CASE STUDY: Market Harborough Dementia Café

4
5

2. Overview

6

3. The case for change

8

CASE STUDY: Long Clawson Good Neighbour Scheme

4. The background
CASE STUDY: A community run library

5. The Communities Model
CASE STUDY: Anstey & Thurcaston footpath

6. Delivering the strategy
CASE STUDY: Birstall Youth Café

10

11
12

13
18

19
23

Four case studies have been included within this document as examples of activity initiated and
led by communities in Leicestershire and beyond.
We have chosen two case studies that demonstrate the role that communities can play in
supporting vulnerable people and two different examples of service delivery which communities
have taken on.
The case studies are for illustrative purposes only.

p3

Leicestershire’s future

80

Proposed Communities Strategy

1. Foreword
In my role as Cabinet Lead Member for Communities, I am pleased
to be able to introduce the council’s new approach to working with
the communities of Leicestershire. This is a period of change and
challenge for all organisations in the public sector, with shrinking
budgets, growing demand for services and increased customer
expectations.

Councillor Pam Posnett,
Cabinet Lead Member Communities

Our approach to working with communities has always been to
enable and empower local areas, in that we have tried to support
communities to tackle the issues that matter to them. The current
climate means that we need to make some difficult decisions and
prioritise community activity that supports us in delivering our
priorities, whilst doing what we can to continue to help communities
to help themselves.
The council is in the process of transforming the way in which it plans
and delivers services. We are therefore asking the communities of
Leicestershire to work with us to ensure that we maximise the impact
of the reduced funding available to us. Truthfully, this will mean
communities doing more (for example running services and recruiting
volunteers to support people in need), but will also mean that
communities have greater influence over services, new opportunities
to participate and, ultimately, more control over their own destiny.
Councillor Pam Posnett, Cabinet Lead Member - Communities

p4

Leicestershire’s future

81

Proposed Communities Strategy

Building the resilience of communities to reduce demand on high cost services

CASE STUDY: DEMENTIA CAFÉ – MARKET
HARBOROUGH
Background
Harborough has the highest proportion of the
65 plus age group in the County, and the NHS
estimates that by 2025 10-15% of families
within Leicestershire will experience some form
of dementia. During the formative stages of the
project, volunteers worked hard to assess the
need for a ‘new’ service and spoke to a lot of
care groups over a wide spectrum.
A local initiative to support those newly diagnosed with dementia and their families was
established in 2011. Sessions provide an opportunity for people to get together, with those
they care for, to have time out, to share information and meet others. Since March 2011
more than 120 people have signed up as members and a steady stream of new members are
finding their way to our door.
Developments include a members’ resource library, the delivery of memory workshops at
monthly meetings and most recently a ‘Singing for Memories’ group meets on the First
Tuesday of the month at the same venue.

Benefits
A new diagnosis of dementia is a devastating and isolating experience. The café is one of
the few facilities in Harborough district that offers support to both the cared for and carers.
Everyone is made welcome and speakers are invited along to talk on topics of interest to
members; often there are fun activities such as ‘laughing yoga’, but above all each meeting is
an opportunity for coffee, cake and conversation.
During its ‘set-up’, the café benefited from the expertise of the NHS Community Mental
Health Team (with whom the café has a partnership agreement) and Voluntary Action South
Leicestershire. On-going funding has been via a two-year sponsorship deal with Sainsbury’s
supermarket in Harborough which provided both direct funding, provisions for café meetings,
and supported a group of staff to become volunteers and help at café events. The Rotary
Club of Market Harborough and Robert Smyth Academy have also joined forces to provide a
regular Christmas Special Concert, with the school’s renowned jazz band playing.

p5

Leicestershire’s future

82

Proposed Communities Strategy

2. Overview
2.1 This strategy sets out the county council’s thinking about how we work with Leicestershire
communities (both communities of place/geography and communities of interest) in a new public
service environment. There is less money, increasing demand for services and major changes to
both public services and the welfare system are underway.
2.2 The council has a track record of empowering communities by helping them to ‘help themselves’,
including by supporting communities to identify local needs and develop their own solutions.
There are a number of existing examples of community involvement in service delivery, including
snow, flood and heritage wardens, and of volunteering in support of council services, for example
composting champions and youth offending service volunteers.
2.3 Transformational change is required within the council to balance the books yet ensure that we
are still able to protect the most vulnerable individuals and communities. It is essential that the
council works with partners in the public, private and voluntary and community sectors to reduce
demand for services and that we continue to encourage and empower communities to work
alongside us to deliver key services to Leicestershire citizens. The council’s approach is captured
in a new vision for the council: “Leading Leicestershire by working with our communities and
partners for the benefit of everyone”.
2.4 The vision is underpinned by six strategic imperatives, two of which are of particular relevance to
this strategy:


t Support and protect the most vulnerable people and communities



t Enable and support communities, individuals and families

2.5 To be successful, the council and its partners will have to focus, amongst other things, on
prevention and early intervention in order to stop problems arising (wherever possible) which, in
turn, will keep costs down. This means that we need to move away from a generic, ‘one size fits
all’ approach to something that is more targeted and responsive to community needs.
2.6 The council has therefore identified three priorities for working in partnership with communities:
t Priority 1: Building the resilience and capacity of communities to support themselves and
vulnerable individuals and families - thus reducing demand on public services
t Priority 2: Supporting community groups to take over relevant services, including those
currently delivered by the county council, and to work more closely alongside us to design
and deliver services
t Priority 3: Developing voluntary and community sector organisations in Leicestershire as
effective providers in a mixed, diverse market which supports delivery of services and
support for vulnerable people, and effective commissioning of the sector
2.7 These priorities (shown on page 6 at Level 3) underpin our approach to transforming public
services in Leicestershire. The rest of the model is shown below and the remainder of this
strategy provides more detail about our proposed approach, including case studies to illustrate the
potential opportunities for communities and the voluntary sector to work alongside us to deliver
real change across Leicestershire.

p6

83

Leicestershire’s future

Proposed Communities Strategy

Level 4

Leicestershire Communities Model

Interface between services and communities/individuals
(Includes Local Area Co-ordination, First Contact and other prevention approaches)

Level 3

Priority 1. Building the capacity of communities (including to use local assets
and networks) to enable them to support themselves and vulnerable
individuals and families
Priority 2. Supporting communities to take oer relevant services, including those
currently delivered by the council, and to work alongside us to design
and deliver services

Level 1

Individuals take responsibility and help themselves and others

1. Understand community
needs and priorities

2. Active engagement with
decision makers

3. Effective, clear and regular
communication

4. Active and Empowered
local councils

5. Network of community
champions

6. Formal and Informal
volunteers

7. Physical and virtual
community hubs

p7

8. Access to suport, advice
and training

Level 2

Priority 3. Developing voluntary and community sector organisations as effective
providers in a diverse Leicestershire market and effective commissioning
of the sector

Leicestershire’s future

84

Proposed Communities Strategy

3. The case for change
Less money
3.1 Leicestershire County Council has to save at least £110m (or a third of its current budget) by
2018. The unprecedented scale of the cuts requires us to transform completely the way in which
we deliver services, including by delivering some services in partnership with communities and
changing the way in which we commission services.

Rising demand
3.2 This challenge is compounded by rising demand and an ageing population. We are getting older,
living longer and working proportionally less over the course of our lives. The amount of time that
people are reliant on high-cost public services is increasing and costs are escalating accordingly.
The flipside of this is that there is potentially more people resource e.g. to engage in volunteering
and take on community projects.
3.3 This longevity presents a significant challenge to public services, not least where the roles of
different public agencies overlap, for example when people are moving between their homes, care
settings and hospitals. The big pressure on the NHS is on acute services in hospitals which, if
tackled effectively, will place more emphasis on primary care in home settings (where significant
local authority cuts are projected). This means that local authorities and health partners must
realign and integrate resources, working together to keep people out of high-cost hospital beds
and in their homes for longer, and there is clearly a key preventative role for communities and the
voluntary sector.

Radical reform
3.4 The Welfare State is shrinking and both schools and GP surgeries are being individually
empowered. Communities, charities and businesses are being invited to manage public services
previously only supplied by the public sector, and there is an increasing role for social enterprises
and other social businesses and for the use of new tools, including asset transfers. Inevitably, the
role of local government and the wider public sector is changing.

Demand management
3.5 As well as ensuring that we run services more efficiently and pay less for them, we need to
reduce demand – something that the public sector has struggled to do. Since its creation in
the 1940s, the NHS has undoubtedly improved the nation’s health - we live longer and fewer
conditions prove fatal - however, becoming healthier has, in fact, increased demand on health
services.
3.6 The majority of public money is spent on targeted services for vulnerable people, it is the area
of biggest growth in demand and therefore where demand management is likely to yield most
benefits. The council spends a large proportion of its budget on meeting the needs of the ageing
population, people with physical and learning disabilities and looked after children. We therefore
believe that there is a new role for communities to help to support these vulnerable individuals,
reducing or delaying their need for services.
p8

Leicestershire’s future

85

Proposed Communities Strategy

Changing services
3.7 Service provision is increasingly driven by service users. Personal budgets are used by adults and
the families of children with disabilities to purchase social care services that are more orientated
to their needs. People want to be cared for at home for as long as possible and to access services
within their local community rather than a central location.

Rethinking public services
3.8 The combined effect of these changes will be fewer public services available to fewer people. As
we focus our remaining resources on vulnerable people, less resource will be available to support
universal or generic services for all citizens in all places.
3.9 We therefore need to rethink public services - what we do, who does it and how it is done. This
includes recalibrating what people and their public services can realistically expect of each other
- if local government is doing less, communities will inevitably feel the impact, but at the same
time there is an opportunity for them to help themselves and to be supported by the county
council in doing so. This strategy sets out how Leicestershire County Council intends to work with
communities in these challenging, but also potentially rewarding, circumstances.
3.10 Communities also have a key role to play in supporting the effective commissioning of services
by the council and other agencies. They are ideally placed to help identify key local stakeholders,
understand the needs and aspirations of local people, map assets, establish priorities and to
generate and assess options to tackle priorities. At a later point they can play a role in delivering
services, or supporting their delivery, and help to evaluate progress so that services are fully
tested from a local perspective.
3.11 So, in summary, why develop a Communities Strategy?
tWe can’t deliver change solely on an organisational basis - as demonstrated by the social care and
health example on page 8, we (public sector, voluntary sector and communities) have to work, plan
and commission services together wherever possible.
tThe change can’t be solely service user based - we need to get to people before they become
vulnerable and dependent service users. Communities can help us to identify the individuals and
families at risk of vulnerability and the specific issues that they face.
tWe need to build the capacity and resilience of individuals, communities and the local voluntary
sector to reduce the number of people who need to access health and care services, thus reducing
the footfall through high cost services.
tServices will inevitably need to be more targeted – we need to move away from providing generic
support (communities may be able to step in here) and target our resources to the people and places
that most need them (i.e. where they will have maximum impact) whilst, at the same time, doing all
that we can to support others to ‘help themselves’.
tOur ambition is to deliver the ‘best possible services within the budgets available’ by working the
‘Leicestershire pound’ – we need to maximise both the sources of funding available to, and the
resources (e.g. volunteer time) available within, communities. This includes recognising the vital role
of County Councillors as ‘community champions’ and the potential role of council staff within their
own communities.
p9

86

Leicestershire’s future

Proposed Communities Strategy

Building the resilience of communities to reduce demand on high cost services

CASE STUDY: THE GOOD NEIGHBOUR
SCHEME: LONG CLAWSON
Partly funded by a £3,847 grant from the county council, the Good Neighbour Scheme
offers practical help to residents of Long Clawson in the following ways (information
taken from their website):
Q Companionship for folks who would like a chat and a cup of tea or maybe a
game of Scrabble.
Q Support while recuperating from illness with things like gardening; taking the
children to school; light housework or caring for pets; transport to hospital
appointments, doctors, opticians, hairdressers, dentists or shopping.
Q Household tasks such as changing light bulbs; replacing batteries or moving
small items of furniture.
Q Help with writing letters or filling in non-legal forms; reading to people with a
visual impairment; learning to use email and the Internet.
A co-ordinator is available to call between 8am and 8pm every day. This co-ordinator
will then arrange for one of the registered and DBS checked volunteers to provide the
support requested.

The
p10

eighbour
N
d
Sc
o
o

me
he

G

The scheme is available to everyone in the village and is a good example of how
support at an earlier stage could help prevent users requiring high cost services in
the future (for example, by helping to avoid a fall in the home which could result in
a hospital stay). It is also a service which helps reduce demand on public services
which, arguably, could not be delivered by a public service because people often only
seek help from formal services at the stage when a high cost service is required.

Leicestershire’s future

87

Proposed Communities Strategy

4. The background
4.1 We are not starting with a blank piece of paper. There are encouraging signs that individuals,
communities and the organisations working with them (including town and parish councils) are
increasingly aware of, and willing to be a part of a response to, the need to make changes to
public services.
4.2 Two recent consultations have helped to shape the approach outlined in this Strategy:
tThe county council undertook a county wide consultation on how we should reorganise our
budgets, which received over 7,200 responses from residents, stakeholders and staff
tThe county council also undertook a survey of over 140 people and organisations
to ascertain their understanding of the ’Big Society’ and expectations of the role of
communities and individuals in the future.
4.3 A message from the latter consultation neatly summarises the current situation:
“There has to be honest discussions about the reality of potential cuts to services, and
communities need to think about what they could do to protect those services that are vital to
their local area – to think about what they would be prepared to lose in favour of those that they
would not want to lose.”
4.4 There are three specific dimensions to our work around communities. The first is a longer term
‘demand management’ role - building capacity and resilience in local communities to encourage
them to find solutions that improve outcomes for vulnerable individuals and families, which
reflects the imperative to move people out of high cost services.
4.5 A shorter term priority is around the role of communities in taking over some services currently
delivered by the public sector, or working alongside the public sector to deliver services e.g.
a community could ‘top up’ a service earmarked for a reduction in hours. This involves working
with communities to identify opportunities and enabling them to develop viable alternative or
additional services.
4.6 Linked to this is our third priority which focusses on how the council works with the voluntary
sector, including our role in developing organisations in the sector as effective providers in a
mixed, diverse market that also includes individuals, communities, social businesses and the
private sector.

p11

Leicestershire’s future

88

Proposed Communities Strategy

Communities taking on services currently delivered by the county council

CASE STUDY: A COMMUNITY RUN LIBRARY:
CHALFONT ST GILES, BUCKINGHAMSHIRE
“We are a 100% volunteer organisation - all unpaid…
individuals with skills such as management, financial,
marketing and fundraising skills are all useful. The
organisation also needs access to the necessary
expertise to handle the relevant legal issues including
data protection and safeguarding.
We have around 50 volunteers from all walks of
life, mostly retired people but not exclusively so. We
operate with two volunteers on duty in the library at
any one time and typically each volunteer serves in
the library for half a day once a fortnight. The county
council provided initial library system training and we
continue to hold update training sessions as required.

What the public gets
Residents use the community library in the same way as any county library.

Q Access into a wider library network, so our users have online reservation access to over
6 million books.
Q We have increased the library’s opening hours from 20 hours to 34.5 hours per week.
Q We have increased the book stock by 60%.

Q The library’s lending has increased every year from 2007-12.

Conclusions
Our experience indicates that there are opportunities to give small libraries a new lease of life
whilst saving money.
The model that we have followed in Chalfont St Giles is not universally applicable. Our library
is small with light to moderate use. Buckinghamshire is a relatively prosperous county with a
sufficient pool of people with the time and skills to operate the local library. Trying to follow the
same model in a busy town library in a deprived area would, I think, be less likely to succeed.
Nevertheless the overriding requirement for a successful volunteer-run small library is, in my
view, a strong local community with a desire to keep the local library open. It can be done!”
Tony Hoare, Chairman of Chalfont St Giles Community Library
(A full version of this case study is available online)
p12

Leicestershire’s future

89

Proposed Communities Strategy

5. The communities model
5.1 In order to support the effective transformation of council services, each section/department of
the council will need to consider, in conjunction with the voluntary sector and representatives
of communities, the opportunity to do things differently and better. For every proposed
transformational change (i.e. a proposed change to, reduction in, or removal of service) there
should therefore be evidence that full consideration has been given to the potential role of
communities in helping to manage demand for a particular service through an early intervention
approach and/or designing and delivering this service in the future.
5.2 Additional short-term investment of resources by the county council will be required in
communities and the groups that represent them (including parish and town councils), on an
‘invest to save’ basis, to build their ambition, knowledge and capacity. The Council will also
need to provide, or enable access through our partners in the voluntary and community sector,
accessible advice and practical support (for example in recruiting and retaining volunteers) to
enable communities to take on a new or extended role.
5.3 Early and honest conversations with communities about the relative priorities of different services
that are subject to change, and about the opportunities and risks involved in delivering services
and doing things differently, will be essential.
5.4 The diagram on page 13 sets out the four dimensions to our proposed approach to working with
communities. These are described on the following page (bottom up):

p13

90

Leicestershire’s future

Proposed Communities Strategy

Level 4

Leicestershire Communities Model

Interface between services and communities/individuals
(Includes Local Area Co-ordination, First Contact and other prevention approaches)

Level 3

Priority 1. Building the capacity of communities (including to use local assets
and networks) to enable them to support themselves and vulnerable
individuals and families
Priority 2. Supporting communities to take oer relevant services, including those
currently delivered by the council, and to work alongside us to design
and deliver services

Level 1

Individuals take responsibility and help themselves and others

1. Understand community
needs and priorities

2. Active engagement with
decision makers

3. Effective, clear and regular
communication

4. Active and Empowered
local councils

5. Network of community
champions

6. Formal and Informal
volunteers

7. Physical and virtual
community hubs

p14

8. Access to suport, advice
and training

Level 2

Priority 3. Developing voluntary and community sector organisations as effective
providers in a diverse Leicestershire market and effective commissioning
of the sector

Leicestershire’s future

91

Proposed Communities Strategy

Level 1: Individuals and communities help themselves and others
The bottom, foundation level of the diagram highlights the need for all of this activity to be underpinned
by work to encourage individuals to make better choices, including how to live healthier lives and how
and where to live. We also want to encourage people to take responsibility for themselves and others,
including by supporting physical and emotional wellbeing, to reduce the risk of escalation into services.

Level 2: The ‘building blocks’
The third level shows the ‘building blocks’ of the Communities Strategy. Each of these is described in
more detail in chapter six, including proposed ‘enabling actions’.

Level 3: Our three priorities
The second level in the diagram reflects our three priorities:

Priority one: Communities support vulnerable individuals and families
ROLE OF COMMUNITIES:
Communities understand what might make individuals and families in their community vulnerable at different points
in their lives. There is a variety of informal support from friends, family and communities for vulnerable individuals
and families, and a range of community activities and events support physical and mental health and well-being and
enhance community cohesion.
ROLE OF THE COUNCIL:
There is a common, shared understanding of vulnerability and the factors that might make individuals/families
vulnerable at different life stages. Public sector partners understand and refer into the various mechanisms that are in
place to alleviate this vulnerability including First Contact, Local Area Co-ordination, Leicestershire Welfare Provision,
Dementia Friends, Keep Safe Places etc.
KEY ACTIONS:
t A shared understanding of vulnerability and the needs of vulnerable people in Leicestershire
t A vulnerability toolkit and training package
t A communication campaign to highlight what communities and individuals can do to support the vulnerable and help
reduce future vulnerability
t A holistic package of prevention-based support for vulnerable people, including Local Area Co-ordination, Leicestershire
Welfare Provision, First Contact, Dementia Friendly Communities and Keep Safe Places
t ‘Proof of concept’ of Local Area Co-ordination at eight learning sites from September 2014

p15

Leicestershire’s future

92

Proposed Communities Strategy

Priority two: Communities design and deliver services
ROLE OF COMMUNITIES:
Community groups, town and parish councils and the voluntary sector participate in the design and delivery of key
services, specifically those devolved from, or delivered in partnership with, the county council. Communities have a clear
understanding of their role and level of accountability and receive an appropriate level of advice, support and funding.
ROLE OF THE COUNCIL:
Councillors and staff understand alternative and innovative service delivery models and there is an ambition to design
and deliver relevant services in partnership with communities. There is agreement about the specific activities that
communities and the voluntary sector are best placed to deliver. A range of tools are in place to facilitate service devolution
from the council.
KEY ACTIONS:
t Commitment across the council to consider alternative service delivery models and opportunities for the involvement of
communities and the voluntary sector within all transformation and service redesign activity
t A consistent, but tailored, approach to engaging communities, town and parish councils and voluntary sector
organisations in service change planning
t A package of ‘service devolution’ support (including models, a toolkit, examples of good practice and named contacts)
t Equality and human rights ‘proofing’ of all key proposed service changes
t An agreed approach to ‘right to challenge’
t An agreed corporate approach to supporting social business models, including staff ‘spin outs’ from the council to deliver
services previously delivered ‘in house’

Priority three: Effective commissioning of the voluntary sector
ROLE OF COMMUNITIES:
Voluntary sector organisations (local, county-wide and national) are effective providers of services devolved from, or
identified as priorities by, the council. The voluntary and community sector operates as part of a vibrant and diverse
Leicestershire market that also includes individuals, communities, social businesses and the private sector. The voluntary
and community sector understands and has an opportunity to influence and shape council commissioning priorities.
ROLE OF THE COUNCIL:
The council staff commission effectively from the voluntary sector and community groups, based on a shared, populationbased view of needs and clearly defined outcomes.
KEY ACTIONS:
t The Effective Commissioning programme recognises the role of the voluntary and community sector, alongside providers
from other sectors
t Commissioning from the voluntary sector prioritises the council’s transformation priorities, including around early
intervention/prevention and service devolution
t Council commissioning realises added social, economic and environmental value
t Effective management of all contracts with voluntary and community sector organisations
t Work with the county infrastructure organisation (CIO) to develop (and potentially reposition) the voluntary and
community sector in Leicestershire

p16

Leicestershire’s future

93

Proposed Communities Strategy

Level 4: The interface between services and communities/
individuals
The interface between services and communities/individuals will become increasingly important. There
are a number of different enablers that make up this interface, one of which is Local Area Coordination
(LAC).
A ‘proof of concept’ of LAC will begin in eight learning sites across the two Clinical Commissioning
Group (CCG)* areas from summer 2014.
Local Area Coordinators (LACs) are based within the community, have close links to the local GP
practice(s), and work with between 50-65 individuals and their families at any time. They provide a
vital interface between vulnerable individuals/families, services and communities and will underpin
more intensive support such as the Supporting Leicestershire Families (SLF) programme. They are
a single, accessible point of contact, identifying and supporting vulnerable individuals and families,
particularly those with disabilities, frail older people and those with mental health issues, before they
hit crisis. Their role is to help prevent individuals and families from needing to access services, and
to provide a ‘safe landing’ when people are moving out of services, including the SLF programme safeguarding vulnerable adults, children and young people will be a key consideration . As such, they
are an important part of the new Leicestershire unified prevention offer (set out in our Better Care
Plan**).

* CCGs are groups of GPs that work together with patients, healthcare professionals and local authorities/communities to
plan and design local health services in England. They buy healthcare services incuding community health services,
rehabilitative care and planned hospital care.
** The Better Care Fund is a single budget to support health and social care services to work more closely together in local
areas.

p17

Leicestershire’s future

94

Proposed Communities Strategy

Communities taking on services currently delivered by the county council

CASE STUDY: THE ANSTEY AND THURCASTON
FOOTPATH
The need for a footpath was first raised by local
Anstey mum Emma Bown who regularly walked
her children to playgroup in Thurcaston. Before the
footpath, the shortest pedestrian route between
Thurcaston and Anstey was two miles over fields.
A potential quicker route was identified via road,
but there was no room to walk alongside and it was
hazardous with the speed limit being 60mph.

Background
Anstey Parish Council and Thurcaston & Cropston Parish Council set up a joint committee for
the delivery of the project. Organisational aspects were shared between the two parish councils.
Anstey Parish Council arranged storage and transport of the materials and got permission from
landowners to cut-back hedgerows; their Quality Parish Council status (giving them ‘the general
power of competence’) was helpful with undertaking legal aspects of the project. Thurcaston
& Cropston Parish Council provided many of the volunteers. £9,311 was secured from
Leicestershire County Council, with both parish councils contributing a further £1,000 each.
20 volunteers laid the footpath in September 2012, assisted by two excavator machine
operators.

Benefits
The two villages now benefit from being accessible by pedestrians, allowing better quality of
life for parents walking children between villages, dog walkers, joggers and children walking
home to Thurcaston from Anstey Martin High School rather than relying on lifts from parents. In
addition, there is now safe pedestrian access to the riding school and a reduction of traffic along
Anstey Lane, benefiting residents.

Support provided
Thanks to the volunteers, the project came in on time and on budget. The Co-op kindly provided
lunch for volunteers every day at a subsidised cost. E L Fencing provided their drive way for
vehicles and storage of materials and tea/coffee-making facilities were also kindly provided. Park
View Riding School allowed excess soil to be placed on their land.
The council helped to identify land-ownership, provided service reports for BT lines and
sewerage pipes, organised the road closure and looked into liability issues. A Highways Engineer
was on site each day and his expertise was invaluable. The parish councils are undertaking the
on-going maintenance of the path as detailed in a legal agreement with the council.
p18

Leicestershire’s future

95

Proposed Communities Strategy

6. Delivering the Communities Strategy
We have identified eight ‘building blocks’ that need to be in place for communities to be strong and
resilient enough to be able to support vulnerable people and service devolution. The tables below set
out the role of both communities and the county council and include examples of potential actions. As
the detail of the council’s 24 transformation priorities emerges, additional, service-specific actions will
be added into the delivery plan, which will be informed by the consultation process and in place by
October 2014:

Building block 1: Understand community needs and priorities
Role of Communities

Role of the council

Actions

Communities of ‘place’
(including town and parish
councils) and ‘interest’ have
a clear, evidence-based
understanding of the needs
and priorities of all sections
of their specific community,
particularly the most
vulnerable and hardest to
reach.

Information about community
needs/priorities is shared
effectively and enables the
council to make evidencebased decisions that are taken
on a place (not department or
organisational) basis.

t1SPWJEFBEWJDFBOETVQQPSUUP
DPNNVOJUJFTBCPVUFGGFDUJWFMZ
DBQUVSJOHDPNNVOJUZOFFET

Community champions
provide a means of accessing
up to date ‘soft’ intelligence
about specific communities
to inform service design and
transformation.

t&GGFDUJWFMZTIBSFLFZJOUFMMJHFODFPO
DPNNVOJUZOFFETBOEQSJPSJUJFTXJUI
QBSUOFSTBOEDPNNVOJUJFT
t6TFUIJTJOUFMMJHFODF BMPOHTJEF
BSBOHFPGPUIFSJOTJHIU UPNBLF
FWJEFODFCBTFEEFDJTJPOT JODMVEJOH
BSPVOETFSWJDFUSBOTGPSNBUJPO

Building block 2: Active engagement with decision makers
Role of communities

Role of the council

Actions

Communities have regular
opportunities to access and
influence service providers and
decision makers before key
decisions are made, including
bespoke forums to bring
communities and voluntary
sector organisations together
when relevant.

Engagement with communities
is targeted around council
priorities and includes decision
makers and community
champions.

t&NCFEBOFXFOHBHFNFOUNPEFM
GPSUIFDPVODJMJOUSBOTGPSNBUJPO
BOETFSWJDFQMBOOJOH QBSUPG
UIF$POTVMUBUJPO $PNNVOJUZ
&OHBHFNFOUBOE$PNNVOJDBUJPOT
4USBUFHZ

A network of “community
champions” act as a conduit
between service providers and
the community.

p19

‘Public’ meetings are held on
issues identified by the council
and the community as a
priority and, wherever possible,
this engagement is coordinated across the council to
avoid ‘engagement overload’.

An independently facilitated
Leicestershire Equalities
Challenge Group provides
effective external challenge.

t"HSFFACFTUQSBDUJDFGPSFOHBHFNFOU
BSPVOETFSWJDFEFWPMVUJPOBOE
USBOTGPSNBUJPOPQQPSUVOJUJFT
t1SPWJEFUIFWPMVOUBSZBOEDPNNVOJUZ
TFDUPSXJUIPQQPSUVOJUJFTUPTIBSF
UIFADPNNVOJUZWPJDFXJUIEFDJTJPO
NBLFST
t5IF-FJDFTUFSTIJSF&RVBMJUJFT
$IBMMFOHF(SPVQQSPWJEFTSPCVTU
DIBMMFOHFPGBMMLFZQPMJDZBOETFSWJDF
DIBOHFQSPQPTBMT JODMVEJOHTDSVUJOZ
PG&RVBMJUZBOE)VNBO3JHIUT
*NQBDU"TTFTTNFOUT

96

Leicestershire’s future

Proposed Communities Strategy

Building Block 3: Effective, clear and regular communication
Role of communities

Role of the council

Actions

Communities receive
information through a range
of mechanisms that invite
responses and encourage an
honest and open on-going
dialogue. Communities know
how to put forward ideas for
doing things differently and
how to raise concerns or
problems.

The council and its
partners are much better at
communicating joint messages
and breaking down the barriers
for communities in terms of
who does what.

t%FWFMPQBDPNNVOJUJFT
DPNNVOJDBUJPOTQMBO

Timely feedback is provided
on how things have changed
as a result of community
input, even if the response is
not what communities want
to hear.

Information obtained via
consultations is used to shape
future services and inform
commissioning decisions.

t&TUBCMJTIBTIBSFE DPSQPSBUFWJFX
PGUIFNBJODPNNVOJDBUJPOT
DIBOOFMTUPBOEGSPNDPNNVOJUJFT
FH-FJDFTUFSTIJSF.BUUFST GPSVN
BMFSUT TPDJBMNFEJB QBSUOFSBOE
DPNNVOJUZOFXTMFUUFST FOFXT
CVMMFUJOT
t6TFUIFTFDPNNVOJDBUJPODIBOOFMT
UPTIBSFBOEQSPNPUFCFTUQSBDUJDF

A network of community
champions and a range of
other mechanisms help to
get key messages out into
the community, including to
encourage behaviour change
and share inspirational
examples of good practice.

Building Block 4: Active and empowered town and parish councils
Role of communities

Role of the council

Actions

Town and parish councils are
actively involved in supporting
vulnerable people and
delivering services devolved
from the council.

Departments recognise and
value the role of local councils
and have a good relationship
with both the LRALC and
individual councils.

t"MJHOUIF-FJDFTUFSTIJSFBOE3VUMBOE
"TTPDJBUJPOPG-PDBM$PVODJMTDPOUSBDU
XJUIDPVODJMUSBOTGPSNBUJPOQSJPSJUJFT

A number of ‘vanguard
councils’ are working with us to
develop innovative projects that
tackle shared priorities. These
councils are able to access
small sums of funding on an
‘invest to save’ basis

There is on-going dialogue
through regular meetings and
events and clear evidence of
local council involvement in
both designing and delivering a
wide range of priority services.

p20

t8PSLXJUIBTFUPGAWBOHVBSEUPXO
BOEQBSJTIDPVODJMTUPTVQQPSUEFMJWFSZ
PGUIFTFQSJPSJUJFT JODMVEJOHCZUFTUJOH
OFXTFSWJDFEFMJWFSZBQQSPBDIFTBOE
NPEFMT
t1MBOBOEEFMJWFSKPJOUFWFOUTBOE
DPOGFSFODFTUPFOHBHFBOEJOGPSN
MPDBMDPVODJMT
t$PPSEJOBUFDPNNVOJDBUJPOXJUIMPDBM
DPVODJMT XJUIDPOTJTUFOUDPSQPSBUF
NFTTBHFT

Leicestershire’s future

97

Proposed Communities Strategy

Building Block 5: Network of community champions
Role of Communities

Role of the council

Actions

Within each community
is a number of voluntary
‘community champions’ who
are trained and supported
to work with their county
councillors in championing
community and individual
needs and signposting to selfhelp and early intervention
support.

This network of champions,
working with their county
councillor ‘champion’ is
valued by the council and
partners who work through
them to access communities,
using their knowledge
and connections to better
understand and respond to
community needs.

t$BQBDJUZCVJMEJOHXPSLXJUIDPVOUZ
DPVODJMMPSToJODMVEJOHUSBJOJOHBOE
TVQQPSUUPFOBCMFUIFNUPMFBE
BOEDIBNQJPODPNNVOJUJFTUISPVHI
DIBMMFOHJOHUJNFT
t*EFOUJGZ USBJOBOETVQQPSUWPMVOUFFS
DPNNVOJUZADIBNQJPOTUPXPSL
BMPOHTJEFUIFOFUXPSLPGDPVOUZ
DPVODJMMPST
t3FGPDVTUIF5IJOL-FJDFTUFSTIJSF
NPEFMPOUSBJOJOHGPSDPVODJMMPST 
UPXOBOEQBSJTIDPVODJMTBOEPUIFS
DPNNVOJUZADIBNQJPOT

County, district and town/
parish councillors play an
effective role in leading their
communities through change
and stimulate social action to
tackle community priorities.

Building Block 6: Formal and informal volunteers
Role of communities

Role of the council

Actions

There is a range of volunteers
within each community who
provide informal support
for individuals/families or
community activities and
participate in more formal
volunteering e.g. Good
Neighbour schemes and
service delivery.

All council departments and
partners value and support
volunteers and work together
to provide a joined up and
coherent range of volunteering
opportunities which prioritise
service devolution and
support for vulnerable people.

t *OUFHSBUJPOPGWPMVOUFFSJOH
UPTVQQPSUUIFDPVODJMT
TFSWJDFT JODMVEJOHDPOTJTUFOU
DPNNVOJDBUJPO WPMVOUFFS
NBOBHFSTOFUXPSLBOE
JNQMFNFOUBUJPOPGUIFDPVODJMT
7PMVOUFFSJOH1PMJDZ
t $PPSEJOBUJPOPGWPMVOUFFSJOH
BDSPTT-FJDFTUFSTIJSFUISPVHI
JNQMFNFOUBUJPOPGUIFQBSUOFSTIJQ
7PMVOUFFSJOH4USBUFHZBOE"DUJPO
1MBO
t 3FDSVJUA$PNNVOJUZ$PBDIFT 
A%JGGFSFODF.BLFSTBOEPUIFS
WPMVOUFFSTUPTVQQPSUWVMOFSBCMF
QFPQMFBOETFSWJDFEFWPMVUJPO
t &YQMPSFOPOmOBODJBMJODFOUJWFT
CFOFmUTGPSWPMVOUFFSTFH
USBJOJOHSFXBSETSFDPHOJUJPO

People understand why
volunteering, particularly to
support vulnerable people
and/or to retain services, is
important, and it is easy for
them to volunteer. They feel
valued and supported in their
volunteering role.

p21

Volunteering is part of a
package of support to assist
those furthest from the labour
market back into work.
The efforts of volunteers are
recognised, celebrated and
rewarded.

98

Leicestershire’s future

Proposed Communities Strategy

Building Block 7: Physical and virtual community hubs
Role of communities

Role of the council

Actions

Ideally, in each community
there is at least one physical
hub, providing a focal point
for a range of community
activities and services,
including those that support
vulnerable people.

Wherever possible the
council and partners actively
support and use these ‘hubs’,
exploring opportunities
to harness their value by
considering service colocation to bring together
community and public
services.

t.BQUIFAIVCTJOFBDIDPNNVOJUZ
BDSPTT-FJDFTUFSTIJSF
t&YQMPSFGVSUIFSPQQPSUVOJUJFTGPS
DPMPDBUJPOPGTFSWJDFTBOEEFWPMWFE
TFSWJDFEFMJWFSZUISPVHIDPNNVOJUZ
IVCT
t3FNPEFMUIFDPNNVOJUZ
CVJMEJOHTBEWJDFTFSWJDFUPSFnFDU
UIFDPVODJMTQSJPSJUJFTBSPVOE
WVMOFSBCJMJUZBOETFSWJDFEFWPMVUJPO
t%FWFMPQBOFX$PNNVOJUZ*$5
4USBUFHZGPSPOXBSET
t1SPNPUFUIF5IJOL-FJDFTUFSTIJSF
*$IFFWWJSUVBMSFTPVSDFT

Communities are encouraged
and, where possible,
supported to develop a
virtual presence via the web,
including through community
websites.

Partners take decisions about
the optimum effective network
of hubs in Leicestershire in
partnership.

Communities/individuals
make full use of the Think
Leicestershire tools and
resources

Building Block 8: Access to support, advice and training
Role of communities

Role of the council

Actions

Community and voluntary
sector groups access a range
of support in the form of online tools and information and
face-to-face capacity building
support (public and voluntary
sector).

The council encourages
communities to ‘take charge’
and resolve their own problems
by providing a coherent
package of tools/resources and
focussing face to face capacity
building support on the most
vulnerable communities (of
place and interest).

t1SPWJEFGVOEJOHUPDPNNVOJUJFT
UISPVHIUXPOFX4IJSF$PNNVOJUZ
(SBOUTTDIFNFTo$PNNVOJUZ
4PMVUJPOTBOE1BSUJDJQBUPSZ(SBOUT
&YQMPSFPQQPSUVOJUJFTUPJODMVEF
PUIFSDPNNVOJUZHSBOUT $PVODJMBOE
QBSUOFST

The process of applying
for funding is simple and
transparent. Communities
understand why we prioritise
projects that tackle council
priorities, particularly around
service devolution and
vulnerable people, and are
effectively represented in
decision making processes e.g.
on grant panels

p22

Grant funding is targeted at
priority activities and, where
possible, joined up across
departments and partner
agencies. Duplication between
funding streams has been
eliminated.

t.POJUPSUIFDPOUSJCVUJPOPGUIF
DPVODJMTHSBOUGVOEJOHUPEFMJWFSZPG
PVSUSBOTGPSNBUJPOQSJPSJUJFTBOELFZ
PVUDPNFT
t*OWFTUJHBUFBEEJUJPOBMDBQBDJUZ
CVJMEJOHSFTPVSDFUPTVQQPSU
DPNNVOJUZBOEWPMVOUBSZTFDUPS
EFMJWFSZPGQSJPSJUJFT
t&YQMPSFPUIFSOBUJPOBMBOEMPDBM
GVOEJOHPQQPSUVOJUJFTBOETFDVSF
BEEJUJPOBMGVOEJOHUPFOBCMFEFMJWFSZ
PGPVSDPNNVOJUJFTBNCJUJPOT

Leicestershire’s future

99

Proposed Communities Strategy

Communities taking on services currently delivered by the County Council

CASE STUDY: EXPANSION OF BIRSTALL
YOUTH CAFÉ
Leicestershire County Council’s Big Society Grant Fund provided funding of £9,250 to
assist with the expansion and development of Birstall Parish Council’s youth facilities and
activities, including their Youth Café which aims to work with ‘hard to reach’ young people

Summary
Planning permission was granted to extend the current pavilion and to expand the area for
the Youth Café. The structural extension to the building has now been completed and the
additional meeting and activity space is now in use.
The additional space allows wider activities to take place. The expansion also provided
additional ‘alternative curriculum’ activities/services from the Centre, particularly for hardto-reach and disaffected young people.
The counselling/education and skills work has now expanded into the areas of sexual
health awareness, tobacco, drug and alcohol awareness and behavioural contracts.
The extended building also provides an attractive venue for other community groups, such
as fun and family groups.

Who was involved?
All twenty Parish Councillors have taken an active interest in the project and the
contractor companies have all been locally based. Four youth workers and many of the
members of the youth café were actively involved in elements of the interior design (for
example the flooring). They were also involved in the painting of the interior walls.

Outcomes and impact
The Big Society funding has enabled Birstall Parish Council to address key issues of
concern to the community. The creation of the Youth Café has demonstrated that with
the support of community leaders issues of concern to the community, in this case youth
behaviour, can be addressed. One success of the project has been the notable reduction in
anti-social behaviour.

Next steps
The Youth Café is now being used as a model for other parishes - Mountsorrel, Barrow
upon Soar and Anstey are all keen to adopt the methodology successfully employed in
Birstall.

p23

100

You can view the latest information
in a number of ways
Visit us online www.leics.gov.uk/communities_strategy
Our web pages will be kept up-to-date with the latest information and
developments. You’ll also be able to access the survey here.

This information
is also available in
Easy Read format

Send an email to future@leics.gov.uk to register for the latest news and
updates
Follow us @leicscountyhall for general updates from the council,
including the developments on the budget.
Alternatively, you can telephone 0116 305 6977 to ask for
information in printed or alternative formats.

Call 0116 305 6977
or email
future@leics.gov.uk

101
Appendix B

Equality & Human Rights Impact Assessment (EHRIA)
This Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment (EHRIA) will enable you to assess the
new, proposed or significantly changed policy/ practice/ procedure/ function/ service** for
equality and human rights implications.
Undertaking this assessment will help you to identify whether or not this policy/ practice/
procedure/ function/ service** may have an adverse impact on a particular community or
group of people. It will ultimately ensure that as an Authority we do not discriminate and we
are able to promote equality, diversity and human rights.
Before completing this form please refer to the EHRIA guidance, for further information about
undertaking and completing the assessment. For further advice and guidance, please
contact your Departmental Equalities Group or equality@leics.gov.uk
**Please note: The term ‘policy’ will be used throughout this assessment as shorthand for
policy, practice, procedure, function or service.

Key Details
Name of policy being assessed: Communities Strategy:
Leicestershire County Council Working in
Partnership with Communities
Department and section: Chief Executive’s Department, Strategy,
Partnerships and Communities Branch

Name of lead officer/ job title and Nicole Rickard, Lead Officer, Interim Head of Policy
others completing this assessment: and Communities
Danny Myers, Policy and Partnerships Manager
(completing this assessment)
Contact telephone numbers: 0116 3056977 & 0116 3055591

Name of officer/s responsible for Primarily those listed above but it is a corporate
implementing this policy: strategy and anyone responsible for commissioning
contracts and service design will implement this
policy.
Date EHRIA assessment started: 10th February 2014

Date EHRIA assessment completed:

1

102

Section 1: Defining the policy
Section 1: Defining the policy
You should begin this assessment by defining and outlining the scope of this policy. You
should consider the impact or likely impact of the policy in relation to all areas of equality,
diversity and human rights, as outlined in Leicestershire County Council’s Equality Strategy.

1

What is new or changed in this policy? What has changed and why?
This Strategy sets out our thinking about the role of Leicestershire communities (both
communities of place and of interest) in a new public service environment. There is
less money, increasing demand for services and major changes to both public
services and the welfare system are in train.
Why a change
Significant change is required within the County Council to balance the books whilst
protecting the most vulnerable individuals and communities. It is essential that the
Council works with partners from all sectors to reduce demand for services and
empower communities to work alongside us to deliver key services to Leicestershire
citizens.
What is the change
There are three specific dimensions to our work around communities.
• The first is a longer term ‘demand management’ role which involves
building capacity and resilience in local communities to support
vulnerable people.
• A shorter term priority is around the role of communities in taking over
services currently delivered by the public sector.
• An intention to support the repositioning of the voluntary sector in
Leicestershire as effective providers in a mixed, diverse market which
supports delivery of our service devolution and support for vulnerable
people priorities
The diagram below sets out the four distinct, but closely connected, dimensions to
our approach to working with communities. These are described below, working
from the top of the diagram:

2

103

The interface between services and communities/individuals will become
increasingly important. There are a number of different enablers, but a key aspect of
this interface will be a ‘proof of concept’ of Local Area Co-ordination in eight learning
sites across the two Clinical Commissioning Group areas from summer 2014. Local
Area Coordinators (LACs) are based within the community, have close links to the
local GP practice(s), and work with between 50-65 individuals and their families at
any time. They provide a vital interface between vulnerable individuals/families,
services and communities. They are a single, accessible point of contact, identifying
and supporting vulnerable people, particularly those with disabilities, the frail elderly
and those with mental health issues, before they hit crisis. Their role is to help
prevent individuals and families from needing to access services and to provide a
‘safe landing’ when people are moving out of services and, as such, they are an
important part of the new Leicestershire unified prevention offer.
The second level in the diagram reflects our main priorities – enhancing the capacity
of individuals and communities to support themselves and vulnerable individuals and
families, increasing the ambition, appetite and ability of community groups, social
enterprises and the voluntary sector to take over, or work alongside the Council to
deliver, public services and a repositioning of the voluntary sector as part of a diverse
market. More detail about each of these priorities is set out in the Strategy
document.
The third level shows the ‘building blocks’ of the Communities Strategy and each of
these is described in more detail in Chapter Four of the Strategy.
•
•
•

understand local priorities
engage actively with public services
communicate effectively with service providers
3

104
•
•
•
•
•

have active local councils and residents groups
nurture a network of champions
support formal and informal volunteering
operate a wide range of activities from one or more community ‘hub’
have access to the right funding, support and training

The final level is about how we encourage individuals to make better choices,
including how to live healthier lives and how and where to live and to take
responsibility for themselves and others, including by supporting physical and
emotional wellbeing, to reduce the risk of escalation into services.
2

Does this relate to any other policy within your department, the Council
or with other partner organisations? If yes, please reference the relevant
policy or EHRIA. If unknown, further investigation may be required.
The Council is considering what services it should provide in the future and whether
services can be provided in different and innovative ways. This is captured in a new
vision for the Council: “Leading Leicestershire by working with our communities and
partners for the benefit of everyone”.
The vision is underpinned by the following strategic imperatives, two of which are of
particular relevance to this strategy:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Leading Leicestershire
Supporting and protecting the most vulnerable people and communities
Enabling and supporting communities, individuals and families
Making Leicestershire a better place
Managing public sector resources effectively
Having the organisational structures and behaviours to deliver this
approach

The Council has a new Target Operating Model (TOM) which highlights the
imperative to move people down the ‘triangle of need’ so that a much smaller
proportion of the population require the expensive specialist services at the top of
the triangle. The model also highlights the necessity of managing demand through
co-ordinated and high impact early intervention and prevention activity and to
enable and empower communities to play their part in the public service jigsaw to
improve outcomes for individuals, families and communities.
In addition to these key overarching corporate policies, the Strategy relates directly
to a number of other services, proposals and contracts the county council are
responsible for. These include:
•
•
•
•
•

First Contact
Local Area Co-ordination (See previous section)
Proposed changes to the Library Service
Any County Council contract with the voluntary and community sector
to deliver a service to a vulnerable person
Any County Council contract with the voluntary and community sector
4

105
•

•

for representing a recognised characteristic
Any County Council contract with the voluntary and community sector
for providing capacity building and strategic services to the voluntary
sector
The move toward a single community grant programme - in effect
merging a number of grant schemes into one.

All of the above will/should adhere to the principles and approach outlined in the
Community Strategy and all will have associated Equality and Human Rights Impact
Assessments.
3

Who are the people/ groups (target groups) affected and what
is the intended change or outcome for them?
The aim of the strategy is to build individual and community resilience and capacity
to tackle vulnerability. It is possible that this process will mean that some third sector
organisations not able to demonstrate an ability to deliver against these ambitions
will lose funding that they previously had.

4

Will this policy meet the Equality Act 2010 requirements to
have due regard to the need to meet any of the following
aspects? (Please tick and explain how)
Yes
Eliminate unlawful
discrimination,
harassment and
victimisation
Advance equality
of opportunity
between different
groups

Foster good
relations between
different groups

No
X

How?
Not directly - but better managed and fairer
access to services, including for vulnerable
people should help eliminate unlawful
discrimination.
Access to public services is not always fairly
spread, often overlooking and by-passing
hard to reach, vulnerable people.
Community alternatives both remove the
stigma attached to receiving support and
will actively encourage vulnerable people to
receive support at an early stage rather than
wait until they reach crisis point. This
approach could therefore advance equality
of opportunity.

X

Both

The approach has the opportunity to both
galvanise and unify communities but there is
also a risk that communities, either
geographical or social, could organise
themselves to deliver support at the
potential exclusion of others.

5

106

Section 2: Equality and Human Rights
Impact Assessment (EHRIA) Screening
Section 2: Equality and Human Rights Assessment Screening
The purpose of this section of the assessment is to help you decide if a full EHRIA is
required.
If you have already identified that a full EHRIA is needed for this policy/ practice/
procedure/ function/ service, either via service planning processes or other means, then
please go straight to Section 3 on Page 7 of this document.
Section 2
A: Research and Consultation
5. Have the target groups been consulted about the following?

Yes

No*

a) their current needs and aspirations and what is
important to them;

*

b) any potential impact of this change on them (positive
and negative, intended and unintended);

*

c) potential barriers they may face

*

6.

If the target groups have not been consulted directly, have
representatives been consulted or research explored (e.g.
Equality Mapping)?

*

7.

Have other stakeholder groups/ secondary groups (e.g. carers
of service users) been explored in terms of potential
unintended impacts?

*

8.

* If you answered 'no' to the question above, please use the space below to
outline what consultation you are planning to undertake, or why you do not
consider it to be necessary.
The Cabinet Report on the Strategy seeks permission to consult more widely on this
strategy. This consultation will include utilising a number of partnership and consultative
mechanisms we already have in place: for example, our representation contracts with
VAL, TREC and the Rural Community Council, the Leicestershire Equalities Challenge (LEC)
Group, the Stronger Communities Board, the Voluntary and Community Sector
Partnership and the network of Parish Councils. We will also harness the information
provided through the consultation on proposed changes to the library service
(specifically impacts on protected and vulnerable groups) which is a useful test of the
Communities Strategy.

6

107
Section 2
B: Monitoring Impact
8. Are there systems set up to:

Yes

a) monitor impact (positive and negative, intended
and unintended) for different groups;
b) enable open feedback and suggestions from
different communities

No

*

*

Note: If no to Question 8, you will need to ensure that monitoring systems are
established to check for impact on the protected characteristics.
Section 2
C: Potential Impact
9. Use the table below to specify if any individuals or community groups who identify with
any of the ‘protected characteristics’ may potentially be affected by this policy and
describe any positive and negative impacts, including any barriers.

Yes
Age
Disability
Gender Reassignment
Marriage and Civil
Partnership
Pregnancy and Maternity
Race
Religion or Belief
Sex
Sexual Orientation
Other groups
e.g. rural isolation,
deprivation, health
inequality, carers, asylum
seeker and refugee
communities, looked after
children, deprived or
disadvantaged
communities
Community Cohesion

No

Comments
The Communities Strategy is
delivering specific elements of a
new approach to tackling
vulnerability through early
intervention and prevention. We
know that some groups are more
susceptible to vulnerability than
others. This strategy will inevitably
(and deliberately) focus, though by
no means exclusively, on older
people, the disabled and people
with mental health issues - the
groups that are a priority for LCC
and susceptible to vulnerability.
The aim of the strategy is to build
individual and community
resilience and capacity to tackle
vulnerability. It is possible that this
will mean that some communities
will receive bespoke services to
meet their specific needs but
equally, there is also a risk that
their needs could be overlooked.
Third sector organisations not able
to demonstrate an ability to deliver
against these ambitions will lose
funding that they previously had or
fail to secure funding through new
commissioning arrangements.

7

108
10.

Are the human rights of individuals potentially affected by this proposal? Could
there be an impact on human rights for any of the protected characteristics?
(Please tick)
Explain why you consider that any particular article in the Human Rights Act may
apply to your policy/ practice/ function or procedure and how the human rights of
individuals are likely to be affected below: [NB. Include positive and negative
impacts as well as barriers in benefiting from the above proposal]
Yes

No

Comments

Part 1: The Convention- Rights and Freedoms
Article 2: Right to life
Article 3: Right not to be
tortured or treated in an
inhuman or degrading way
Article 4: Right not to be
subjected to slavery/ forced
labour
Article 5: Right to liberty and
security
Article 6: Right to a fair trial
Article 7: No punishment
without law
Article 8: Right to respect for
private and family life
Article 9: Right to freedom of
thought, conscience and
religion
Article 10: Right to freedom
of expression

X

N/a

X

See 8-10.

X

Volunteering must not be a vehicle for
exploitation.
X

N/a

X

N/a

X

N/a

X

We have to be aware that with
responsibility for service delivery we
are also handing over the procedural
control that we have used up to now
to protect these rights (especially
article 8). Where we can stipulate
conditions on a transfer of
responsibility, we must ensure
contracts and Service Level
Agreements adhere to these articles.

X

X

The best endeavours we can apply to
ensure that these rights are upheld
include either the removal of a
contract or the in-kind support the
County Council will be offering to
support many community groups
should we be presented with
evidence that any of these articles
have been contravened.
Article 11: Right to freedom
of assembly and association

X

8

109
Article 12: Right to marry

X

Article 14: Right not to be
discriminated against

X

All funding and commissioning
decisions both in the design and
chosen method of delivery will be
based on evidence. All procurement
processes will be transparent and
accessible.

Part 2: The First Protocol
Article 1: Protection of
property/ peaceful
enjoyment
Article 2: Right to education
Article 3: Right to free
elections
Section 2
D: Decision
11. Is there evidence or any other reason to
suggest that:

Yes

No

Unknown

*

a) this policy could have a different
affect or adverse impact on any
section of the community;

*

12.

b) any section of the community may
face barriers in benefiting from the
proposal
Based on the answers to the questions above, what is the likely impact of this
policy?

No Impact

Positive Impact *

Neutral Impact

Negative Impact or *
Impact Unknown

Note: If the decision is ‘Negative Impact’ or ‘Impact Not Known’ an EHRIA Report
is required.
13.

Is an EHRIA report required?
Yes

*

No

9

110

This page is intentionally left blank

111

Agenda Item 13

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: 17th JULY 2014
SUPPORTING THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING OF CARERS IN
LEICESTER, LEICESTERSHIRE AND RUTLAND 2012-2015
YOUNG CARERS: DELIVERY ACTION PLAN, PROGRESS SINCE
SEPTEMBER 2013
Purpose of report
1.

The purpose of this report is to:
• Provide an update on the work in respect of young carers in Leicestershire
since September 2013. A previous report was submitted to the Health and
Wellbeing Board on 5th September 2013.
• Provide an overview of the implications for young carer services as set out in
the Children and Families Act 2014.

Background
2. In order to progress the young carers agenda in Leicestershire, funding was made
available through the NHS Health Transfer Fund to adult social care (2012/2013 and
2013/2014). This supported delivery and implementation of the Carers’ Strategy 20122015, including a Young Carers Officer post (up to 31st March 2014). This NHS funding
how now ceased. In order to progress the work, the Young Carer post was extended, via
Children and Family Services funding until October 2014. After this date, the work
relating to young carers will be subject to the remodelling of Early Help, which is due to
be in place by April 2015. Therefore funding for the continuation of the Project is
currently unsecured.
3. In May 2014, new figures from the 2011 census show the extent of the number of young
carers in England. 1Young carers, age 15 or younger in Leicestershire total 1,109. This
compares to 789 in City and 60 in Rutland. Data for 15-18yr age group is not yet
available. During 2013/14, 151 young carers received support locally through two
providers. It is estimated that there are approximately 2000-2500 young carers in
Leicestershire and Leicester City at present.

National/Local Context
4. The profile of carers and young carers continues to increase nationally, culminating in
the historic amendment to the Children and Families Act 2014, which strengthens
support for young carers. Regardless of who they care for, what type of care they
1

http://www.childrenssociety.org.uk/news-views/our-blog/you-can-help-young-carers-near-you

112
provide or how often, all young carers now have a right to a local authority assessment
of their support needs. This includes regard for young carers’ needs/wishes in relation to
education, training, recreation or work.
5. In addition, there has been improved alignment of legislation relating to children and
young people within the Care Act 2014. Both Acts refer to the ‘whole family’ approach to
assessment of carers (young or older) and their cared-for relative and for the first time
provision for the smooth transition of young carers to adult carer services is referenced.
6. Both Acts will become law in April 2015. The Care Act guidance/legislation has been
released for consultation (June-August 2014) and can be found at
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications?departments%5B%5D=department-ofhealth Similar documentation for the Children and Families Act has not yet been made
available.
7. Locally, plans are underway to align current young carer services provision, procedure
and focus within both Children and Young People’s Service and Adult and Communities
Departments in preparation for the new statutory duties.
Progress and Outcomes - September 2013 to date
8. Significant progress has been made to improve outcomes for young carers:
a) Identification and Recognition
• The number of young people referred to Leicestershire County Council’s
commissioned young carer service (CareFree) for assessment increased by 50%
from 44 in 2012/13 to 66 in 2013/2014, as a direct result of the Project. Referrals
from Health increased from 13% to 23% during the same period. For full details of
the 2013/14 young carer data provided by CareFree, please see Appendix One.
• A specific service for Young carers was re-commissioned (2014/15) to reflect the
Carers Strategy and Early Help focus. Secondary and sibling carers are now
eligible for services based on assessment of their need for support. (this contract is
currently being re-examined in light of the Children and Families Act).
• A multi-agency training strategy is in development. To date this has included:
- Two Multi Agency training days for staff from health, education ,and the
voluntary sector March 2014 (75 attendees)
- Since January 2014 a young carer module is included in school nurses training
courses run by DeMontfort University.
•

The launch of the Young Carer’s Identification Card Scheme took place in March
2014, which included a short film produced by young carers, explaining how they
feel about health services. This helped inspire the ID Card Scheme.
http://www.salfordcvs.co.uk/news/salford-young-carers-film
During April –June 2014, 16 cards have been issued, all facilitated by young carer
services. An increase in applications for young carers, assisted by adult health and
social care practitioners, is needed to ensure the Scheme’s success. For more
information see http://www.leics.gov.uk/index/social_services/asc_support/asc_carer/asc_young_ca
rers/young_carer/young_carer_id.htm

113

The LSCB has nominated this Scheme for the national Children and Young People
Now Award 2014.
b) Realising and Releasing Potential
• The establishment of a school young carer ‘champions network’. To date twenty
schools have active ‘champions’. For details of which settings are participating,
please see
http://www.leics.gov.uk/index/social_services/asc_support/asc_carer/asc_young_ca
rers/young_carer/young_carer_champions.htm
c) Supporting Carers to Stay Healthy
• Awareness raising of young carers issues, including support and referral pathways
have been embedded into Leicestershire County Council’s commissioned ‘Carers
Health and Wellbeing Service’.
• Questions have been designed to identify signs of young people caring have now
been included in the Baseline Health Assessment Tool to be used by all School
Nurses.
d) Early Intervention/ Prevention/ Information
•

There has been further development and production of accessible information and
resources for practitioners and young carers/families from a multi-agency
perspective. This includes new young carers pages on Leicestershire County Council
web site, an information booklet on support services and publicity posters – see
www.leics.gov.uk/young_carer.
All materials and links, including details of the Young Carer ID Cards Scheme have
been made available through the multi-agency partnership to local authority teams,
Leicestershire NHS Partnership Trust, University Hospital NHS Trust, HealthWatch
and both CCG’s. Information has also been made available to Districts, through
Staying Healthy Forums. For example, as part of GP resources in Blaby - see
http://www.blabystayinghealthy.co.uk/gp-resources

Further Progress and Outcomes - July 2014-June 2015 (end of current Carers
Strategy)
9. The priority for the work is in preparation for the incoming legislation (Care
Act/Children and Families Act). In addition, responsibilities for the multi-agency
young carer partnership include;
•

•
•

Input into the next Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland Carers Strategy 2015-18.
Initial plans have begun, with a view to the formation of a working party Autumn
2014.
Active Involvement of young carers in relation to the new Carers Strategy and any
future commissioning decisions.
Increasing awareness and referrals to young carers services from Adult Services in
both social care and health (in particular Adult Mental Health Services).

114
•

Improvement in ‘transition’ for young adult carers to adult services (with a particular
emphasis on further education, training and employment)

Officer to Contact
Amy Lewis, Young Carer Project Officer, Children and Family Services
01163056939 - amy.j.lewis@leics.gov.uk
Appendices
Appendix One - Barnardo’s Results Reports Information 2014

115
Appendix One - Barnardo’s Results Reports Information 2014
Numbers receiving a service in County 2010-2013

New Referrals received by Barnardo’s 2010-2014

2013 - 2014

151

2013-2014

66

2012-2013

91

2011-2012

109

2010-2011

90

2012-2013
2011-2012
2010-2011

44
50
63

Service Users – Referral source for 2013/2014 (151 young carers in total)
Source

%

Local authority Social Work Teams
(children’s and adults)

35%

No
young
carers
53

Health

23%

35

Education based staff
Self/Family
Vol Sec
CAF
Other

18%
15%
5%
3%
1%

27
23
7
5
1

of

Breakdown

%

Children & Families
SLF
Adult Social Care
Other
Adult Practitioner
CPN
School Nurse
Health Visitor
GP

29%
5%
1%
7%
5%
5%
3%
1%
1%

2013/14 Characteristics *
Gender – 56% female, 44% male
Ethnicity – 83% White British, White Other 5%, Asian British Indian 3%, Mixed White/Asian 3% , Other 6%
Age at Referral – 11-16yrs 68% 8-10yrs 24%, under 8 6%
Referral by District – Charnwood (33%), NW Leics (29%), Harborough (12%), Blaby (11%), Hinckley and
Bosworth (7%), Melton (5%), Oadby and Wigston (3%)

Illness/Disability of Care Recipients
NB
Physical Disability
38%
Mental Ill Health and Physical Disability
24%
51% of cases involve parental
Mental Ill Health
17%
mental ill health, 12% involve some
Substance Misuse and Mental Ill Health
6%
type of substance misuse
Learning Disability
5%
Physical Disability and Substance Misuse
5%
Physical and Learning Disability and Mental Ill Health 3%
Physical Disability and Substance Misuse and
1%
Mental Ill Health
*statistics are rounded up and down and may not total 100%

116

This page is intentionally left blank

117

Agenda Item 15

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: 17 JULY 2014
REPORT OF COUNTY COUNCIL CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND GEM
COMMISSIONING SUPPORT PERFORMANCE SERVICE
PERFORMANCE ASSURANCE FRAMEWORK DEVELOPMENT
UPDATE
Purpose of Report
1.

To provide the Board with an update on the development of the reporting
framework for performance assurance for the Health and Wellbeing Board
and its supporting boards and update on performance issues and progress.

Background
2.

The Board currently routinely receives a joint report from the County Council’s
Chief Executive’s Department and the Greater East Midlands (GEM)
Commissioning Support Service. This report encompasses:
a. An update on the delivery of the action plans that contribute to the
priorities identified in the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy.
b. An update on key provider performance and the local priorities
identified by the CCG Operational plans.

3.

Following the development of the Better Care Fund (BCF) Plan and related
integration projects we are in the process of refreshing the assurance,
governance arrangements and reporting arrangements supporting the Board.
This includes developing a dashboard specifically to assure the performance
of the Better Care Fund Plan and integration projects in terms of overall
delivery, including financial performance and performance against the BCF
metrics.

Performance Update
4.

The report provides the Board with an overview of the performance monitoring
and assurance framework across the health and wellbeing sector relating to
the County Council and its area, CCG’s, providers and partnership
organisations. It also includes an overview of current performance of the
schemes within the Better Care Fund (BCF).

5.

The new performance framework now includes a section on the delivery of the
BCF schemes, the health elements of the new Strategic Plan priorities for the
County Council (which include the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy
priorities) and provider and CCG performance as before.

6.

It was agreed at the JSNA Steering Board on 18 February, 2014, that the
dashboards for the Health and Wellbeing Board be split to provide a clearer
summary of performance across the healthcare system including CCG’s and
local providers. Performance against the Better Care Fund indicators are also

118

included. Reporting will be amended following the scheduled update to the
Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy (JHWS) and any changes to governance
arrangements.
Better Care Fund and Integration Projects - Integration Executive Dashboard –
Appendix A
7.

The dashboard attached as Appendix A is intended to show accumulated
performance against the schemes and metrics within the Better Care Fund
(BCF).

8.

The Integration Executive reviewed and agreed the draft dashboard at its
meeting on the 24th June, with an exception dashboard that accumulates the
data for Health Scrutiny and Health and Wellbeing Board level. As a number
of the schemes are still at an early stage of development or delivery the report
highlights Ambers and Reds exception issues.

9.

There is also a summary of the BCF Plan key metrics/targets and available
current baseline data against them. Where data is not yet available for the
metrics and proposed targets the published baselines are shown. The trend
charts are examples only and as data is published these will be used to show
a view of whether the data is fluctuating or following a consistent upward or
downward trend over a period of time. The direction of travel arrow will show
at a glance whether the indicator has improved from the previous data set,
worsened or remained the same.

10.

At the Integration Executive on 24th June, Delayed Transfers of Care (DToC)
deterioration in performance was discussed. It is anticipated that the
programme of work to reduce Length of Stays will initially have a significant
negative impact on the indicator, for the right reasons, while the new ways of
working to reduce this take effect. It was proposed that a 7th metric on the
length of stay be added to the Better Care Fund plan. This was agreed in
principle at the meeting, subject to further clarification on the definition of the
metric.

11.

Each project lead has provided an initial status report to populate the
performance framework for the first time as at 27th May. This shows the
current status of each scheme, with some already established, some at
scoping stage and some not due for implementation until 2015/16.
Commentary on an exception basis (i.e. all RED and AMBER items) are
included in the exception commentary section of the dashboard.

12.

The Operational Group of the Integration Executive have agreed that as
individual project briefs and business cases are developed for each scheme
(with scheme level KPIs), there will also need to be a clear line of sight
between these scheme level KPIs and the national metrics where applicable.
This is so that an overall confidence rating can be applied to delivery against
each metric, as well as tracking delivery of individual schemes to their
individual KPIs, project milestones and financial plans.

119

13.

Additional national work on BCF Plan assurance is taking place. This and the
BCF Plan resubmission are expected to have an impact on the metrics/targets
with measurable outcomes being further defined. Performance partners will
continue to work together to ensure that the reporting is a co-ordinated
approach. The importance of consistency in performance indicators across
partners to accurately measure the success of the BCF is a high priority and it
is intended that a representative from UHL will be included on the
performance data group to ensure this happens.

14.

Some schemes may not be able to definitively measure direct impact from the
outset but will support the overall BCF plan as enablers. Enablers are
detailed on the dashboard as N/A against the impact on metrics RAG at this
stage. The framework is a live working document, so when schemes are
project scoped they may change from enablers to show where they will have
a direct impact, the KPIs proposed and how the impact on metrics has been
assessed.

15.

The dashboard includes a RAG status column for savings. This will apply to
acute care savings that are identified by the business plans for the individual
schemes.

16.

A number of initial performance issues are highlighted below:

Indicator
Reducing Delayed
Transfers of Care
(DToC)

Commentary
The DToC target in the BCF covers two timeframes, the
first of which is Apr-Dec 2014. Current performance is
significantly higher. Current data shows the figure for
Apr 2014. There are a number of initiatives in place to
improve the position. Improved co-ordination to show
impact will be delivered. The Integration Executive have
received assurance that the Leadership Group for
Delayed Transfers of Care are working towards a single
discharge process and a significant increase in
reablement. It is proposed that Length of Stay be added
as a 7th local metric to provide a more complete picture
of delayed transfers.

Project
Integrated Crisis
Response Service

Commentary
Action Plan
Night time nursing off track. Revised deadline for
phased implementation approach to be fully operational
by Sept. Mitigations have been put in place for the
delay.
Finance
This has led to a predicted underspend for the year of
up to £250k.
Action Plan
Workshops to clarify and confirm arrangements are now
being organised.

Patient Transfer
Minimum Data Set

120

Transitions

Finance
The level of underspend will be determined by the
outcomes of the workshops. At this stage it is
anticipated that any underspend will roll into 2015/16.
Actions previously agreed by PCT are now being
renegotiated due to organisational change. Progress
overall on action plan is good but further progress is
needed.

Health and Wellbeing Strategic Priorities Dashboard - Appendix B
17.

Appendix B to this report is a dashboard summarising the performance
against key strategic health and wellbeing priorities. The priorities include
Better Public Health, Better Mental Health, Better Physical Health and
improving Children and Young People’s Health.

18.

The indicators included in each section are listed in the additional information
box and any RED exceptions are highlighted with performance commentary
against them.

19.

A number of issues are highlighted below:

Indicator
% successful
completion of drug
treatment - non-opiate
users (PHOF 2.15ii)

Chlamydia diagnoses
(rate per 100,000 15-24
year olds) (Leics)
(PHOF 3.02ii)
% mothers
breastfeeding at 6-8
weeks

Commentary
Drugs and alcohol indicator trends are generally
positive. In terms of treatment completion rates, there is
still some way to go to achieve the top quartile range
compared to similar areas, but if progress is maintained
this should be an achievable in the near future. The
performance of criminal justice treatment services is
weaker than community treatment services, and
significant improvement is needed to get into the top
quartile range.
The diagnosis rate overall is low compared to England
average however the rate for non-genitourinary (GU)
settings is close to England Average. Since coverage is
significantly higher than England average this suggests
a low prevalence in Leicestershire.
The Breast Feeding 6-8 weeks prevalence target
remains problematic particularly in the West of the
County where breast feeding rates are lowest. A new
Breast Feeding Peer Support project ‘TLC’ has been
commissioned for Hinckley & Bosworth & North West
Leicestershire districts to support mothers to breastfeed.
The Peer supporters are working with maternity
services, community midwives, health visitors, GPs and
children centre staff to ensure the signposting and
referral of mothers to the peer supporters for support. A
breast feeding awareness week is planned for June
2014 the theme is ‘Fake vs Real’. The Infant Feeding
page on the LPT website continues to develop and the’

121

Meals on Heels’ phone app which provides an
interactive map of breast feeding support is now
available for android phones. The assessment for BFI
Stage 3 for UHL Maternity services and for Community
Services is booked for later this year.
Provider and CCG Dashboard - Appendix C
20.

This dashboard summarises information on provider and CCG performance in
the same format as previous reports.

University Hospitals Leicester (UHL) Performance
21.

The indicators within the dashboards are reported at CCG level. Data
reported at provider level does differ, and delivery actions indicate where this
is a risk.

Indicator
18 Weeks Referral to
Treatment (data is at
CCG level)
The referral to treatment
(RTT) operational
standards are 90% of
admitted (to hospital)
and 95% of nonadmitted patients (outpatients) should start
consultant-led treatment
within 18 weeks of
referral. In order to
sustain delivery of these
standards 92% of
patients who have not
yet started treatment
should have been
waiting no longer than
18 weeks
A and E - 4 Hour
Waiting Time

Commentary
At February 2014, the 18 week target for admitted
patients was not achieved. WL CCG is reporting 87.7%
and EL and R CCG is at 88.4% against a target of 90%.
The Planned Care Board has been set up to meet
fortnightly and commenced on 21 April 2014. A suite of
RTT reports are being developed looking to map all
inter-related performance issues e.g. Emergency
pressures/cancelled operations, to provide “flash”
reports and trend information. At subsequent meetings
in May 2014, the Board was concerned with the level of
slippage of the agreed remedial action plan (which
focuses on specialty areas: ophthalmology; ENT,
general surgery and orthopaedics). The Board has
received revised actions and trajectories, with UHL
committed to achieving recovery of admitted in
November 2014. Additionally CCGs are exploring other
strategies to ensure patient choice of provider is
promoted further and additional capacity is procured
(especially for cataracts) ensuring CCGs deliver on their
commitments to the NHS Constitution.
As at 9 April 14, 88.77% of patients were seen within 4
hours in A&E against a target of 95%. Although there
have been notable improvements in recovery rates
ensuring that one day of poor performance is taking less
than 2 days to recover, the overall performance has
remained static since January 2014. There are
significant numbers of patients waiting for beds each
morning with slow discharges first thing and chasing the
flow throughout the day to keep pace with the volume
coming in. This position does improve now towards the
end of the week. The Urgent Care Working Group

122

Ambulance Handovers

Delayed Transfers of
Care (DTOC)

Cancer 62 day waits All patients should wait
a maximum of 62 days
from their urgent GP
referral to the start of
their appointment
Cancelled Operations

Never Events

Pressure Ulcers

Safety Thermometer

continues to meet weekly to review delivery against
plan. In addition a weekly meeting with the Area Team,
TDA, CCGs, UHL and LPT is continuing, focusing on
high impact interventions which have a direct impact on
flow delivery.
At March 2014, 12.9% of handovers between
ambulance and A&E took place in less than 30 minutes
against a zero tolerance. This position has improved
from 14% reported last quarter. To support ambulance
flow, patient handover and communication, a Hospital
Ambulance Liaison Officer has been based at the
hospital between the hours of 8am and 12am since
December and continued until the end of March, which
has improved the position.
Delays are being reported as the number of patients
discharged as a percentage of occupied bed days. As
at 27/03/14, 4.43% were delayed against a national
target of 3.5%. This position has remained static since
reported last quarter. Actions continue to focus on
earlier discharge, and have been included in the
2014/15 contract. Discharge is undertaken weekly and
reported to the Urgent Care Working Group.
At February 2014, WL is achieving the 85% standard
with EL&R CCG reporting 84.6%. UHL have achieved
85% overall. Actions in place are continuing including a
dedicated senior manager at UHL and on-the-day
booking for CT scans at UHL and the use of PET scan
capacity through a third party.
At February 2014, 95.3% of patients were seen against
a target of 95%. This is an improvement since reported
last quarter. At the Contract Performance Meeting with
UHL on 3rd April 2014, UHL requested to revisit
trajectories. UHL are identifying non-bed capacity
related reasons for cancellations which equate to
approximately 40% of cancellations and are analysing
reasons for breaches to be reported to Commissioners
in May 2014.
There have been a total of 3 Never Events reported by
UHL for 2013/14. There was a 3rd Never Event report in
February and this is currently under investigation.
Monthly progress reports continue to be received.
Revised thresholds agreed and UHL have been within
their revised threshold since November 2013 with one
exception in January 2014. The Contract Query Notice
was closed in April 2014. Monitoring will continue on a
monthly basis for 2014/15 against agreed thresholds.
The end of year position will be reported during May
2014.
UHL’s average for 2013/14 was at 94% against a target

123

The NHS Safety
Thermometer is a local
improvement tool for
measuring, monitoring
and analysing patient
harms and “harm free”
care.

of 95% which remains in line with the national position

East Midlands Ambulance Service (EMAS)
22.

Performance issues are detailed below.

Ambulance Response
Times

At March 2014, Category A (8 minutes) Red 1 for EMAS
is 71.26% and Category A Red 2 is 77.46% against a
target of 75% and Category A (19 minutes) EMAS is
93.82%. These positions have deteriorated since last
reported slightly. Data is now available at CCG level.
This is as follows for March 2014:
Red 1 – WL 63.49% & ELR 59.98%
(Target 75%)
• Red 2 – WL 64.84% & ELR 59.93%
(Target 75%)
• Cat 19 – WL 92.62% & ELR 89.48%
(Target 95%)
Progress against the action plans are being monitored
weekly through the Better Patient Care Programme
Board at EMAS. Formal monitoring continues on a
monthly basis through an Oversight Group led by the
TDA and includes CQC, Commissioners and EMAS.
•

Leicestershire Partnership Trust (LPT)
23.

Performance issues against ‘Efficient Services’ indicators are detailed below.
Data and commentary are taken directly from the LPT Board Papers for May
2014.

% Occupancy Rate –
Community

Occupancy Rate –
Mental Health

Performance for the month of April stands at 86.6%
against the 93% or above target. Community wards with
significantly lower bed occupancy during the month were
Ashby General Ward (77.5%), Coalville Snibston Ward
(79.9%), Melton Dalgleish Ward (87.6%) and Rutland
Ward (87.8%).
Performance against this indicator has increased by
3.5% with Mental Health Bed Occupancy for the month
of April at 89.1% against the trust target of 85% or
below. Performance for the divisions’ stand at Adult
Mental Health and Learning Disabilities (90.9%),
Community Health Services (85.2%), and Families,

124

% Delayed Patients
(Community )
% Delayed Patients
(MH)

Young People and Children (90.8%).
Performance has increased compared to March and
reads as 1.03% for April 2014 against the target of
2.12% for the month.
Performance against this indicator has decreased for the
month of April to 7.2% from 6.6% but stays within the
Monitor 7.5% target.
Current position as at April is 117 episodes
for the year against a pro-rata target of 141 cases
(80.7%).

Total number of Home
Treatment episodes
carried out by Crisis
Resolution team (year to
date)
Waiting times
The Trust performance in relation to waiting times
continues to be variable and further discussions are
underway with Commissioners with regard to the
targeting of funds to reduce key areas. Divisional
Business Managers and Divisional Directors continue to
scrutinise performance and data quality specifically in
relation to these areas to ensure the most effective
service delivery and reporting.
24.

Performance issues against ‘Quality – Safe Care’ indicators are detailed
below. Data and commentary are taken directly from the LPT Board papers
for January 2014.

Compliance with
hygiene code

Infection control – C Diff
(MH and Community)

Strategic Executive
Information System
(STEIS) – Serious
Incident (SI) action
plans implemented
within timescales
STEIS is the system
used to report serious
untoward incidents

Podiatry services are currently negotiating a suitable
timescale from Interserve for the appropriate works to be
undertaken and all risks associated with this issue
continue to be managed by the Podiatry manager. The
building works on Welford and Kirby wards with regards
to the facilities is under review to ensure suitable
equipment is identified. The Senior Nurse Advisor for
IPC was visiting the area on 23rd May to undertake a full
assessment and develop a remedial action plan with
timescales.
Monitor target reflects the annual de minimus limit set at
12 cases as set out in the Monitor Risk Assurance
Framework and is monitored each quarter. The
Commissioner threshold is set provisionally at 9 cases
and is reported monthly as per the Quality Schedule for
2014/15. There was 1 case for April on Dalgliesh Ward.
Performance against this indicator for the month of April
is 70.0% from 47.1% in March. This indicator considers
only those SI action plans that should have been
completed by the latest month. SI's investigations must
be closed within 60 working days. Only then are any
action plans implemented, each SI action plan will have
its own deadline. All divisions performed at 100% except
Adult Mental Health and Learning Disabilities (AMHLD),
where performance has been hampered due to the

125

volume of actions and investigations in progress.
Clinical Commissioning Group Performance
25.

There are a number of indicators in the NHS Outcomes Framework that relate
to emergency admissions, and the majority are performing well based on
February 2014 position. The exception is children with lower respiratory tract
infections per 100,000 population. WL CCG is reporting an increase in
admissions per 100,000 population of 166.3 in 2013/14 against the 2012/13
baseline of 143.40 and ELR CCG reporting 182.2 in 2013/14 against 2012/13
baseline of 181.66.

26.

Performance issues are highlighted below:

Infection Control.
Incidences of CDIFF
and MRSA
These have been
reported for both WL &
EL&R.:

WLCCG - Reduction in
Emergency Admissions
from Care Homes

East Leicestershire
CCG - Increase in
People Dying at Home

East Leicestershire
CCG - Transient
Ischaemic Attack Increase in people who
are scanned and treated

MRSA - WL CCG: 5 incidences against zero tolerance
ELR CCG: 3 incidences against zero tolerance
MRSA Actions - Protocol in place for all MRSA BSI
cases- in line with NHS England requirements all cases
undergo a period of infection review (PIR) with all
relevant stakeholders to identify any learning and ensure
actions are in place to reduce the risk of re-occurrence.
CDIFF - WLCCG: 87 incidences against a nationally set
objective of 88. ELR CCG: 89 incidences against a
national objective of 74. CDIFF Actions – following a
multidisciplinary meeting in January 2014 which was
facilitated by the Area Team it was agreed to develop a
Whole Health Economy action plan that joins together
both acute and community actions.
As at February 2014 there are 1563 admissions against
a 645 baseline. There are a number of actions in place,
which will help to focus and target interventions. A
Dashboard has been sent to GPs to identify homes that
refer emergencies to the acute sector in order for them
to target their work. The CCG will identity homes with
higher admissions to the acute sector as a result to
deploy commissioned resources.
As at February 2014, the target was not achieved. The
has been chosen as a local priority in 2014/15 and a
business case is being developed to work with
Macmillan Cancer Services to provide GP mentorship
and palliative care clinical nurse specialist support. The
focus of primary care delivery will be around advance
care planning. Choice regarding “place of death” will be
included within the care plan, linked to dialogue with the
individual and/or carer.
As at March 2014, 67.1% against 70% target.
Performance has improved significantly with fluctuations
being due to small numbers.

126

in 24 hours
East Leicestershire
CCG - IAPT – Increase
in People Moving to
Recovery

As at February 2014, 51.4% of people were moving to
recovery against a target of 52%. This position has
improved during the year, and is slightly below the
target.

Background papers
Leicestershire Partnership Trust Board Papers can be found at the following link:
http://www.leicspart.nhs.uk/_Aboutus-Trustboardmeetings2014-May2014.aspx
University Hospitals Leicester Trust Board meetings can be found at the following
link:
http://www.leicestershospitals.nhs.uk/aboutus/our-structure-and-people/board-ofdirectors/board-meeting-dates/
Further information on the health system can be found in a previous report to the
Shadow Health and Wellbeing Board March 2013:
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=961&MId=3727&Ver=4
Recommendations
27.

The Committee is asked to:
a) note the progress made to date in developing the performance framework to
incorporate the BCF and Strategic Plan priorities alongside reporting
arrangements to support the Committee’s role;
b) note the performance summary, issues identified this quarter and actions
planned in response to improve performance; and
c) comment on any recommendations or other issues with regard to the report.

List of Appendices
Appendix A - Better Care Fund - Integration Executive Dashboard
Appendix B - Health and Wellbeing Strategic Priorities Dashboard
Appendix C - Provider and CCG Performance Dashboard
Officers to Contact
Sarah Cooke Head of Performance (Leicester & Lincoln)
Greater East Midlands Commissioning Support Unit
Tel: 0116 295 7272, Mobile: 07795126428
Email: Sarah.Cooke@gemcsu.nhs.uk
Lisa Carter, Quality Manager, Leicestershire County Council
Tel: 0116 3050786 Email: lisa.carter@leics.gov.uk
Andy Brown, Performance & Business Intelligence Team Leader, Leicestershire
County Council. Tel: 0116 3056096 Email: andy.brown@leics.gov.uk

127

128

This page is intentionally left blank

129
APPENDIX A - Better Care Fund - Integration Executive Dashboard
Better Care Fund
RAG Status Guidelines
Dimension

RAG Status

Guidelines

Notes
Add any appropriate headline commentary - e.g. important milestones met
etc

GREEN

Savings on track or ahead of schedule

AMBER

Savings are off track by up to -10%

Exception commentary must be provided

RED

Savings are off track by more than -10%

Exception commentary must be provided

N/A

Savings have not yet been defined for this scheme

Exception commentary must be provided

Savings

E

Add any appropriate headline commentary - e.g. important milestones met
etc
Add any appropriate headline commentary - e.g. important milestones met
etc

This scheme has been identified as an enabler

GREEN

Action plan development and/or milestones are on target

AMBER

There are minor delays in the action plan milestones of up to 30 days

Exception commentary must be provided

RED

There are action plan milestones delayed more than 30 days / BP delayed

Exception commentary must be provided

N/A

Scheme not yet due to start

Please provide a start date

Costs are on target

Add any appropriate headline commentary - e.g. important milestones met
etc

Action plan milestones

GREEN

RED

There is likely to be an overspend / underspend of up to 10% of the agreed
budget
It is highly likely there will be an overspend / underspend greater than 10%
of the agreed budget

N/A

Budget not set for current financial year

AMBER
Finance

GREEN

Exception commentary must be provided
Add any appropriate headline commentary - e.g. important milestones met
etc
Add any appropriate headline commentary - e.g. important milestones met
etc

Assessed impact on primary metric(s) is on track

RED

It is likely there will be a negative impact on the primary metric(s) of up to
10%
It is highly likely there will be a negative impact on the primary metric(s)
greater than 10%

N/A

Contribution to metrics not yet developed

Exception commentary must be provided

This scheme has been identified as an enabler

Add any appropriate headline commentary - e.g. important milestones met
etc

AMBER
Impact on metrics

Exception commentary must be provided

E

Exception commentary must be provided
Exception commentary must be provided

Better Care Fund
BCF Metrics
Metric

Current
data

Target

METRIC 1: Permanent admissions of older people (aged 65 and
over) to residential and nursing care homes, per 100,000
population

Data RAG

755.4

93.86%

78.60%

METRIC 3: Delayed transfers of care from hospital per 100,000
population (average per month)

267.06

357.7

METRIC 4: Avoidable emergency admissions (composite
measure)

113.08

124.12

ó

This ASCOF measure relates to hospital discharges between
October and December 2014 followed by accommodation
location between January and March 2015. A rolling 6-month
performance will be reported here starting with the period AprSep 2014. Current data show 2013/14 figure. Trend charts are
an example only.

R

ò

The DToC target in the BCF covers two timeframes, the first of
which is Apr-Dec 2014. Current performance is significantly
higher. Current data shows the figure for Apr 2014.

NA

ó

Annual activity baseline = 9913 with a target of 9429 in 2018/19.
Data not yet available. Trend chart is an example only. Current
data reflects the agreed baseline.

2014

NA

ó

In development.

2014

NA

ó

Data not yet available. Trend chart is an example only. Current
data reflects the agreed baseline.

Q4

357
245

Q2

Q3 Q4

NA

NA

Q1…

~

2012

~

2012
METRIC 6: Injuries due to falls in people aged 65 and over

140.48

168.2
2012

METRIC 7: Length of stay (composite measure)

Commentary

ó

2014

Q1

DOT

The source tables for the permanent care admissions ASCOF
measures are due at the end of July and there remains no
guidance on calculating the measures from the new tables.
Work will continue to find an alternative solution to reporting in
the absence of the above. Data shown is the figure for 2013/14.
Trend charts are an example only

2013
563.06

METRIC 2: Proportion of older people (65 and over) who were
still at home 91 days after discharge from hospital into
reablement / rehabilitation services

METRIC 5: Patient / service user experience

Trend

Data not yet available. Trend chart is an example only.
2014

Better Care Fund
Composite Measures
Metric

METRIC 4: Unplanned hospitalisation for chronic ambulatory
care sensitive conditions (all ages)
METRIC 4: Unplanned hospitalisation for asthma, diabetes and
epilepsy in children

Target

Current
data

Trend

2013

2014

Q1

Q4

Q1

METRIC 7:
METRIC 7:
METRIC 7:

DOT

Commentary

Trend chart is an example only, data not yet available
Trend chart is an example only, data not yet available

Q4

METRIC 4: Emergency admissions for acute conditions that
should not usually require hospital admission (all ages)
METRIC 4: Emergency admissions for children with lower
respiratory tract infection.

Data RAG

Trend chart is an example only, data not yet available

Q1…

Q2

Q3 Q4

2012

Trend chart is an example only, data not yet available

2014

Trend chart is an example only, data not yet available

2014

Trend chart is an example only, data not yet available

2014

Trend chart is an example only, data not yet available

2012

2012

130
APPENDIX A - Better Care Fund - Integration Executive Dashboard
Exception information

A Unified Prevention Offer for Communities
Schemes

JHWS Priority

ACTION
PLAN

Managing the
shift to early
intervention
and prevention

1

8

FINANCE

METRIC

Schemes

2

9

Assistive technology

10

SAVINGS

1

FINANCE

1

METRIC

1

Schemes

2

2

2

Additional information

Night time nursing off track. Revised deadline for
phased implementation approach to be fully
operational by Sept. Mitigations have been put in
place for the delay.

All projects are on track.

4

Integrated Crisis Response Service: Records
of data collected in place and can evidence
elements of impacts on metrics. There are some
data quality elements to be worked on, which
may form part of the assessment. Co-location
being trialled in Narborough, testing joint
assessments and triaging.
Frail Older People Service: Business case
underway and will be completed by end June.
Expanded role of primary medical care: In
progress. Workshops being held. Paper to go to
June Integration Exec

5

Exception information

Improved Hospital Discharge and Reablement
Schemes

JHWS Priority

Schemes
Patient Transfer Minimum
Data Set

1 1

11

1

HWBS 11.
Maximising
independence

SAVINGS

Exception commentary

Anne Walsh/
Integrated Crisis Response Yasmin Sidyot/ Night time nursing has led to a predicted
Caron
Service
underspend for the year of up to £250k
Williams

2

SAVINGS

Theme Lead

Anne Walsh/
Integrated Crisis Response Yasmin Sidyot/
Caron
Service
Williams

HWBS 10:
Planning for an
ageing
population

METRIC

Local Area Co-ordination: This scheme is in
the planning stage and developing impacts on
metrics 4 and 6 in particular. Business case due
end of June.

Exception information
Schemes

FINANCE

To become BAU. Project closure report due by
July. New procurement complete, entering into 6
month transition period. Charging being
introduced in Aug 14. The integration of this
scheme is yet to start and has been delayed.
Carers Service: Carers consultation in
Amber RAG status to reflect this. This will be
progress. Report due to Cabinet Sept 14.
picked up by the Step Up Step Down board.
Following outcome of consultation a new model
will be produced.

11

JHWS Priority

ACTION
PLAN

Additional information

All projects are on track.

Integrated Urgent Response

ACTION
PLAN

Anne Walsh

Exception commentary

All projects are on track.

2

1

Theme Lead

1 1

8

Integrated Residential
Reablement

8

14

Caron
Williams

Jackie Wright/
Caron
Williams or
Yasmin Sidyot

Exception commentary

Additional information

Workshops to clarify & confirm arrangements are
now being organised.
There is a task and finish group set up through
the Urgent Care Working Group that is
developing the 3 discharge pathways – defining
the pathways will enable the development of the
local reablement model. The group is an LLR
task and finish group with representation from 3
CCGs and 3 LAs.

Patient Transfer Minimum
Data Set

Caron
Williams

Integrated Residential
Reablement

Jackie Wright/
Delays in implementing the reablement model
Caron
will result in an underspend of c£30k per month.
Williams or
Yasmin Sidyot

4

6

Theme Lead

The level of underspend will be determined by
the the outcomes of the workshops. At this
stage it is anticipated that any underspend will
roll into 2015/16.

All projects are on track.

Intermediate Care: LPT contract 14/15 has
been signed which includes Intermediate Care.
Strengthening Mental Health Discharge
Provision: Services in place. Hospital Social
Workers attend twice weekly meetings to
monitor DTOC numbers.

131
APPENDIX A - Better Care Fund - Integration Executive Dashboard
Exception information

Integrated, proactive care for those with long-term conditions
Schemes

JHWS Priority

ACTION
PLAN

HWBS 12.
Management
of long-term
conditions

1

Schemes

10

1

Theme Lead

Exception commentary
Operational workstream is led within the CCGs
hosted contract team. Update to be provided to
Integrated Exec July meeting.

Continuing Healthcare

All projects are on track.

FINANCE
10

METRIC

2

9

All projects are on track.

3

SAVINGS

Additional information

Pathway to Housing: Measurements in place
but not linked to outcomes as yet. Increasing
amount of housing options and number of
individuals supported to move into own housing.
Reducing support packages during regular
reviews.
Improving Quality in Care Homes: QIT /
Safeguarding. Measurements in place but not
linked to outcomes. New safeguarding threshold
tool introduced across LLR. A slow reduction in
care home safeguarding investigations being
identified.
IT Enablers: Being led by LLR IM&T
workstream. Feasibility work being completed by
LCC on use of NHS number. Project brief will
follow in Q2.

12

Exception information

Further Integration schemes
Schemes

JHWS Priority

ACTION
PLAN

1

FINANCE

1

Schemes

4

2

1

5

METRIC

7

SAVINGS

7

Theme Lead

Exception commentary

Transitions

Actions previously agreed by PCT are now being
renegotiated due to organisational change.
Progress overall on action plan is good but
further progress is needed.

Management of LD Pooled
Budget

Risk of overspend to pooled budget. Financial
modelling to be undertaken that will identify the
extent of the potential overspend.

All projects are on track.

Additional information

Winterbourne View Concordat: National JIP
submitted on schedule. Plan now being
implemented
Short Breaks: Strategic aims agreed.
Objectives being scoped. Business case &
implementation plan being drawn up.
Transitions: Emerging work around SEND
agenda & EHCs. Working with partners in
education & CYPS to develop systems to
identify individuals earlier. This should help with
management of the pooled budget.
Housing Offer to Health: Lightbulb project:
Paper to LCC CMT to discuss projects to pursue
to secure transformational funding from DCLG
for 2015/16. Expressions of interest for this to be
completed by July 2014.
Housing offer to Health: Hospital Discharge
Housing Enabler: Job descriptions for Housing
officers to work with LPT are in draft format.
KPI's outlined to measure scheme effectiveness.
These are being agreed.

132

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX B - Health and Wellbeing Strategic Priorities
Dashboard
133
Better Public Health
Exception Information
Priority

Indicator

Reduce Health Inequalities and Increase Life
Expectancy

3

2

Reduce Premature Mortality from Respiratory
and Cardiovascular Disease

2

Exception commentary

Additional information

Performance on track

This section includes the following indicators:
1. Slope index of inequality in life expectancy at birth (Males)
(Leics) (PHOF 0.2iii)
2. Slope index of inequality in life expectancy at birth (Females)
(Leics) (PHOF 0.2iii)
3. Life expectancy at birth (Males) (Leics) (PHOF 0.1ii)
4. Life expectancy at birth(Females) (Leics) (PHOF 0.1ii)
5. Take up of the NHS Health Check Programme – by those
eligible

Performance on track

This section includes the following indicators:
1. Under 75 mortality rate from all cardiovascular diseases
(Persons per 100,000) (Leics) (PHOF 4.04i)
2. Under 75 mortality rate from respiratory disease (Persons per
100,000) (Leics) (PHOF 4.07i)

Reduce Cancer Mortality

3

Performance on track

This section includes the following indicators:
1. Under 75 mortality rate from cancer (Persons per 100,000)
(Leics) (PHOF 4.05i)
2. % of eligible women screened - breast cancer (Leics) (PHOF
2.20i)
3. % of eligible women screened - cervical cancer (Leics) (PHOF
2.20ii)

Healthy Weight Adults

1

Performance on track

This section includes the following indicators:
1. % of adults classified as overweight or obese (Leics) (PHOF
2.12)

Reduce the Harm of Substance Misuse - Drugs
and Alcohol

Improved Sexual Health

Tobacco Control and Smoking Cessation

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

Drugs and alcohol indicator trends
are generally positive. In terms of
% successful completion of drug
treatment completion rates, there is
treatment - non-opiate users
still some way to go to achieve the
(PHOF 2.15ii)
top quartile range compared to
similar areas

This section includes the following indicators:
1. % successful completion of drug treatment - opiate users
(PHOF 2.15i)
2. % successful completion of drug treatment - non-opiate users
(PHOF 2.15ii)
3. Admissions to hospital for alcohol related causes (rate per
100,000) (Leics) (PHOF 2.18)

1

The diagnosis rate overall is low
Chlamydia diagnoses (rate per
compared to England average
100,000 15-24 year olds) (Leics) however the rate for non(PHOF 3.02ii)
genitourinary (GU) settings is close
to England Average.

This section includes the following indicators:
1. Chlamydia diagnoses (rate per 100,000 15-24 year olds) (Leics)
(PHOF 3.02ii)
2. People presenting with HIV at a late stage of infection - % of
presentations (Leics) (PHOF 3.04)
3. Under 18 conceptions (rate per 1,000) (Leics) (PHOF 2.04)

Performance on track

1

This section includes the following indicators:
1. Prevalence of smoking among persons aged 18 years and over
(Leics) (PHOF 2.14)
2. Number of self-reported 4 week smoking quitters (Leics)
3. % of women smoking at time of delivery (Leics) (PHOF 2.03)

Better Physical Health
Exception Information
Priority

Indicator

1

Active Young People

1

Active Adults

1

Exception commentary

Additional information

Performance on track

This section includes the following indicators:
1. % of physically active adults (PHOF 2.13i)

Performance on track

This section includes the following indicators:
1. % of physically inactive adults (Leics) (PHOF 2.13i)
2. % of adults participating in one or more sports a week for 30
minutes or more (Leics)

Improving Children and Young Peoples Health
Exception Information
Priority

Child Healthy Weight and Good Diet

Breastfeeding and Maternity Support

Indicator

1

Performance on track

2

1

Exception commentary

The Breast Feeding 6-8 weeks
prevalence target remains
% of mothers breastfeeding at 6problematic particularly in the West
8 weeks
of the County where breast feeding
rates are lowest.

1

Additional information
This section includes the following indicators:
1. % of children with excess weight - 4-5 year olds (Leics) (PHOF
2.06i)
2. % of children with excess weight - 10-11 year olds (Leics)
(PHOF 2.06ii)
3. % children aged 5 years with one or more decayed, missing or
filled teeth

This section includes the following indicators:
1. % of mothers initiating breastfeeding
2. % of mothers breastfeeding at 6-8 weeks

Better Mental Health
Exception Information
Priority

Earlier Mental Health Detection and Treatment

Earlier Detection/ Treatment of mental health
problems in children

Effective Support for People with poor mental
health

KEY:

Indicator

4

1

Exception commentary

Performance on track

Performance on track

This section includes the following indicators:
1. Emotional health of looked after children - mean SDQ scores
2. Waiting times for assessment by Child & Adolescent Mental
Health Services (CAMHS)

Performance on track

This section includes the following indicators:
1. Average length of stay in acute hospitals
2. Number of bed days commissioned from out of county hospitals
3. Delayed transfers of care (mental health service users)
4. % of adults in contact with secondary mental health services
living in settled accommodation (ASCOF 1H)

2

4

Additional information
This section includes the following indicators:
1. % of people with a low satisfaction score - self-reported wellbeing (Leics) (PHOF 2.23i)
2. % of people with a low happiness score - self-reported wellbeing (Leics) (PHOF 2.23iii)
3. % of people with a high anxiety score - self-reported well-being
(Leics) (PHOF 2.23iv)
4. Excess under 75 mortality rate in adults with serious mental
illness (Leics) (PHOF 4.9)
5. Suicide rate (Persons per 100,000) (Leics) (PHOF 4.10)

134

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX C - Provider and CCG Performance Dashboard
135
Providers
Supporting Indicators

Exception Indicators

UHL

Indicator

Referral to Treatment

1

2

4

Diagnostic Waiting Time

52 Week waiters

Performance on track

2
Emergency Dept. Waiting Time < 4 Hours

ED Waiting Times

Comment
As at February 2014, there was 1 instance of a patient waiting over
52 weeks on a referral to treatment pathway against a zero
tolerance

2

As at 09.04.14, Accident and Emergency was 84.77%, against a
target of 95% for patients to be admitted, transferred or discharged
within 4 hours.

Emergency Dept. Handovers between ED
At March 2013, 12.9% of handovers between ambulance and A
& Ambulance > 30 mins
and E took place in over 30 minutes against a zero tolerance
Delayed Transfers of Care - no. of
patients as a % of occupied bed days

1

Delayed Transfer of Care

Cancer 62 Day Waiting Time (All
Providers)

1

At February 2014, WL is achieving the 85% standard with EL&R
CCG reporting 84.6%. This is an improvement on November 2013
position.

1

4

As at 27/03/14, 4.43% were delayed against a national target of
3.5%.

1

Never Events

At March 2014 there had been 3 Never Events reported.

Pressure Ulcers (avoidable Grade 3 & 4)

At December there has been 55 avoidable pressure ulcers (Grade
3 and 4) against a zero tolerance.

Pressure Ulcers (Grade 2)

There have been 99 (Grade 2) against a zero tolerance.

Safety Thermometer (% No Harms)

At March 2014, 94% of patients are harm free against a standard
of 95%.

Hospital Quality

EMAS
At March 2014, Category A (8 minutes) Red 1 for EMAS is 71.26%
and Category A Red 2 is 71.46% against a target of 75% and
Category A (19 minutes) EMAS is 93.82%.

3

Ambulance Response Times
LPT
Efficient Services

1 1

4

Quality - Safe Care

1

3

1

Occupancy Rate - Community

The Community Occupany rate performance has declined slightly
and is reporting 86.6% at April 2014 against the 93% or above
target.

STEIS - SI actions plans implemented
within timescales

At April 2014, 70% of STEIS - SI action plans were implemented
within timescales against a target of 100%.

CCG Indicators
Supporting Indicators

Exception Indicators

West Leicestershire CCG

Indicator

Domain 2 Enhancing quality of life for
people with Long Term Conditions

Performance on track

2

Domain 3 Helping people to recover from
episodes of ill health or following injury

1

1

Domain 4 Ensuring that people have a
positive experience of care

1

1

Domain 5 Treating and caring for people
in a safe environment and protecting
them from avoidable harm

1

1

Local CCG (West)

2

Comment

Emergency Admissions for children with Currently reporting 166.3 (FOT to Feb 14)
Lower Respiratory Tract Infections (LRTI) against a 143.40 12/13 outturn, with a target of a reduction or 0%
per 100,000 population (WLCCG)
change from the previous year.
Performance on track

3

Incidence of health associated infection
MRSA (WLCCG)

Reporting 5 incidences against a zero tolerance. Protocol in place
for all MRSA BSI cases- in line with NHS England requirements.

% reduction in emergency admissions
from care homes.
(No. of emergency admissions reported)

As at February 2014 FOT, there are 1563 admissions against a
645 baseline. There are a number of actions in place, which will
help to focus and target interventions.

% of people who enter psychological
therapies

As at February 2014, % of people entering psychological therapies
was 13.7% against a target of 15%, this is an improvement on
December 2013 results.

East Leicestershire & Rutland CCG
Domain 2 Enhancing quality of life for
people with Long Term Conditions

Performance on track

2

Domain 3 Helping people to recover from
episodes of ill health or following injury

1

1

Domain 4 Ensuring that people have a
positive experience of care

1

1

Emergency Admissions for children with Currently reporting 182.2 (FOT to Feb 14)
Lower Respiratory Tract Infections (LRTI) against a 181.66 12/13 outturn, with a target of a reduction or 0%
per 100,000 population (ELRCCG)
change from the previous year.
Performance on track
Incidence of health associated infection
MRSA (ELRCCG)

Domain 5 Treating and caring for people
in a safe environment and protecting
them from avoidable harm

2
Incidence of health associated infection
CDIFF (ELRCCG)
% increase in people dying at home

Local CCG (East & Rutland)

3

1

1

% of people who have a stroke who are
scanned & treated in 24 hrs
% of people who enter psychological
therapies

KEY:

Reporting 3 incidences against a zero tolerance. Protocol in place
for all MRSA BSI cases- in line with NHS England requirements.
As at March 2014 there were 89 incidences against a target of 74,
this is an improvement on December 2013. Development of a
Whole Health Economy action plan in underway
As at January 2014 results were 23.9% against a target of 30%
As at March 2014 results were 67.1% against a target of 70%
As at February 2014 results were 14.5% against a target of 15%,
an improvement on December 2013

136

This page is intentionally left blank

137

Agenda Item 17

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: 17TH JULY 2014
REPORT OF UNIVERSITY HOSPITALS OF LEICESTER
QUALITY ACCOUNT 2013-14
Purpose of report
1.

The purpose of this report is to share the final draft of the quality account for
information and assurance. Please note that due to reporting deadlines the Quality
Account was presented to and approved by the Trust Board on 26th June.

Policy Framework and Previous Decisions
2.

NHS England (Gateway Reference No. 000931) have confirmed that all NHS
providers are required to consult with local scrutineers including local Healthwatch
and Health and Wellbeing Boards. Comments will then be included in the final
published Quality Account.

Background
3.

Quality Accounts (QA) are annual reports to the public from providers of NHS
healthcare about the quality of services they deliver.

4.

For 2013/14, there is no significant change in the arrangements for producing quality
accounts and the Department of Health, the NHS Trust Development Agency and
Monitor jointly wrote to all Chief Executives on the 9th January 2014. This confirmed
the quality account regulations remain unchanged but requested inclusion of the staff
and patient element of the Friends and Family Test in the quality account.

5.

The draft quality account has gone through several iterations following feedback from
the Executive Quality Board, Quality Assurance Committee and external
stakeholders.

Consultation/Patient and Public Involvement
6.

The draft Quality Account was presented to UHL Patient Advisors and Healthwatch
(who provided commentary).

Resource Implications
7.

There were no additional resource implications required to produce the document.

Timetable for Decisions
8.

Not applicable as the paper is for information only.

138
Conclusions/Recommendations
9.

The Health and Wellbeing Board are asked to receive and note the final draft of the
Quality Account which includes Stakeholders commentary. The draft Quality Account
has been discussed at the Quality Assurance Committee and with external
stakeholders resulting in amendments ahead of the final draft.

10. It is anticipated that there will be an opportunity for the Health and Wellbeing Board
to provide commentary on the Quality Account for 2014-15 towards the end of April
2015.
Background papers
11.

DoH Quality Accounts: A guide (2011) for Overview and Scrutiny Committees:
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/2156
88/dh_133408.pdf

Officer to Contact
Sharron Hotson, Director of Clinical Quality
University Hospitals of Leicester
Telephone: 0116 256 3381
Email: sharron.hotson@uhl-tr.nhs.uk
List of Appendices
Appendix 1: 2013/14 Quality Account for UHL Trust

2

139

Quality Account
2013 / 2014

140

1

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

141

2

Contents

1

Aims and Achievements in quality

i Statement on quality from
the Chief Executive

4

3

Statements of Assurance
from the Board

i Review of services

i Examples of how we reviewed
our services in 2013/14

i Participation in clinical research

2

45
46

Review of quality performance
in 2013/14

i Goals agreed with commissioners:
Use of the CQUIN payment
framework
46

6

47

i Our aims 2013/14 – A review of
last years quality priorities
i Save Lives

i Avoid Harm

i Patient Centred Care

i Culture, leadership and
workforce capability

i Investment in nurse staffing
and recruitment

i Our new management structure
i Listening into Action

i The NHS outcomes framework
indicators 2013/14
i Performance against national
standards 2013/14

i NPSA alert compliance 2013/14
i Never events 2013/14

i Data quality: NHS number
of general practice code validity
i Clinical coding error rate

7

i What others say about
Leicester’s Hospitals (NHS):
Statement from the
care quality commission (CQC)

11
14
16

i How we listen

i What do our patients tell us

22
23

5

25

i Our plans for the future
2014/15

50

Other Statements

i Statements from Clinical
Commissioning Groups,
Healthwatch and Health and
Wellbeing Board
i Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities in Respect of
the Quality Report

30
32
33

53

58

36
40

Our Plans for the Future

i The quality commitment
2014/15

49

19

i How we keep everyone informed 35

3

4

42
43

6

Appendices

i Appendix 1 : Caring at its best
Structure and Content

i Appendix 2 : National Clinical
Audits and National Confidential
Enquiries 2013/14
i Appendix 3 : Improvements in
patient care as a result of
clinical audits

64

66

69

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

3

1

142

Statement on quality from
the Chief Executive

5

143

1

4

Statement from the
Chief Executive

Hello and welcome to the Trust’s Quality Account for 2013/14. First a reminder of what the Quality Account
is here to do. People are familiar with organisations publishing Annual reports and Accounts at the end of
their financial year. The quality account as the name suggests is our annual ‘stocktake’ of all things to do with
quality in our hospitals… it’s not about money it’s about whether what we do for our patients is good, bad or
indifferent.
In truth it is a difficult document to preface. Let me explain why…
Leicester’s Hospitals operate in excess of 120 different clinical services across 4 separate hospital sites
including St Mary’s in Melton. When we talk about quality we are therefore not talking about one service
or even one hospital but a range of services provided by 10,000 staff treating anything from simple skin
conditions through to complex heart surgery. What is more there are any number of ways of measuring
quality; mortality and outcomes, waiting times, patient experience, surgical revision rates, discharge processes
to name but a few. Exaggerating to make the point; a patient may come to us requiring complex, even
ground-breaking surgery, they may have been seen and treated quickly with no complications and their stay
on the wards might have been exemplary in terms of post-operative care and compassion BUT when it comes
to their discharge home we might make mistakes which cause delay, frustration and concern for the patient
and their family… we saved their life but does that alone equate to ‘quality’?
These are the judgements that I and my colleagues in clinical and managerial positions make on a daily and
sometimes hourly basis about our services. My reason for sharing this with you is so that when I say that I
think that Leicester’s Hospitals on the whole provide quality services, I hope you understand that within that
I mean there are some services which I think are excellent…the best in their field, and then there are some
which cause me concern. In between are a host of services which I think are good and could be excellent with
a push.
A case in point is our A&E. Recently the Care Quality Commission, (CQC) inspected Leicester’s Hospitals and
spent a good deal of time talking to staff and patients in the department. Now, if you are familiar with the
Trust you will know that our A&E performance is poor in terms of waiting times. I also think that our A&E
is poor in terms of the environment in which care takes place. The CQC agreed but they also pointed out
that what patients actually said about their experience of A&E put the Trust well above average for patient
experience compared to our peers.
So hopefully we can agree that quality means different things to different people. Recognising this we
have, over the last 18 months, made much of our ‘Quality Commitment’… which aims to define Leicester’s
approach to quality improvement. The three key strands of our work are…
1. Saving more lives (technically described as “reducing mortality rates”)
2. Reducing “avoidable” harm, for example bed sores, falls and infections
3. Improving patient experience.
The Quality Account deals with each of these in turn but I want to pull out a few high and lowlights which I
think deserve attention.
In terms of mortality our overall mortality rate has declined year on year, which is absolutely as it should be.
However, whilst still being within expectations when compared with peers we know that there is more that
we can do to understand the key drivers of mortality and further improve our mortality rates on a service by
service basis.
As regards’ avoidable harms’ we have had a really good year. A strong focus on the causes and prevention of
falls, particularly amongst our older patients, has seen a dramatic decrease in the numbers of patients falling
on wards and in clinics. Similarly we have ruthlessly pursued our strategy to reduce avoidable pressure ulcers

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

144

5

1

Statement from the
Chief Executive

(bed sores) and this too has led to significant decreases in the numbers of patients who have developed a
pressure sore whilst in our care. Lastly, Leicester has been one of the very best performing Trusts in terms of
the low numbers of patients who pick up infections like clostridium difficile and MRSA. In fact in terms of
c-diff I must confess that the reduction target at the start of the year was so ambitious that I really thought
we were on a hiding to nothing in terms of achieving it… I am very happy to say that I have been proved
wrong.
Turning to ‘patient experience’ this is another success story for the year. For too long our overall patient
experience ratings have been decidedly average. More worryingly they were not getting any better. This
year we have seen a marked improvement in our ‘friends and family test’ scores, (Would you recommend
these hospitals to your friends / family?) and though I don’t have the evidence to prove this yet I am
convinced that this is in no small part down to the focus that our Chief Nurse has brought to ward staffing
levels, (including a £6m investment in extra nurses and HCAs), ward leadership and generally supporting
nurses to do what they do best.
There have of course also been problems. I have already highlighted emergency care performance and this
remains our most urgent quality issue. Elsewhere our ophthalmology service has struggled to keep up with
demand and this has resulted in long waiting times for patients and poor patient experience whilst waiting
in clinic. And as I write we have just received an external review report, which we instigated and has led to
the decision to pause our kidney transplant service whilst we sort out some quality and process issues with
the team.
Before I sign off I must mention the Care Quality Commission’s, (CQC) inspection which took place in
January 2014. Over 40 inspectors spent 4 days at the Trust talking to staff, patients and stakeholders about
quality, safety, leadership and effectiveness.
The Chief Inspector of Hospitals for CQC, Professor Sir Mike Richards, said: “We found that the University
Hospitals of Leicester NHS Trust was providing services that were safe, effective, responsive, caring and wellled. Staff we spoke to were positive, and patients we spoke to were positive about the care that they had
received at the trust.”
I think the CQC’s report was fair and balanced. They recognised that we were on a journey to fundamentally
improve our services and that we are making progress. What leaped off the page when I first read the
report and in subsequent readings was this…
“Overwhelmingly we were told that staff were caring… we found emotional support was provided, not
only in areas where you would expect it but also that staff in all areas were prepared to go ‘the extra mile’”.
I think our staff are marvellous. They are passionate and caring and so I will end with saying thank you to
them for all that they do as we continue to strive for our goal of “Caring at its Best”
Yours,

John Adler
Chief Executive
University Hospitals of Leicester NHS Trust

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

5

145

2

6

Review of quality performance
in 2013/14

Our aims for 2013/14: A review of last year’s quality priorities
Last year (2012/13) we set the following three priorities for improvement to achieve over the next three
years:
i

To save 1,000 extra lives

i To avoid 5,000 harm events

i To provide patient centred care so that we achieve a Friends and Family score of 75

Target Achieved/
On Plan

Behind Plan

SAVE LIVES
Out-of-hours
Respiratory Pathway

AVOID HARM
Falls
Acting on Results in ED
Senior Review, Ward Rounds
and Notation

PATIENT CENTRED CARE
Older People and Dementia
Discharge Experience

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

146

7

2

Save lives
Out-of-hours

What
1. Reinforce and accelerate roll-out of Hospital We Care 24/7* Initiative.
2. Detailed audit and process mapping to identify cause of higher out-of-hours mortality.
3. Encourage out-of-hours communication between junior doctors and consultants.

*We care 24/7 is a new initiative to ensure Leicester’s Hospitals has an out-of-hours multidisciplinary team who possess the full range of
skills and competencies required to manage the immediate needs of our patients after 5pm, over-night during the week and 24 hours a
day at weekends.

By When:

March 2014

Progress:

Behind plan

Improvements achieved:
Since January, Hospital 24/7 has been launched successfully at Glenfield Hospital, Leicester General Hospital
and Leicester Royal Infirmary. Connectivity issues caused early problems but these were fixed ahead of the
launch at the Royal Infirmary. Early response time metrics have been very promising and a handover process
form has been successfully carried out.
As the baseline was ‘bespoke’ it has not been possible to routinely monitor or agree a threshold. Following
discussions at the last Mortality Review Committee and subsequently with the Medical Director, it has been
agreed we use ‘weekend emergency admissions’ as a surrogate indicator (as this can be routinely reported
from Dr Foster Indicator [DFI] and Ealthcare Evaluation Data (HED) for both the ‘in hospital mortality’
[Relative Risk/HSMR] and ‘within 30 days of discharge’ [SHMI]).
The table below indicates there has been a reduction in all mortality parameters during 2013/14.

2012/13

2013/14

3.36%

3.05% (to Oct)

Relative Risk (DFI)2

111

923 (to Oct)

Hospital Standardised
Mortality Ratios (HED)

109

103 (to Oct)

Summary Hospital-level
Mortality Indicator (HED)

118

107 (to Sept)

Weekend Emergency Admissions
Crude Mortality1

1

Using the DFI Relative Risk data set.
Includes all admissions.
3
It should be noted that the DFI Relative Risk for 2013/14 will increase following annual rebasing whereas the HED HSMR is rebased
3
each time the dataset is updated.
2

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

147

2

8

Save lives
Out-of-hours

Further improvements required:
i
i

i
i

Further work needs to be undertaken to properly understand whether the perceived difference in
mortality rates between patients admitted in ‘working hours’ and ‘out-of-hours’ is clinically significant.
There is also a need to clarify the scope of the ‘out-of-hours’ work stream as the original intention was
to look at ‘out-of-hours admissions’. The baseline data was created from a bespoke report (by BCG)
which matched the SHMI data set (provided by HED) with our internal data for ‘time of admission’
(this is not captured by the national data set).
Further opportunities have been identified in medical handover processes, phlebotomy cover and
culture around calling consultants.
Whilst there has been some more detailed analysis of ‘out-of-hours’ data for respiratory diagnosis
groups, there has been a delay in rolling this out to other conditions.

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

148

9

2

Save lives
Respiratory pathway

What
1. Redirect more Respiratory Pathway patients to Glenfield Hospital.
2. Reinforce best practice, including respiratory registrar secondments between Glenfield Hospital
and Leicester Royal Infirmary.
3. Increase transparency on key metrics.

By When:

March 2014

Progress:

On plan

5

i The Respiratory Pathway was successfully launched in July 2013 with exclusion criteria agreed by Glenfield
Hospital, Leicester Royal Infirmary, GPs and EMAS (East Midlands Ambulance Service).
i In September 2013, two dedicated pneumonia nurses started in post. Their main role, supported by the
Respiratory Pathway consultant lead, is to support implementation of the pneumonia care bundle across
both the Royal Infirmary and Glenfield sites.
i Over 300 patients with pneumonia were reviewed by the end of December 2013 (at the Royal Infirmary
and Glenfield). Both Pneumonia admissions and the care bundle delivery are audited regularly and are
being tracked using an online database tool.

Improvements achieved:

i The Respiratory Pathway has led to an increase of patients with co-morbidity and frailty being admitted
to the Royal Infirmary.
i Early results suggest there has been a reduction in mortality for patients admitted with pneumonia, both
at the Royal Infirmary and Glenfield.
i Overall mortality for Leicester’s Hospitals has fallen for both crude and risk adjusted mortality between
Quarter 1 (Q1) and Quarter 2 (Q2) in 2013/14.

Pre Pathway Implementation
Q1 (Apr – Jun 2013)

Pre Pathway Implementation
Q2 (Jul – Oct 2013)

Crude Mortality

19%

18%

Relative Risk (DFI)

114

Pneumonia

Hospital Standardised
Mortality Ratios (HED)

129

Summary Hospital-level
Mortality Indicator (HED)

122

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

93
(Jul – Oct 13 Un-rebased)

105
(Jul – Oct 13 Un-rebased)

109
(Jul – Sept 2013)

149

2

10

Save lives
Respiratory pathway

Further improvements required:

i Respiratory Pathway to be further embedded to see if the early impact on mortality rates has been
sustained.
i Implement teaching about the pneumonia care bundle through a ‘simulation package’ via the Clinical
Skills Centre.
i An ICM referral document for the ‘Respiratory Virtual Clinic’ has been designed and will be implemented
in 2014.
i Senior clinician-led coding systems using iPads on the senior ward round are due to be field tested on
Clinical Decisions Unit (CDU) at Glenfield Hospital.

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

150

11

2

Avoid harm
Falls

What
1. Agree standards and focus roll-out on wards with greatest need.
2. Dedicated staff training; linked to older people and dementia training.
3. Transparent tracking; Older People’s team to coach underperforming wards and ‘postcards’
to celebrate success.

By When:

December 2013

Progress:

Target achieved

Improvements achieved:

i Trajectory to reduce falls to less than 7.5 per 1000 bed days in patients aged 65 and over has been
consistently achieved since August 2013.
i Introduction of a root cause analysis process to validate all falls in wards/clinical areas with the
highest number of falls.
i The safety thermometer reported that more patients did not fall or sustain harm from a fall in
January 2014 compared to the beginning of the year.

Further improvements required:
i
i
i

Focus on reducing the amount of harmful falls
Implementing patient-specific falls prevention actions for all patients aged 65 and over or patients
with a clinical condition that increases their risk of a fall
Ensure consistency in the actions taken when a patient does fall

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

151

2

12

Avoid harm
Acting on results in the Emergency Department

What
1. Agree standards for checking blood results and imaging reporting.
2. Communicate these standards and engage staff.
3. Increase transparency through monthly league table; reward high performers.

By When:

December 2013

Progress:

On plan

Improvements achieved:

i Implementation of a robust process to ensure all Imaging reports are reviewed after the patient has
been discharged from the Emergency Department (ED) and sent home.

Further improvements required:

i Improved Imaging reporting times for ED by use of ‘hot reporting’ in the department.
i Create an electronic solution for communicating abnormal results directly to clinical teams.

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

152

13

2

Avoid harm
Senior review, ward rounds and notation

What
1. Agree standards for review; conduct spot-checks.
2. Pilot and audit ward-round checklists and template; review and roll-out further.
3. Agree standards for notation; engage doctors and track improvement.

By When:

March 2014

Progress:

On Target

Improvements achieved:

i Standards for review have been agreed and audited in Medicine
i The scope of current practice in other specialities has been completed to identify areas for improvement
i A ‘Ward round safety checklist’ and a revised ‘medical continuation paper’ has been implemented across
Leicester’s Hospitals with specific versions for Adults, Children’s and Obstetrics in February / March 2014.

Further improvements required:

i Ongoing audit programme to monitor compliance with revised documentation
i Education and simulation training for ward teams on ward round structure and process.

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

153

2

14

Patient centred care
Older people and dementia

What
1. Ward-based multi-professional staff training.
2. Expand Older People’s Champions; set up resource centre and meaningful activities team.
3. Personal profiles for all patients with dementia; white board communication tool.
4. Increase patient / carer involvement; matrons / allied lead professionals on ward at visiting times;
doctors to employ communication tools (e.g. Teach-back).
5. Track and hold to account (e.g. ward net promoter scores on notice board).

By When:

March 2014

Progress:

On target

Improvements achieved:

i By the end of January 2014, 6,330 members of staff had completed Dementia Awareness ‘Category A’
training and 2,171 Dementia Awareness ‘Category B’ training.

i Increased the number of Older Peoples Champions; a further 325 members of staff, including student nurses
and volunteers have attended Older People Champions workshops.
i Three Meaningful Activities Facilitators started in September 2013 to support patients with dementia on
wards 19, 31 and 32 at LRI. Meaningful activity, such as arts and crafts, reminiscence and music therapy
can improve the well being of people with dementia as well as promoting a closer working relationship
with their carers. It provides an opportunity for cognitive stimulation, and supports physical, sensory and
psychological well-being for people with dementia whilst they are in hospital.
i A ‘Carers Support’ post has been appointed using Charitable Funds to support carers (including young
carers), whilst their family member is admitted to hospital. In partnership with the Alzheimer’s Society,
34 local carers of people with dementia attended a ‘Carers Information and Support Programme (CRISP)’
organised by UHL in 2013.

i Significant improvement has been made in the use of ‘Patient Profiles’ for people admitted with dementia
across all Clinical Management Groups (CMGs). Audit has shown an increase from 6% (September 2013) to
over 50% (January 2014).

i In May 2013, with support from the Alzheimer’s Society, a Dementia Champion Network was launched. Staff
can now access the Dementia Champion workshop.

i Eight wards have signed up to the Quality Mark for Elder-Friendly Hospital Wards. Funding is being explored
to support environmental recommendations.

Further improvements required:

i Introduce a Dementia Implementation Plan in line with national and local guidelines.

i Continue to monitor the Quality Mark for Elder-Friendly Hospital Wards scheme and where possible,
implement recommendations to enhance ward environments.

i Continue to engage and monitor feedback from older people and people with dementia; ensuring service
improvement groups have appropriate representation to reflect the needs of older people and people with
dementia.
i Improve access and training for staff in understanding complex needs of frail older people.

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

154

15

2

Patient centred care
Discharge experience

What
1. Agree standards for discharge plans; conduct spot-checks.
2. Employ communication tools; develop ‘Ticket Home’ and add board round check for
communication with family / carer.
3. Increase discharge co-ordinators.
4. Track improvement and hold to account.

By When:

March 2014

Progress:

Behind plan

Improvements achieved:

i Discharge plans for all patients within medical wards are now tracked on a shared spreadsheet to provide
the information necessary for monitoring during the twice daily patient progress team conference calls.
This call has attendance from corporate operations team/nursing, pharmacy, Leicestershire Partnership
NHS Trust (LPT), social work teams and primary care co-ordinators. The calls provide an opportunity for
these teams to assist in ensuring safe and speedy discharge.
i Regular reports from these calls are shared with the multidisciplinary team and also reported to the
Emergency Care Action Team (ECAT).
i This process is being rolled out across Leicester’s Hospitals, starting with the Renal, Respiratory and
Cardiac CMG week commencing 3 March 2014.
i Board rounds are audited
quarterly and this includes
checking for communication with
relatives /carers.

Further improvements
required:

i All wards will have available
weekly discharge metric reports
to be shared within the team,
allowing teams to set local
improvement targets.

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

155

2

16

Culture, leadership and
workforce capability

Our staff are our most important resource in delivering high quality care. Culture can be defined as
the values, beliefs and attitudes an organisation and its employees share in ‘the way we do things
around here’.
We have embedded a set of core values and behaviours enabling us to place quality and safety at the
heart of our hospitals and fulfil our purpose to provide ‘Caring at its Best’.

We recognise that our staff are our most valuable resource and are key to the delivery of high quality
services for the benefit of the population of Leicestershire, Leicester and Rutland.
The vast majority of our staff are on national NHS pay, the terms and conditions of which include a
comprehensive set of employment policies and procedures. This year we used two ‘Listening Events’ to
shape and develop a Reward and Recognition Strategy, designed to support the motivation, recruitment
and retention of a high quality workforce. This is built around six key themes including pay and reward;
benefits; learning and development; health and well-being. Together these form our ‘employer brand’ which
is underpinned by the Trust Values. The strategy will be delivered through a phased implementation plan.
A cornerstone of this strategy is the formal celebration of staff achievements. Our ‘Caring at its Best’ Awards
recognise individual staff and teams who epitomise our values and in so doing directly or indirectly enhance
the quality of patient care. Colleagues, patients and visitors help us discover who these staff are through a
nomination process. A winner and a ‘highly commended’ are selected from each category three times a year.
These winners and all other nominees are invited to an annual Awards Ceremony each September, where an
overall winner for each category is announced, along with the presentation of the ‘volunteer of the Year’
award.

We treat
people how
we would like
to be treated

We are
passionate
and creative
in our work

We do what
we say we
are going
to do

We focus on
what matters
most

We are one
team and we
are best
when we
work together

Our Learning and Organisational Development Awards recognise staff who have invested time and energy
in their personal development to enhance the experience of patients and carers. At our 2014 annual
event over 140 learners were presented with certificates for successfully completing vocational, skills for
life or leadership/management qualifications. Members of the Trust Board also presented seven Special
Achievement Awards to learners who had been nominated by their tutors for their exceptional progress,
commitment and outstanding achievement
We collect staff views and experiences in the workplace through the annual NHS National Staff Survey
(issued by the Care Quality Commission) and internal Listening into Action (LiA) Pulse Check surveys to help
improve the working lives of staff and the quality of care we provide. The analysis of survey results helps us
identify sustainable change and highlights areas for improvement. We have recently reviewed the 2013 NHS
National Staff Survey results for Leicester’s Hospitals along with the recent LiA Pulse Check results. The NHS
National Staff Survey has historically been completed by a randomly selected sample of staff, however this
year all staff were given the opportunity to complete the survey and local questions were also introduced for

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

156

17

2

Culture, leadership and
workforce capability

National Staff Survey has historically been completed by a randomly selected sample of staff, however this
year all staff were given the opportunity to complete the survey and local questions were also introduced for
the first time. After showing some significant improvements last year, the CQC reported only one statistically
significant change in 2013 – the completion of Equality and Diversity training the first time. After showing
some significant improvements last year, the CQC reported only one statistically significant change in 2013 Ð
the completion of Equality and Diversity training.
One of the key measures is overall staff engagement and our results slightly increased from 3.66 in 2012 to
3.68 in 2013. It is disappointing that we slipped from average to below average when compared to other
acute trusts for this measure.
In general, we received positive results in relation to staff appraisal and education, training and learning but
less positive results in relation to the observation and reporting of incidents and accidents. There were also
less positive results than in the previous year in relation to job satisfaction and motivation.
In contrast, the results from local questions and the LiA Pulse Check portrayed a more positive picture.
More staff are receiving information from our Chief Executive, cascaded by senior managers and the
communications team and almost 70% of staff believe colleagues and managers exemplify the Trust Values.
There have been significant improvements in LiA Pulse Check results since the first survey in 2013, particularly
in relation to improvements in the provision of high quality services, recognition of staff contribution and
role clarity.
* The results described above are based on the Care Quality Commission (CQC) sample of anaylsed results from Leicester’s Hospitals NHS
National Staff Survey (379 responses from 850 randomly selected by the CQC).

Leadership Qualities and Behaviours
Our Leadership Qualities and Behaviours (outlined on page 18) support our vision to consistently
demonstrate leadership excellence and deliver safe high quality pateint-centred health care. Leadership
qualities and behaviours are aligned to UHL values and have been developed following extensive
consultation with staffand leaders from across the Trust over 2013/14.

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

157

2

18

Culture, leadership and
workforce capability
Leadership Qualities and Behaviours

Leadership excellence in delivering safe high quality patient-centred health care
We treat people how
we would like to be
treated

Live our values in our actions every day.
Set clear expectations.
Show empathy and respect.
Trust and empower.

We do what we
say we are going
to do

Be responsive and accountable.
Communicate and feed back.
Be transparent and honest.
Support and develop.

We focus on what
matters most

Be patient centred.
Plan effectively for the short and longer term.
Use resources effectively and efficiently.

We are one team and
we are best when we
work together

Be visible, available and accessible.
Listen to and act on the voice of the front line.
Build and maintain relationships and
working partnerships.

We are passionate
and creative
in our work

Support innovation and creativity.
Recognise and celebrate success.

One team shared values
University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

158

19

2


Investment in nurse
[\INÅVOIVLZMKZ]Q\UMV\

Investment in Nurse Staffing
In 2013, a review of ward nurse staffing levels across the three hospital sites was requested by our Chief
Executive following the budget setting process for 2013 /14.
The review needed to address the following issues:
i
i
i

Actual budgets for 2013/14 did not reflect budgets set in 2012/13
The 2013/14 budgets did not include the monies required and agreed by the Trust Board following the
acuity work completed in 2012.
Budgets needed to include 0.4 whole time equivalents (wte) funding for supervisory status for Ward
managers.

Nurse to Bed Ratio Review (N2BR) Methodology
In May 2013, our deputy director of finance and corporate head of nursing designed and implemented
an ‘N2BR Establishment Review’ to calculate the nursing requirements across our hospitals, using the
knowledge and insight of those working on the frontline.
The corporate head of nursing met with lead nurses, matrons and ward managers from each service/area to
discuss how many staff they need, by band, per shift to effectively cover a 24 hour period.
Completed reviews were sent to the divisional head of nursing and divisional finance manager to undertake
a ‘confirm and challenge’ process with each lead nurse, before being signed off by the corporate finance and
nursing leads.
We have a significant nursing premium expenditure i.e. hire of agency nurses, to try and cover the gaps in
staffing levels and recognise this is not sustainable to ensure patient safety or continuity of care.
In July 2013, the Executive Team (approved by the Trust Board) agreed to invest £5.9m into ward nursing
budgets. Not only does this recognise the need to bring N2BR to agreed acceptable levels, it also funds
additional capacity and recognises increasing acuity of patients.

Recruitment and Advertising
Vacancies at Leicester’s Hospitals are primarily advertised through a dedicated nursing recruitment page on
NHS Jobs. Other advertising mediums are always used but all applicants are directed to apply via NHS Jobs
website which allows a prime opportunity to promote the Trust, its achievements and staff benefits.
To facilitate the ongoing recruitment of Band 5 Nurses and HCA’s, bulk recruitment campaigns have
operated throughout the year that involved a collaborative approach to the advertising of, and recruitment
to, vacant posts. In January 2013, this was supported by a Nursing Open Day in which candidates were
offered talks and tours of specialty areas across Leicester’s Hospitals. Nursing representatives from Leicester’s
Hospitals attended Royal College of Nursing (RCN) conferences throughout 2013 and will continue to attend
conferences throughout 2014 to promote the unique selling points of Leicester and our specialty areas.
We are currently undertaking a pilot of Health Care Assistant (HCA) Apprentices, through which 23
applicants have already been offered apprenticeships at our hospitals. The successful candidates started in
November 2013 with the aim that once they complete their one year apprenticeship, they will be ready to
apply for a substantive post through the HCA recruitment process in October / November 2014. Interview
panel feedback on the calibre of applicants and the recruitment process has been very positive to date.

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

159

2


20

Investment in nurse
[\INÅVOIVLZMKZ]Q\UMV\

In partnership with our supplier for recruitment marketing, we have designed innovative advertising
materials for each specialty which reflect both the overarching Trust Values and a have created a ‘brand’
specific to each specialty. The materials portray our staff describing what they value most about Leicester,
our Trust and the specialty in which they work, to give potential applicants an insight into working here.
We are fortunate to have a local university, De Montfort University (DMU), which provides pre-registration
nurse and midwifery training. There are two intakes of students a year for adult nursing at DMU (September
and January) and two outputs of newly qualified adult nurses (November and March). For children’s nursing
and midwifery there is only one intake/output a year.
The university offers an employability event for student midwives and nurses in their final semester,
which representatives from Leicester’s Hospitals attended. Feedback from the two events held to date
has been very positive with the students valuing the opportunity to talk to our staff and give assurance
that appropriate support and development opportunities will be available to newly qualified nurses and
midwives.
Subsequent speciality based recruitment events within the Trust such as ‘Tea with Matron’ have provided
the students with additional assurance. Approximately 90% of all students who qualify are retained within
Leicestershire with the majority accepting a job at Leicester’s Hospitals; this equates to on average 200 nurses
(adult and child) and midwives a year.

International Recruitment
Following a tender exercise, four agencies were commissioned to support the recruitment of Band 5 Nurses
internationally. This has involved small teams of senior nurses travelling to Portugal, Ireland, Madrid, Italy
and Greece to select candidates for Leicester’s Hospitals.

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

160

21

2


Investment in nurse
[\INÅVOIVLZMKZ]Q\UMV\

Robust plans have been put in place to support relocation for successful applicants including access to
accommodation, a mentorship/buddying arrangement and orientation to support the settling in process.
Over 200 Registered Nurses, in cohorts of 50, have been recruited through our international recruitment
campaign. We have now undertaken a further tender exercise, with one key international recruitment
agency, to support further international nursing requirements over the next three years.

Induction and Support
We have embraced Preceptorship (a mentoring experience to give personal instruction, training, and
supervision) for many years. In 2010 this work was streamlined and standardised to ensure that all newly
registered Nurses who join the Trust receive the same levels of education and support.
Preceptorship includes three core study days, up to four CMG (clinical management groups) specific study
days over a six month period, four weeks supernumerary on gaining their PIN number to support the
transition from student to staff nurse and comprehensive Administration of Medicines assessment which
incorporates a maths exam. A review of the Preceptorship Policy is currently being undertaken to reflect this
work and will also incorporate Allied Health Professional (AHP) colleagues.
For nurses recruited from the EU, the Preceptorship programme will provide a solid foundation of induction
and support. It can require some adaptation or bespoke work to meet the specific needs of these staff, which
can be undertaken in partnership with the Education and Practice Development teams.
In line with the Francis report1 recommendations, it is now compulsory for all new HCA’s to complete both
our corporate and HCA induction prior to commencing in a clinical area. Therefore all new HCA’s first
working day starts on Day One of our corporate induction.
The HCA induction includes four cross-service days and one speciality-specific day. These days are spread
across their first two to three weeks with the rest of the time being spent in their clinical areas in a
supernumerary capacity. The Childrens Hospital HCA’s and Maternity Care Assistants follow the same
standard but run their own programmes which reflect their specific requirements
New HCA’s are automatically booked onto HCA induction when the corporate induction is confirmed. The
HCA induction runs monthly and has a capacity of 35 to 50 places per course depending on the size of the
venues.

1

On 9 June 2010 the Secretary of State for Health, Andrew Lansley MP, announced a full public inquiry into the role of the
commissioning, supervisory and regulatory bodies in the monitoring of Mid Staffordshire Foundation NHS Trust. The full report can be
viewed on http://www.midstaffspublicinquiry.com/

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

161

2

22

Our new management
structure

Rather than grouping our services in 12 Clinical Business Units under three very large divisions (was Planned
Care; Acute Care; Women’s and Children’s) we have created seven smaller Clinical Management Groups
(CMGs) which are:
i Cancer, Haematology, Urology, Gastroenterology and Surgery
i Clinical Supporting and Imaging

i Emergency and Specialist Medicine

i Critical Care, Theatres, Anaesthesia, Pain and Sleep
i Musculoskeletal and Specialist Surgery
i Renal, Respiratory and Cardiac
i Women’s and Children’s

The two main reasons for these changes were:

i Reducing the multi-tiered layers of management
We previously had four layers in our management structure from Executive Team to service provision, whilst
most other NHS Trusts of a similar size only have three. By reducing the layers of management we hope to
see improvement in both the delay of information being communicated in either direction as well less delay
in decisions being made due to unnecessary escalation or confused accountabilities. It was also felt that the
Executive Team were too far removed from service provision.

i Size and complexity of Divisions
We identified that the Planned Care and Acute Care divisions did not have the Infrastructure to manage the
complexity of the services they contained.
We felt the new management structure would support effective working and promote better management
across our complex, multi-site, tertiary teaching Trust.
This simpler structure with fewer layers has already demonstrated improved working between the Executive
Team and our services. Feedback has also shown that Management visibility has improved with increased
clinical engagement and quicker, more effective decision making.

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

162

23

2

Listening into Action

Developing Listening into Action
Introducing Listening into Action (LiA) at Leicester’s Hospitals
has been an exciting journey. Launched in March 2013, LiA
introduced a new and ambitious way of working, mobilising,
engaging and empowering staff to transform our hospitals and
to deliver ‘Caring at its Best’. The foundations of LiA allow us to
create a culture for frontline staff to lead and develop services,
whilst ensuring services are patient-centred, safe and efficient.

LiA builds strong foundations through:

iAllowing senior leaders to connect with the ‘right people’ throughout major challenges
iProviding service teams with the opportunity to collaborate and share ideas

iListening to frontline staff so they ‘get on’ and deliver actions to benefit patients and fellow staff
iFostering a sense of collective ownership for the teams themselves through delivery of results.

Frontline staff, and those who help them, are supported and enabled to work differently, in a way that
switches them on; links to outcomes they care about; makes them feel valued and gives them ‘permission
to act’. To date 23 Pioneering teams have adopted LiA at a local level within wards and departments. In
addition, 11 Trustwide schemes have also used LiA to make significant changes.

Examples of successful outcomes to date include:

i Seamless Out-of-hours Services: TTO (To Take Out; prescriptions with hospital discharge) turnaround
has improved and is now less than 60 minutes on all sites (50% within 30 minutes) with resultant
avoidance of discharge delays.

i Equipment Fit for the Job: 46% improvement in the use of infusion pumps and 20% reduction in
equipment being hoarded by ward / department staff.

i Communications: More than 100 members of staff signed up to take part in the social media movement,
‘Value their Behaviour’ campaign. Staff were asked to submit a picture of themselves holding a Value card
to demonstrate how they exemplify one of the 16 behaviours that underpin our Values.
i Reducing Paperwork and Processes: Reduction of Day Case documents from 14 to 1.

i Recruitment: The development of an online Vacancy Approval process called Route to Recruit (R2R)
has reduced tiers of approvers and enables transparent tracking. An estimated £2,500 will be saved on
postage with the move to electronic conditional offer letters; 76.4% of all appointable candidates only
required one reference in line with NHS Employers standards; and 10.1 saved days on average from initial
R2R request through to receipt by recruitment staff.

i Car Parking and Travel: In December 2013, an agreement was set up with NCP Welford Road car park to
offer an 80% reduction in prices for Leicester’s Hospitals patients and their visitors. By March 2014, 75% of
bike shed locks were replaced at the Royal Infirmary.
i IM&T: 30% drop in complaints related to IM&T.

i Right Staffing: Over 200 overseas nurses have been recruited for 2014 and counting......

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

163

2

24

Culture, leadership and
workforce capability

Listening to our staff
A healthy organisation starts with a Pulse Check
The LiA Pulse Check surveys are completed by staff so we can find out how they feel about working for
Leicester’s Hospitals and ascertain their views on the services we provide.
Our LiA journey started in March 2013 with an organisation-wide Pulse Check survey which was then
repeated in January 2014. By comparing the results of the two surveys we can see an upward trend in
positive responses and a positive position when compared to other LiA organisations nationally.
In addition, Pioneering teams completed a team-based Pulse Check during the ‘listening’ phase of their
change initiative and repeated this at the end of their ‘action’ phase. As with the organisational responses,
teams responded much more positively after the action phase has been implemented.

3410 C
omplete
d

role
ow their
h
d
n
a
t
ders
staff un es to a wider
72% of
d to
ut
contrib ision compare
v
Check
ational
organis om last Pulse
41% fr

number of
26% increase on the
for the
staff that feel valued
e and the
contribution they mak
work they do
The percentage of staff
that
feel day to day issues
of
rise
a
n
bee
There has
and
frustrations that get
t
tha
l
fee
18% of staff that
in
the
way are quickly
the organisation
identified
and resolved
communicates clearly with
has doubled
about its priorities

staff

and goals

54% of staff
believe we are
providing high
quality services
compared to 30%
previously

Listening into Action Quick Wins
UHL Name Badges
Our patients and staff have told us how important it is that they know who they are talking to, so from
1 January 2014, all new starters along with our leadership teams have been required to wear a University
Hospitals of Leicester NHS Trust (UHL) Name Badge. The Name Badge is worn in addition to the more familiar
existing photographic ID badge.

Flexible visiting hours for carers
We have added the following message to the back of all ward visiting cards to ensure we have consistency in
how flexible visiting is managed across our wards:
“Our set visiting times have been developed with our patients well-being in mind. However, if you would
like to visit outside of the visiting hours please speak to us and we will do our best to help you. If you are a
patient’s main carer please contact the nurse in charge as there are special arrangements that can be made
while you are in hospital”

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

25

2

164

NHS outcomes
framework indicators

165

2

26

NHS outcomes
framework indicators

The NHS Outcomes Framework for 2013/14 sets out high level national outcomes in which the NHS
should be aiming to improve. The Framework provides indicators that have been chosen to measure
these outcomes. All Quality Accounts will report these outcomes.

An overview of the indicators is provided in the table below.
NHS
Outcomes
Framework
Domain

Indicator

SHMI value and banding (Dr. Fosters)

Preventing
people
from dying
prematurely

Helping
people to
recover from
episodes of
ill health or
following
injury

2012/13

2013/14

105 (Jul 11107 (Jul 12- 106 (Oct 12Jun 12) Band 2 Jun 13) Band Sept 13) Band
- as expected 2 - as expected 2 - as expected

National
Average

Highest
Score
Achieved

Lowest
Score
Achieved

100

119

63

%of admitted patients whose treatment included
palliative care (contextual indicator)*

0.76%

0.8%

0.9%

1.2%

3.1%

0%

(Jul 11Jun 12)

(Apr 12Mar 13)

(Oct 12Sept 13)

(Oct 12Sept 13)

(Oct 12Sept 13)

(Oct 12Sept 13)

% of admitted patients whose deaths were included in
the SHMI and whose treatment included palliative care
(contextual indicator)

13.5%

12.8%

15.2%

21.2%

44.8%

0%

(Oct 11Sept 12)

(Apr 12Mar 13)

(Oct 12Sept 13))

(Oct 12Sept 13)

(Oct 12Sept 13)

(Oct 12Sept 13)

0.060

0.086

0.157

0.013

Patient reported outcome scores for groin hernia surgery

0.085

0.085

(Apr 13Dec 13)

(Apr 13Dec 13)

(Apr 13Dec 13)

(Apr 13Dec 13)

Patient reported outcome scores for hip replacement
surgery

0.430

0.430

0.530

0.300

0.42

0.41

(Apr 13Dec 13)

(Apr 13Dec 13)

(Apr 13Dec 13)

(Apr 13Dec 13)

Patient reported outcome scores for knee replacement
surgery

0.33

Data not
available

Patient reported outcome scores for varicose vein
surgery.

0.330

0.330

0.410

0.190

(Apr 13Dec 13)

(Apr 13Dec 13)

(Apr 13Dec 13)

(Apr 13Dec 13)

Insufficient questionnaires
submitted

% of patients <16 years old readmitted to hospital
within 28 days of discharge

Data not
available

Data not
available

7.55%

7.07%

12.50%

0.00%

% of patients 16+ years old readmitted to hospital
within 28 days of discharge

Data not
available

Data not
available

11.26%

10.10%

13.55%

0.00%

6.7/10

6.7/10

6.6/10*

Data not
available

Data not
available

Data not
available

54%

55%

(Staff Survey
13)

67%

93.9%

39.6%

No data for
this period

94.8%

96%

(Q3
2012/13)

(Q3
2013/14)

98%

100%

78%

21.3

18.1

Data not
available

17.3
(2012/13)

30.8
(2012/13)

0
(2012/13)

Ensuring that
Responsiveness to inpatients’ personal needs
people have
a positive
experience % of staff who would recommend the provider to friends
or family needing care
of care
Treating and
caring for
people in a
safe
environment
and
protecting
them from
avoidable
harm

2011/12

% of admitted patients risk-assessed for Venous
Thromboembolism
Rate of C. difficile. Rate per 100,000 bed-days for
specimens taken from patients aged 2 years and over
(Trust apportioned cases)
Rate of patient safety incidents per 100 admissions
% of patient safety incidents reported that resulted in
severe harm or death

57.3%

7.9

9.6

10.4

8.0

12.8

4.9

(local DATIX
Data)

(local DATIX
Data)

(Apr 13Sept 13)

(Apr 13Sept 13)

(Apr 13Sept 13)

(Apr 13Sept 13)

0.34%

0.88%

0.03%

0.3%

0.25%

0.26%*

(2011/12)

(2012/13)

(2013/14)

Data sourced, where possible, from NSCIC. Where data is not available through NSCIC local information has been sourced (*)
University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

166

27

2

NHS outcomes
framework indicators

Domain: Preventing people from dying prematurely
The Standardised Hospital Level Mortality Indicator (SHMI) is a measure of mortality developed by the
Department of Health, comparing actual number of deaths with predicted number of deaths. Each hospital is
placed into a band based upon their SHMI.
Leicester’s Hospitals SHMI is 107 for the period July 2012 to June 2013 and is in band 2 as we expected.
The University Hospitals of Leicester considers that this data is as described for the following reasons; we
commissioned an in-depth analysis of our SHMI and other mortality data by the Boston Consultancy Group
at the beginning of 2013. This work identified two groups of patients that appeared to have the greatest
impact on the ‘>100 SHMI’:
i Patients admitted at weekends or ‘out-of-hours’

i Patients with a respiratory diagnosis (specifically pneumonia)
The review by the Boston Consulting Group also identified that there were differences between our data
and other trusts in respect of the types of co-morbidities recorded and this has affected the outcome of our
risk adjusted mortality figure.
The issues relating to ‘End of life care’ have been a regular theme of most mortality reviews undertaken and
also individual Mortality and Morbidity reports. We see a recurring issue with patients who have (or should
have had) an advanced care plan being inappropriately sent to our hospitals.
The University Hospitals of Leicester has taken the following actions to improve this indicator, and so the
quality of its services with the implementation of the Respiratory Care Pathway and Hospital 24/7. These
were both identified as priorities to be taken forward by the ‘Saving Lives Quality Action Group’ as part of
our Quality Commitment plan.
Our risk adjusted mortality (SHMI) is also a step closer to the national average (100) following work
undertaken to improve documentation in patients’ health care records of diagnoses and other associated
illnesses.

Domain: Helping people to recover from episodes of ill health or
following injury patient reported outcome scores
A patient reported outcome measure (PROM) is a series of questions given to patients in order to gauge their
views on their own health. In the examples of groin hernia, knee replacement, hip replacement and varicose
vein surgery, patients are asked to score their health before and after surgery to see if they identify a ‘health
gain’ following surgery.
The University Hospitals of Leicester considers that this data is as described for the following reasons; a
case note review has not identified any reason as to why there was a drop in patients’ reported outcomes
following Groin Hernia in the early part of 2013/14. Following submission of further data, our outcomes are
again in line with the national average.
The University Hospitals of Leicester has taken the following actions to improve this, and so the quality of its
services, by ensuring patients had a better understanding of the discomfort and abdominal pain they may
experience post-surgery. Although patients were advised about possible complications as part of the consent
process, the review found that post-operative pain and discomfort was not highlighted in all cases.
The percentage of patients of all ages and genders readmitted to hospital within 28 days of discharge.
The University Hospitals of Leicester considers that this data is as described for the following reasons;
readmission rates are reported monthly in the Quality and Performance Report and presented at the Trust
Board.

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

167

2

28

NHS outcomes
framework indicators

The University Hospitals of Leicester has taken the following actions to improve this, and so the quality of
its services, by implementing a number of pathways to reduce readmissions. For example the Heart Failure
Specialist Service was developed to enable timely access to specialist care for this group of patients. National
and local data has shown that heart failure patients experience improved outcomes if cared for by a specialist
during their stay. Hospital readmissions are reduced, improved continuity with community services and an
enhanced understanding of managing their condition all link into this improvement in care.

Domain: Ensuring that people have a positive experience of care
Responsiveness to inpatients’ personal needs: This indicator provides a measure of quality based on the Care
Quality Commission national inpatient survey. The score is a composite of five questions in the inpatient
survey.
The University Hospitals of Leicester considers that this data is as described for the following reasons; we
have focused upon responding to each ward / department’s high level metric of the Friends and Family Test
score and the comments from patients relating to their experience of care. We have achieved an increase in
FFT scores, rising from 66.4 at the beginning of the year to 69.9 at the end of 2013/14.
The University Hospitals of Leicester intends to take the following actions to improve this score, and so the
quality of its services, with the implementation of the Quality Commitment initiatives. There will be a focus
on the elements of care that matter most to patients within each of the specific specialty area. We hope
these focused patient experience priorities will improve the experience for our patients, results of which will
be captured in the 2014 National Patient Survey results.
Percentage of staff who would recommend the provider to friends or family needing care: The NHS Staff
Survey is conducted on behalf of the Care Quality Commission (CQC) and is recognised as an important
way of ensuring that the views of staff working within the NHS inform local improvements. As previously
reported to the Trust Board, analysis by the CQC of the survey results is undertaken through a self-completed
questionnaire by a random sample of staff selected from across the whole Trust. All staff received the survey
this year either via email or by post and 3988 completed responses were returned, giving a response rate of
39% (2013). From the CQC sample of 850 staff, 379 people giving a response rate of 46%.
The University Hospitals of Leicester considers that this data is as described for the following reasons; our
performance is based on the 2013 national staff survey results (February 2014). This information is presented
to the Trust Board, summarising analysis of 2013 staff survey results. We also reference the ‘full comparison
report’ compiled by the Care Quality Commission. As required by the CQUIN measures, UHL will be regularly
surveying staff and workers regarding whether they would recommend the Trust to friends or family needing
care.

Domain: Treating and caring for people in a safe environment and protecting
them from avoidable harm
Risk assessing inpatients for Venous Thromboembolism (VTE) is important in reducing hospital acquired
VTE. We have worked hard to ensure that not only are our patients risk assessed promptly but that any
prophylaxis is given reliably.
The University Hospitals of Leicester considers that this data is as described for the following reasons; data is
presented monthly to the Clinical Quality Review Group and matrons and lead nurses undertake a monthly
review of VTE assessment rates and VTE occurrence as part of the Safety Thermometer.
The University Hospitals of Leicester has taken the following actions to improve this: we aim to increase
VTE assessments to a sustained 95% of eligible patients; provide pharmacological and/or mechanical
thromboprophylaxis to all eligible patients; and to carry out root cause analysis for all inpatients who
experience a potentially hospital acquired VTE. During the period 2013/14 an average of 95.2% of eligible
patients were risk assessed for VTE.
University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

168

29

2

NHS outcomes
framework indicators

Patient safety incidents are reported to the National Reporting and Learning System (NRLS). The rate of
patient safety incidents per 100 admissions reported is 9.9. The National Patient Safety Agency stated that
‘organisations that report more incidents usually have a better and more effective safety culture. You can’t
learn and improve if you don’t know what the problems are.’ Leicester’s Hospitals will continue to encourage
a culture of open reporting in order to learn and improve.
The University Hospitals of Leicester considers that this data is as described as staff are positively encouraged
and supported in the process of reporting incidents. The NHS Commissioning Board believe “organisations
that report more incidents usually have a better and more effective safety culture. You can’t learn and
improve if you don’t know what the problem is”. Leicester’s Hospitals continue to be in the top third of the
highest 25% of reporters.
The University Hospitals of Leicester has taken the following actions to improve this score and so the quality
of its services, by working with staff to improve reporting and action learning from incidents.
Rate of clostridium difficile (C. Diff) is a bacterial infection commonly affecting people who are staying in
hospital.
The Infection Prevention Team at Leicester’s Hospitals works hard to provide training and education, audit
and surveillance, and patient education to reduce the risk of healthcare associated infection.
The University Hospitals of Leicester considers that this data is as described for the following reasons; as an
organisation our nationally set target for the number of C. Diff cases in 2013/14 was 67. We were able to
report 66 cases at the end of the year and we will continue to strive to reduce the number of C-diff infections
acquired at our hospitals.
The University Hospitals of Leicester has taken the following actions to improve our C, Diff rates; we have
produced an MRSA bacteraemia and CDT reduction action plan for each Clinical Management Groups within
the organisation to work towards. This plan is reviewed on a quarterly basis and revised yearly.

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

169

2

30

Performance against
national standards
PERFORMANCE AGAINST 2013/14 NATIONAL TARGETS
Target
2013/14

2013/14

2012/13

2011/12

2010/11

95%

88.4%

91.9%

93.9%

96.1%

MRSA (Avoidable)

0

1

2

8

12

Clostridium Difficile

67

66

94

108

200

RTT waiting times – admitted

90%

76.7%

91.3%

84.0%

92.3%

RTT waiting times – non-admitted

95%

93.9%

97.0%

96.0%

97.2%

RTT - incomplete 92% in 18 weeks

92%

92.1%

92.6%

Not
Applicable

Not
Applicable

RTT delivery in all specialities

0

14

2

Not
Applicable

Not
Applicable

Diagnostic test waiting times

<1%

1.9%

0.5%

Not
Applicable

Not
Applicable

Cancer: 2 week wait from referral to date first
seen - all cancers

93%

94.8%

93.4%

94.0%

93.4%

Cancer: 2 week wait from referral to date first
seen, for symptomatic breast patients

93%

94.0%

94.5%

95.9%

95.9%

All Cancers: 31-day wait from diagnosis to first
treatment

96%

98.1%

97.4%

97.4%

97.0%

All Cancers: 31-day wait for second or subsequent
treatment - surgery

94%

96.0%

95.8%

94.5%

95.2%

All cancers: 31-day for second or subsequent
treatment - anti cancer drug treatments

98%

100%

100%

99.9%

100%

All Cancers: 31-day wait for second or subsequent
cancer treatment - radiotherapy treatments

94%

98.2%

98.5%

99.0%

99.5%

All Cancers: 62-day wait for first treatment from
urgent GP referral

85%

86.7%

83.5%

83.8%

86.4%

All Cancers: 62-day wait for first treatment from
consultant screening service referral

90%

95.6%

94.5%

93.8%

91.6%

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR

Access – Cancer

Access – 18 week wait

Infection
Control

Access
to A&E

A&E – total time in A&E (4 hour wait)

Red=Target Failed

Green=Target Achieved

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

170

31

2

Performance against
national standards

Performance indicator: Emergency
Department 4hr Wait Performance

Performance indicator: RTT 18 week performance

In 2013/14 we set a target to treat at least 95% of
patients in our Emergency Department (ED) within
four hours by implementing a number of jointly
agreed actions with our local commissioners. Our
actual performance was 88.4%.

In 2013/14 we set out to deliver all three ‘referral
to treatment’ (18 week wait) standards on a
monthly basis. The targets set were:-

Performance against the 4hr Wait is subject to
regular detailed reporting at our Trust Board.
It is well recognised that the current size of our
Emergency Department is too small for the number
of patients who attend and as a result a significant
scheme for expanding the Emergency Department
has been developed. In addition, we are reviewing
the number of beds required for emergency
admissions with an aim to increase in 2014/15.
Working with our healthcare partners, a ‘single
front door’ process was introduced in July 2013
to guide patients to the most appropriate care
from the moment they arrive in the Emergency
Department or Urgent Care Centre at Leicester
Royal Infirmary.
Executives across the healthcare community
have been meeting on a weekly basis to work on
sustainable solutions to will improve performance,
patient experience and staff satisfaction.
Additional resources have been allocated across
the emergency pathway to ensure any delays are
addressed. Measures have been put in place to
ensure patients who unfortunately remain in our
ED for longer than four hours receive appropriate
care including prevention of pressure ulcers
through the use of aides. There is a suite of ED
quality metrics monitored weekly.

Performance indicator:
Infection Control
MRSA: Over the last year there has been one
unavoidable MRSA bloodstream isolates, a
reduction on the previous year. This contrasts with
161 reported cases in 2001.
Clostridium Difficile: There continues to be a
reduction in the number of C. Diff cases from 94
reported in 2012/13 to 66 in 2013/14.

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

1. 90% of admitted patients should be treated
within 18 weeks. Admitted pathways are those
that end in an admission to hospital (either
inpatient or day case) for treatment.
2. 95% of non-admitted patients should start
consultant-led treatment within 18 weeks of
referral. Non-admitted pathways are those
who result in treatment that did not require
admission to hospital or where no treatment is
required.
3. 2% incomplete within 18 weeks. This is
proportion of all patients waiting for treatment
at any time.
The threshold for RTT admitted and non-admitted
performance throughout the year was not
achieved, with significant speciality level failures
in ENT, General Surgery, Ophthalmology and
Orthopaedics.
A RTT recovery action plan has been submitted
to our commissioners. Our commissioners have
agreed to a significant financial investment during
2014/15 to reduce waiting times in key challenged
specialties. It is anticipated that recovery of the
Trust level admitted position will be achieved by
November 2014.

Performance indicator:
Cancer Targets
In 2013-14 we said we would deliver on all cancer
targets. We expected to deliver all eight standards
for the full year including the 62 day referral to
treatment standard.
A Cancer Action Board was set up to monitor
our Cancer Action Plan. The Board, chaired by
the Cancer Centre Clinical Lead, meets weekly
to ensure the actions set out within the plan are
being delivered and that there is representation
from all of the key tumour sites including
Radiology and Theatres. The Board has delivered
a more joined up approach to care for our cancer
patients by reducing waiting times across the
whole patient’s cancer pathway.

171

2

32

NPSA alert compliance
2013/14

Through analysis of patient safety incident reports and safety information from other sources, the
National Patient Safety Agency (NPSA) previously developed advice for the NHS that would help to
ensure the safety of patients. As advice became available the NPSA issued alerts on potential safety
risks. During 2013 the NPSA’s patient safety function transferred to NHS England Patient Safety Domain.
A new reporting process called the ‘NHS England Patient Safety Alerting System’ was implemented
on 1 January 2014 to disseminate patient safety information at different stages of development to
NHS organisations providing care across all settings. This is a three stage system, based on information
used in other high risk industries, allowing more rapid dissemination of urgent information as well
as encouraging information sharing between organisations. It will also give patients and their carers
greater confidence that the NHS is able to react quickly and rapidly to identified risks.
The Risk and Assurance Manager for Leicester’s Hospitals ensures the recommended actions from
these alerts are monitored, working closely with clinicians and managers to ensure these actions are
implemented within prescribed timescales wherever possible.
There are currently two alerts for action in which the deadline for completion has passed. They are
being actively managed at a local level and monitored by our Executive Quality Board and Quality
Assurance Committee to ensure completion as soon as possible.

Table 1 below lists the status of NPSA alerts with an action date during 2013/14.
Alert reference

Alert title

Response

Deadline

NPSA/2009/PSA/004B

Safer Spinal (intrathecal), epidural
and regional devices – Part B

Alert closed (superseded
by NHS/PSA/D/2014/002)

1/4/2013

NHS/PSA/W/2014/001

Risk of hypothermia in patients
receiving continuous renal
replacement therapy

Complete

6/3/2014

NHS/PSA/W/2013/001R

Placement devices for nasogastric
tube insertion DO NOT replace
initial position checks

Complete

8/1/2014

NHS/PSA/W/2013/001

Placement devices for nasogastric
tube insertion DO NOT replace
initial position checks

Action not required

8/1/2014

Table 2 shows ongoing NPSA alerts prior to 2013/14
Alert reference
NPSA/2008/SPN14

Alert title
Right Patient, Right Blood (Update)

Response
Ongoing

Deadline
1/5/2010

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

172

33

2

Never events 2013/2014

We have a strong reporting culture for patient safety incidents to ensure lessons are learnt whenever
possible. Never Events are serious, largely preventable patient safety incidents that should not occur
where the available preventative measures have been implemented.
During the period 2013/14, three incidents that met the definition of a Never Event were reported by
Leicester’s Hospitals. In all cases a thorough Root Cause Analysis was undertaken with robust action
plans developed to prevent further similar occurrences.

The following table shows a description of the reported Never Events together with the primary root
causation and key recommendations to prevent reoccurrence. None of the incidents resulted in long
term harm to the patient and they were all involved with and kept fully informed during the subsequent
investigations.

Never Event
2013/2014
Wrong Knee
Implant
April 2013

Description
Prosthesis for
a right sided
procedure
rather than
for a left sided
procedure was
inadvertently
implanted into a
patient’s knee.

Key Findings Following
Recurrence

Key Actions to Prevent Recurrence

Selection of the incorrect
prosthesis from the Store
Room.

To review the signage within the Store Room
to indicate shelf placement of Left and Right
prostheses.

Failure of the checking
process to ensure that the
correct prosthesis had been
selected (there was one
incomplete check and then
no further checks prior
to the prosthesis being
implanted).

To amend the Management of Surgical Swabs,
Instruments, Needles and other Accountable
Items within the Operating Theatre Policy and
Procedures (2013) in respect of the prosthesis
checking section to clarify that: (i) there must
be a second, separate check; (ii) LEFT or RIGHT
must be stated where applicable and; (iii) the
details of the implant must be read out loud by
the Scrub Practitioner and Surgeon whilst the
rest of the team stop and listen.

Staff being pre-occupied,
interrupted or distracted
by other tasks.

To re-enforce to staff what is meant by the
prompt in ORMIS: ‘Insertion of implant,
prosthesis, plate or screw – pause and double
check by surgeon and scrub’.
To implement an education / change of practice
campaign to encourage pausing and double
checking of a prosthesis prior to cementing into
a patient, by the following:
Placing a laminated poster in a high visibility
area in Orthopaedic Theatres: ‘Check before
you cement’! & sending an electronic version of
the poster to all surgeons and theatre staff.
Re-launch of the ‘Caring at its Best Theatres
Etiquette’ package for all staff to complete, to
re-enforce the key messages from this incident.
Listening into Action project: ‘Team Work is
Safe Work’ to be rolled out in Orthopaedic
Theatres.

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

173

2

34

Never events 2013/2014

Never Event
2013/2014
Wrong Lens
September
2013

Description
An intraocular
lens with a
power of
+24.5 dioptres
instead of +21.0
dioptres was
inadvertently
implanted into
the patient’s
eye.

Key Findings Following
Recurrence
Inefficiency of the preoperative systems leading
to an increased workload.
Human error led to the
incorrect lens being
selected by the Consultant
Ophthalmologist
after misreading her
handwritten additions to
the Theatre List on the wall
in Theatre.
Weakness of the checking
process at the lens
selection stage to ensure
that the correct prosthesis
was taken into Theatre.

Retained
Swab
February 2014

Vaginal swab
retained
following an
instrumental
delivery.

Following an instrumental
delivery the episiotomy
required suturing and this
was commenced by a doctor
and almost completed. The
doctor was called to urgently
assist with another patient
in theatre and handed over
to a midwife to complete
the suturing but there is no
evidence to confirm that a
swab count was undertaken.

Key Actions to Prevent Recurrence
Continue to implement the actions contained
within the actions contained within the
Ophthalmology Action Plan and to progress in
line with the recommendations outlined by the
Clinical Problem Solving Group (CCG/UHL).
To formally notify surgeons that the practice of
handwriting the power of lens on the Theatre
list must cease.
To use the electronic UHL Cataract Waiting List
Form to ensure that all information is captured
pre-operatively so negating the need to make
handwritten additions to the list.
For the surgeon to check the biometry results
in the anaesthetic room with another member
of the theatre team, following which the lens
details must be immediately transcribed on to
the Theatre white board by the surgeon and the
appropriate lens selected from the lens store by
the surgeon.
During the ‘Time Out’ phase of the Safer Surgery
Checklist, there must be a further confirmation
of the patient’s biometry results by referring to
the medical records.
To amend and re-circulate the ‘Intra Ocular Lens
Protocol’ to all staff working in Ophthalmic
Theatres to include the two additional checks
outlined in recommendations 2 & 3.
Placing the revised laminated poster in a high
visibility area in Eye Theatres
Sending an electronic version of the poster to all
surgeons and theatre staff.

A formal memo was immediately sent to all
medical and midwifery staff reminding them
of the requirement to undertake a count of all
swabs and needles during and at the conclusion
of any procedure, to document this on the
white boards in the delivery rooms, and for this
to be second checked and documented in the
medical records.

Seven weeks post-natally
there was on-going offensive
discharge and a swab that
had been placed in the
vagina was removed.

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

174

35

2

How we keep everyone
informed

Leicester’s Hospitals has a wide range of communication tools to inform and engage our staff, patients
and the wider public about our quality initiatives and service improvements.
We are transparent with the media when responding to complaints and negative issues and provide
good news stories which are regularly featuring in local newspapers, radio and television.

Information for the public
We produce a bi-monthly magazine called Together for both staff and the public in which we profile good
news, innovations, schemes and initiatives.
Our free ‘Medicine for Members’ health talks delivered by our leading medical experts each month were
given a makeover for 2014 and re-branded ‘Leicester’s Marvellous Medicine’. To publicise the talks to a wider
audience, information is now available online and shared through our social media accounts.
The communications team at Leicester’s Hospitals manages several social media accounts such as Twitter,
Facebook and Pinterest by which we can quickly and effectively share information and advice.
Along with input from our Patient Advisors and Graphics team, the communications team also monitors and
produces all Patient Information leaflets and posters for our services to ensure the information we provide is
accurate and accessible.
Our public website provides patients and visitors with information about our hospitals and services and we
regularly issue press releases along with ‘news alerts’ for those who have signed up to receive notifications.

together

together

together

together

together

Learn more
about our

QUALITY
commitment

July
of the year

be a

COLLECTIVE ACTION
INSPIRES CHANGE
we treat people how we
would like to be treated
APRIL 2014

University Hospitals of Leicester
NHS Trust

LANDMARK FOR
CANCER TREATMENT

PASS IT ON

National Transplant Week
we treat people how we
would like to be treated

University Hospitals of Leicester
NHS Trust

JUNE 2013

we focus on what
matters most
AUGUST 2013

University Hospitals of Leicester
NHS Trust

Caring at its best

Awards

concentrating
on teamwork
OCTOBER 2013

WINNERS TAKE
THE LEAD
University Hospitals of Leicester
NHS Trust

TEAMWORK SAVES
UNBORN BABY
concentrating
on innovation

University Hospitals of Leicester

DECEMBER 2013

Information for staff
We have a staff intranet hosting a wealth of information, guidance and news specifically for our staff and
regularly communicate information via email.
Our chief executive hosts monthly staff briefings for the senior leadership team. This information is then
cascaded to members of frontline staff through CMG team meetings and newsletters as well as in the
monthly all staff email called the ‘Chief Executive’s Briefing’.
Staff are also invited to attend monthly informal meetings called ‘Breakfast with the Boss’ where they can
speak on a one-to-one level with our chief executive and another member of the senior team.

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

NHS Trust

175

2

36

How we listen

Over the last year our public membership has grown to over 14,500 people. We engage with our members in
a variety of ways.
Our bi-monthly Together magazine promotes opportunities for both the public and our staff to get more
involved in the work we do with initiatives from teams such as volunteering and fundraising.
We send out opinion surveys giving everyone the opportunity to comment on our services as well as
invitations to join specific engagement groups.
We recently met with members of our Prospective Governors group to talk about how it will function in
the year ahead. As a result, we have decided to focus the group more explicitly on member engagement.
Members will be invited to meet regularly with our senior team and discuss issues that are important
to them, our Strategic Direction and the development of our services. For example, in March we invited
reflections on our new two year Organisational Development plan put in place to develop the Trust and our
services.
In December last year, our chief nurse Rachel Overfield held a special Listening Event to give members of the
public time to talk about their recent experience of hospital care. Over fifty people came along to the event
and met with both Rachel and members of her senior nursing team. One recurrent theme was raised around
ophthalmology processes and as a result an improvement plan was put in place and complaints have since
reduced.
We have been developing our relationship with Healthwatch Leicester; Healthwatch Leicestershire and
Healthwatch Rutland. Healthwatch has a mandate to act as the consumer’s voice in matters of health and
social care. To ensure we understand the views and concerns of our local population, we have asked a
Healthwatch LLR representative to sit on our Trust Board. Our chief executive also meets every three months
with Healthwatch representatives to discuss local issues.
The patient and public voice is also represented at Leicester’s Hospitals through our Patient Advisors. Over
the last year we have recruited five more Patient Advisors, bringing the total to 16. This is the largest
group we have had since we created the role in 2001. Patient Advisors are attached to each of our Clinical
Management Groups and provide a lay perspective on many of our Boards and Committees.

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

176

37

2

How we listen

<PMI\ZM)ZZQ^IT[)ZMI·4MQKM[\MZ:WaIT1VÅZUIZa

The purpose:

Our Philosophy of Care.

The unit is designed to provide individual, holistic,
multidisciplinary pre-operative care and services for
adults undergoing a surgical procedure.

Our aim is to promote and maintain a safe, calm and
caring environment for our patients by using a patient
focused approach to pre-operative care, aimed at
meeting all physical, psychological, social and spiritual
needs by using the 6 elements of compassion as follows:

The Theatre Arrivals Area is part of the ITAPS
Clinical Management Group, providing an admission
consultation/examination rooms pre-operative waiting
area before the patient is escorted to the Theatre
anaesthetic room.
Specialties include:
•ENT
•Bariatric surgery
•Vascular surgery
•Max Fax
•General Surgery upper/lower GI
•Plastic Surgery
•Hand Trauma.
•Anaesthetics.

Benefits of our purpose built TAA:
•Patients have a definite destination for admission.
•Improved patients care pathway and experience.
•A tranquil and calm environment for patients.
•TV and non TV waiting areas.
•Comply with Trusts Privacy and Dignity policies and
procedures.
•Compliance with single sex accommodation.
•Bariatric facilities and equipment
•Disabled access and facilities throughout TAA
•Increased theatre efficiency, theatre list start times
and Improved theatre flows.
•Improved patient flow, avoiding mixing of pre and
post-operative patients.
•Ability to support 10 elective theatres.
•Reduction in the number of cancelled elective
procedures.
•Addresses infection prevention and control risks
•Reduces staff stress on both wards and theatres
•Reduces the need for portering staff
•Improves and reduces medical staff time and as the
TAA is within the theatre complex.
•Meet CQC requirements and standards.

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

Care – staff promote the individuals independence to
enhance their recovery and health and well being.
Compassion – care and support is delivered with
empathy, kindness, respect and dignity including cultural,
religious and ethnic beliefs.
Competence – TAA staff have the knowledge and skills
to carry out their role, delivering individual, holistic and
research based, patient centred care.
Communication – staff have good communication and
listening skills, promote shared decision making, team
working involving the Multidisciplinary team.
Courage – staff act as the patients advocate by
speaking up and addressing patient concerns.
Commitment – The team is committed in delivering
excellent quality care, inline with the UHL’s Nursing
Strategy.
Measurement of care through Audit and surveys:
• Patient Surveys – involving Patient Advisor
• Environmental Audits – Clinical and Domestic
Services
• Postcard to Matron
• Privacy and Dignity Audits
• Infection Prevention and Control including Hand
Hygiene Audits.
Nursing Metrics care indicators:
• Patient observations
• Pain management
• Falls assessment
• Pressure area care
• Nutritional assessment
• Medicine prescribing and administration
• Resuscitation equipment
• Venous Thromboembolic Disease (VTE)
• Patient dignity
• Infection prevention and control
• Discharge

177

2

patient

spiritual
as follows:

ence to

ng cultural,

and skills
c and

ation and
g, team

38

How we listen

<PMI\ZM)ZZQ^IT[)ZMI·4MQKM[\MZ:WaIT1VÅZUIZa

Before the TAA project:
• 6 curtained cubicles, poor privacy and dignity
• 2 curtained exam consultation rooms
• Too small male and female waiting areas
• 20 chairs in total – insufficient for activity
• Patients walked down public corridor to theatre.
• Many complaints regarding poor facilities.
After the project:
• Reception and waiting area
• 6 exam consultation rooms fully equipped
• 20 admit rooms maintaining privacy and dignity.
• Large area with seating for 40 patients
• Patient designated corridor to walk to theatre
• Compliance with CQC and single sex
accommodation.
• Patients more comfortable and happy with
environment, facilities.
Old TAA Reception, cubicles and small waiting area.

New TAA Reception

The Unit now provides our patients with:
• An holistic, individualised, multidisciplinary
approach to their care.
• A safe, secure and relaxing environment
• A calm environment specifically designed to
promote a speedy, comfortable admission
procedure, enabling patients to wait in comfortable,
purposeful surroundings.
• A quality service and a high standard of care in
response to the individual needs of our patients by
a team of multi-skilled staff.
• TAA allows and assist’s the Surgical Specialties /
wards to focus on post-operative patient care.
• TAA provides the privacy, dignity and confidentiality
at all times.
Patients new Journey in TAA:
•Patient is welcomed in reception and personal
details checked – systems updated and new
documentation printed if required.
•Asked to take a seat in reception waiting area.
•Nurse collects patient and takes them into a
suitable admission/consultation room.
•Nursing assessment and documentation
including explanation in detail of their journey.
•Assessed by surgeon and if applicable
anaesthetist.
•Physically prepared for surgery.
•Encouraged to take a seat in the pre surgery
waiting area.
•Escorted to theatre by TAA admitting nurse or
nursing / ODP team.

New Waiting area prior to surgery.

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

178

39

2

How we listen

<PMI\ZM)ZZQ^IT[)ZMI·4MQKM[\MZ:WaIT1VÅZUIZa

Patient feedback about new TAA - March 2014

“Reception staff
welcoming, polite, first
time ever all my details
checked. Lovely wall
pictures and comfortable
seating.”

“Very clean, new looking,
colourts and pictures lovely.
Staff smart uniforms’ knew
who was looking after me
from point of arrival,
negative - toilets need air
freshener”.

“The nurses looking
after me were brilliant put my
mind at rest as I was so
frightened. They let me stay
in a room on my own reading
my magazine. Nothing was
too much trouble.”

“I’m a big lady and this is the
first time I felt comfortable,
facilities fantastic, scales,
chairs and I do not feel
intimidated. Toilets massive.”

“Having my nose operation
for second time. Last
admission on a ward very little
attention / care given before
surgery. This ward is great,
staff really smart, helpful put
my mind at ease.”

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

“I really found the non TV
area a blessing as I hate TV.
Was able to read my book
which helped me relax
before my oeration. Thank
you for thinking about n on
TV patients.”

“Been in the old TAA for
surgery. Second part of
surgery today. What a
massive transformation, it
is great if you have to be
here!”

“From entering the TAA felt
really relaxed, a lot of thought
into decor, pictures. Nice to
hear music in the waiting area
which was calming. Rooms
massive, care superb. Great
team all-round, thank you.
“Curtains at the door made
me feel respected, but so
surprised to also see second
curtasin in my room.”

179

2

40

What do our patients tell us?

We receive feedback from a variety of sources and use this to improve our services. The sources
include the Friends and Family Test, patient experience surveys, patient complaints and compliments,
social media, NHS choices, Patient Opinion and ‘Message to Matron’.

Friends and Family Test
Our patients are asked to complete the Friends and Family Test, asking them ‘How likely is it that you would
recommend this ward to friends and family if they needed similar care or treatment?’ Results of the Friends
and Family test so far indicate:
i

The adult inpatient Friends and Family Test score has shown clear and consistent improvement from a
score of 66.4 in April 2013 to a score of 69.9 in March 2014.

UHL
i

i

Apr13

May13

Jun13

Jul13

Aug13

Sep13

Oct13

Nov13

Dec13

Jan14

Feb14

Mar14

66.4

73.9

64.9

66.0

69.6

67.6

66.2

70.3

68.7

71.8

69.0

69.9

Data collected between February - May 2013 across all eight wards taking part in the Quality Mark for
Elder-Friendly Hospital Wards scheme, identified that patients reported they were treated with dignity
and respect and seven of the eight wards had a score of more than 75 points on the Friends and Family
Test.
A number of initiatives including introducing adaptive cutlery and dignity cups are being implemented to
help promote dignity on older people’s wards.

Patient Stories
The trust encourages patients to share their stories and experiences of care. It has been found that patient’s
stories can be very powerful in assisting clinical teams in learning from the experiences of patients, their
families and carers. Stories are used in a number of forums to prompt discussions and improvements, for
example every month the Trust Board hear ‘Patient Story’, these are presented by the clinical teams who
describe the actions taken following the feedback.
During 2013/14 a monthly story has been shared at the Trust Board and these have ranged from acupuncture
services, end of life care experience, the poor experiences of a new mother, through to meaningful activities
for patients with dementia, care of a frail older person following a hip fracture and the experience of care
within the Emergency Department.

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

180

41

2

What do our patients tell us?

Learning from Complaints
Complaint data is recorded against the clinical management groups (CMGs).
The CMGs performance is monitored against providing a response to the complainant within 25 days (target
is 95%). The complaints are themed according to the nature of the complaints as shown below.

23

26

20
17

9

11
4
Environment

25

Administration

39

Complications

42

36

Discharge

39

46

Staff Attitude

45

Nursing Care

55

Cancellations

51

Communication

Waiting Times

140
120 122
98
100 111
80
77
60
40
20
0
Medical Care

No. Received

Top 10 Themes Identified from Complaints

Subject
13/14 Q2

13/14 Q3

The following are some examples of learning from complaints.

Complaint/Concern Raised

Agreed Action

Concerns relating to the administration of morphine.

Existing care plan to be reviewed with input from
Consultant in Pain Management. Care plan to be shared
with the patient when it is completed.

Concerns relating to management of medication.

Correct inaccuracies identified by patient in the clinical
correspondence. Head of Service to discuss discrepancies
with Consultant for learning purposes.

Patient took an accidental overdose as did not realise
drug he was given on discharge under the generic name
was the same drug as he was already taking under the
brand name.

Highlighted to Emergency and Specialist wards via
complaint newsletter that for patients on short
admissions only new medications should be supplied on
discharge, as per TTO.
Issue and correct practice highlighted to all staff on
ward 33.

Fracture clinic waiting times

New information board devised which provides clear
indication for each time slot whether patient has been
seen and if they have left the department. Patients can
at a glance see how many are ahead of them in the
system, in real time.

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

181

3

42

Our plans for the future
“Caring at its best”

Delivering Caring at its Best includes a whole range of programmes, from the Quality Commitment to our
reconfiguration plans, from our IM&T Strategy to Listening into Action. The Quality Commitment has been
updated for 2014/15 and the following priorities have been agreed.
The Quality Commitment has been updated for
2014/15 and the following priorities
have been agreed.

2014/15 PRIORITIES

AIM

OUR
QUALITY COMMITMENT

Provide Effective Care –
Improve Patient Outcomes

Improve Safety –
Reduce Harm

Care and Compassion –
Improve Patient Experience

To deliver evidence based care/best practice and
effective pathways and to improve clinician and
patient reported outcomes.

To reduce avoidable death and injury, to improve
patient safety culture and leadership and to
reduce the risk of error and adverse incidents.

To listen and learn from patient feedback and to
improve patient experience of care.

Implement pathways of care to improve
outcomes for patients with













And for

 






Implement actions to meet the National
“7 Day Services” clinical standards
Embed monitoring of clinician and patient
reported outcomes across all specialities to
include learning and action from:





 Nationally reported outcomes (Everyone Counts)
Implementation of:


 






admission



 





 
Embedding best practical:

 



guidance












Implementation of Safety Actions:
 Recognition of immediate management of
septic patients
 Handover between clinical teams
 Acting on test results
 Monitoring and escalation of Early Warning
Sores (EWS)
 Ward Round Standards and Safety Checklist
Improve processes relating to resuscitation
and ‘Do Not Attempt Cardio-Pulmonary
Resuscitation’ (DNA CPR) consideration
Embed use of Safety Thermometer for
monitoring actions to reduce:














(CAUTIs)


Implement use of the Medication Safety
Thermometer across all wards
Patient Safety Collaborative Topics

 


Infections





needs


 


(including implementation of Think Glucose
Programme)

Actively seek views of patients across all
Services
Improve the experience of care for older
people




quality mark across all older people’s areas




CMGs

Organising Learning, Culture & Leadership
Depicts inclusion in CQUIN programme

Improve experience of carers
Improve experience of care for patients
with dementia and their carers



Expand current programme of end of
life care processes across Trust
Triangulation of patient feedback




Patient Surveys
Embed best practice relating to “Named
Consultant / Named Nurse”

SUPPORTING WORK PROGRAMMES
Staff Numbers, Skills & Competence
Audit & Measurement
Depicts inclusion in quality schedule

Provide Effective Care –
Improve Patient Outcomes
The aim is to deliver evidence based care/best
practice and effective pathways and to improve
clinician and patient reported outcomes by
delivering the following:
i Improving pathways of care to improve
outcomes for
i Patients with pneumonia, heart
failure, acute myocardial infarction
(AMI), acute kidney injury (AKI)
i Patients admitted out of hours
i Improving intraoperative fluid
management for surgical patients
i Working towards the national “seven
day services” to improve quality and
access to care
i Embedding monitoring of clinician and patient

Systems & Processes

Depicts compliance action/national priority

reported outcomes across all specialties to
include learning and action from
i Mortality Reviews and Mortality Alerts
i Nationally reported outcomes
(Everyone Counts)
i Implementation of
i A patient census to improve discharge
planning
i Consultant assessment following
emergency admission
i Clinical utilisation review of critical
care beds
i Breast feeding guidelines for neonates
i Embedding best practice including
i Compliance with NICE standards in
2014/15
i Reviewing performance against
national clinical audit
University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

182

43

3

Our plans for the future
“Caring at its best”

Improve Safety – Reduce Harm
The aim is to reduce avoidable death and injury, to improve patient safety culture and leadership and to
reduce the risk of error and adverse incidents by delivering the following:

i Improving patient safety by
i Improving earlier recognition of sepsis and ensuring compliance with the Sepsis Care Bundle
i Providing a systematic, safe and effective handover of care
i Ensuring all results are reviewed and acted on in a timely manner
i Improving the care delivery and management of the deteriorating patient
i Providing timely senior clinical reviews, and to set minimum standards for ward rounds and
documentation to meet national guidance
i Improving resuscitation and ‘do not attempt resuscitation’ (DNAR) processes

i Collecting data on all elements of the patient safety thermometer to prevent and reduce harm including
i Hospital acquired thrombosis (HAT)
i Hospital acquired pressure ulcers (HAPUs)
i Urinary tract infections in patient with a catheter (CAUTIs)
i In-hospital falls
i Medication safety
i Increasing education and awareness of
i Health care acquired infections (HCAI) such as MRSA
i Nutrition and hydration to prevent avoidable weight loss and dehydration
i ‘Think Glucose’ a programme to improve the management of patients with diabetes as
a secondary diagnosis.

Care and Compassion – Improve Patient Experience
The aim is to listen and learn from patient feedback and to improve patient experience of care by:

i Actively seeking the views of patients across all services
i Improving the experience of care for older people by
i Implementing recommendations from the national Quality Mark across all older people’s areas
i Improving on positive feedback across clinical management groups (CMGs)
i Improving the experience of carers

i Improving the experience of care for patients with dementia and their carers by
i Ensuring patients aged 75 and over are screened for dementia and referred to appropriate
services
i Ensuring sufficient clinical leadership and training of staff
i Expanding the current end of life care programme across the Trust

i Triangulating patient feedback including complaints, compliments, NHS Choices, and Patient Surveys

i Introducing a named consultant and named nurse who will be accountable for care throughout a hospital
stay

Monitorting
Appendix 1 shows how each programme maps to one of our Executive Boards which is supported by a
Programme Management Office (PMO). In conjunction with their Executive lead, the PMO will be responsible
for ensuring an appropriate level of rigour and standardisation for their Delivering Caring at its Best work
programmes.
University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

183

4

Statements of assurance
from the board

Review of Services
During 2013/14 University Hospitals of Leicester
NHS Trust provided and / or sub-contracted 395
NHS services. These include:
i
i
i
i
i
i
i
i
i
i

i

44

Inpatient = 68 specialties
Day case = 60 specialties
Emergency = 75 specialties
Non-elective = 51 specialties

The University Hospitals of Leicester NHS Trust has
reviewed the data available to them on the quality
of care across the seven clinical management
groups.
The income generated by the NHS services
reviewed in 2013/14 represents 100% per cent of
the total income generated from the provision of
NHS services by Leicester’s Hospitals for 2013/14.

Outpatient = 83 specialties
Non Face to Face appointments in 20 specialties
Out Patient Procedure services in 18 specialties
Emergency Department and Eye Casualty
Direct access to 7 services
Critical care services in Cardiac Intensive Care
Unit (CICU), High Dependency Unit (HDU),
Intensive Therapy Unit (ITU), Post Anaesthesia
Care Unit (PACU), Paediatric Intensive care
Unit (PICU), Special care Baby Unit (SCBU) and
Neonatal Intensive Care Unit (NICU)
4 national screening programmes = retinal
screening (diabetes), breast screening including
age extension (cancer) bowel screening (cancer)
and abdominal Aortic Aneurism AAA (vascular)

The University Hospitals of Leicester are three
acute hospitals, the Leicester Royal Infirmary
having approximately 963 beds, the Leicester
General Hospital (LGH) having 394 beds and
Glenfield Hospital having 416 beds. Each
hospital has its own specialty. The Leicester Royal
Infirmary has the only Accident and Emergency
Department, which covers the area of Leicester and
Leicestershire. The Leicester General has the Renal
Unit and Glenfield has the Cardiac Surgery Unit.

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

184

45

4

Statements of assurance
from the board

Examples of how we reviewed our
services in 2013/14

Participation in Clinical Audits and
confidential enquiries

In the last year we have reviewed and strengthened
our assurance systems and the work programme
of our Quality Assurance Committee. An Executive
Quality Board has been introduced and has a
number of sub-committees reporting to it, including:
i Mortality Review Committee
i Infection Prevention Assurance Committee
i Safeguarding Committee
i End of Life Committee
i Clinical Ethics Committee
i Clinical Audit Committee
i Health and Safety Committee
i Hospital Transfusion Committee
i Learning from Experience Group
i Medicines Optimisation Committee
i Mortality Review Committee
i New and Innovative Procedures Authorisation
Group
i Organ Donation Committee
i Patient Experience Committee
i Resuscitation Committee
i Thrombosis Committee
i Consent Committee

Leicester’s Hospitals has a very active clinical audit
programme as we know participation in clinical
audit is an effective way of monitoring and
improving patient care.

These groups in addition to the Executive Workforce
Board, Executive Team and Trust Board, review,
monitor and act upon a variety of service level
information including (but not exclusively):
i Quality and Performance report
i Ward Performance data
i Patient Safety data
i Quality Schedule and CQUIN indicators
i Safety Thermometer performance
i Patient Experience data (Friends and Family Test,
complaints, patient stories)
i Service dashboards
i Results from external peer reviews and
accreditations
i Staffing levels
i Operational performance – outcome measures
i Participation in statutory and mandatory training
i Clinical Audit data
i ompliance with the WHO theatre checklist

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

Part of the programme includes national clinical
audits largely funded by the Department of Health
(DH) and commissioned by the Healthcare Quality
Improvement Partnership (HQIP) which manages
the National Clinical Audit and Patients Outcome
Programme (NCAPOP). Most other national
audits are funded from subscriptions paid by NHS
provider organisations. Priorities for the NCAPOP
are set by the DH with advice from the National
Advisory Group on Clinical Audit and Enquiries
(NAGCAE) formerly known as National Clinical
Audit Advisory Group (NCAAG).
During 2013-14, Leicester’s Hospitals participated
in 95% (n=40/42) of national clinical audits and
100% (n=3/3) national confidential enquiries of the
national clinical audits and national confidential
enquiries which it was eligible to participate in.
The national clinical audits and national
confidential enquires that we participated in, and
for which data collection was completed during
2013-14 are listed in Appendices 2.1 and 2.2
alongside the number of cases submitted to each
audit or enquiry (as a percentage of the number of
registered cases required by the terms of that audit
or enquiry).
The reports of 37 national clinical audits and
385 local clinical audits were reviewed by the
provider in 2013-14. The results are reviewed at
Clinical Management Group Quality Meetings,
the Clinical Audit Committee and the Executive
Quality Board. All completed audits have an audit
planner which includes details of actions required
for improvement. These are available to all staff on
the intranet.
Appendix 3 provides some examples of these audits
and the improvements made to patient care in
2012/13 made as a result.

185

4

46

Statements of assurance
from the board

Participation in clinical research
The number of patients receiving NHS services
provided by or subcontracted by University
Hospitals of Leicester NHS Trust in 2013/14 that
were recruited to participate in research approved
by a research ethics committee.
University Hospitals of Leicester NHS Trust was
involved in conducting 920 clinical research studies.
Of these 612 (59%) were adopted and 308
(41%) non-adopted. 220 (24%) of the total were
commercially sponsored studies.
University Hospitals of Leicester NHS Trust used
national systems to manage the studies in
proportion to risk.
23% of the studies given approval were established
and managed under national model agreements.
In 2013/14 the National Institute for Health
Research (NIHR) supported 612 (59%) of the total
number of research studies through its research
networks.

For 2013/14 we received sign off by the Primary Care
Trust for 99% achieved (payment rate of 2.47%) of
CCGs CQUIN monies and 100% achieved (payment
rate of 2.5%) specialised CQUIN monies.
Further details of the agreed goals for 2013/14 and
for the following 12 month period are available
electronically on our website:
http://www.leicestershospitals.nhs.uk/
In addition to the CQUIN programme, quality
of care is also monitored through our Quality
Schedule. Two of our Quality Schedule indicators,
fractured neck of femur and stroke, are linked to
the Best Practice Tariff (BPT). BPTs were introduced
in April 2010 in an effort to adequately fund the
costs of best practice and to improve performance in
selected high-volume clinical treatments in the NHS.
BPTs aim to reduce unexplained variation in clinical
quality and ensure that best practice is widespread.
Different BPTs have different aims, designed to
either:
i

In 2013/14 there were 323 full papers published in
peer reviewed journals.

i

Goals agreed with commissioners:
Use of the CQUIN payment
framework

i

A proportion of Leicester’s Hospitals income
in 2013-14 was conditional on achieving
quality improvement and innovation goals
agreed between Leicester’s Hospitals and the
Commissioners, through the Commissioning for
Quality and Innovation payment framework
(CQUIN).
For 2013/14 the baseline value of the CQUIN was
£14.3m for acute services (i.e. 2.5% of contract
value). This means that when Leicester’s Hospitals
agreed contracts with commissioners it was agreed
that 2.5% of contract value would be received
upon achieving certain quality indicators. If these
quality indicators were not met or the outturn
contract value was lower than the baseline
contract, then the monies would be withheld.

change the setting of care, for example from
inpatient to day case;
streamline the pathway of care, for example
by reducing the number of outpatient
appointments following surgery; or
increase the provision of high-quality care based
on the best evidence available, for example
by encouraging trusts to treat patients in a
designated stroke unit so as to increase the
prospects of recovery.

In 2013/14 47% of patients achieved all seven
criteria of the BPT for fractured neck of femur.
There are plans in place to recruit additional orthogeriatricians to help increase this further.
There has been an improvement in stroke
performance through better access to stroke beds
by ‘ring fencing’. This ensures patients suffering
a stroke are admitted to an appropriate bed,
therefore improving quality of care.

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

186

47

4

Statements of assurance
from the board

Data Quality: NHS number of general practice code validity
Good quality information underpins the effective delivery of patient care and is essential to improvements in
the quality of care and for patient safety. Data that is accurate, timely and relevant supports efficient patient
care and reduces clinical risk. Reliable information on all aspects of performance means planning of future
services can be carried out with confidence.
Data quality is managed via an established set of routine daily checks, management reporting and audit.
Daily checks include:
i

i

Researching the identity of all new patients and ensuring new registrations are not duplications of
patient records that already exist. This includes checks on records with significant changes to information
such as patient name, date of birth and address which are essential to assignment and verification of the
NHS number for each patient. Patients with no number are typically overseas visitors or patients who
were unable to provide reliable information during their hospital visit.
Validation of General Medical Practice (GP) is undertaken, by comparing local data against national GP
databases. Anomalies are amended to support good communication from the Trust and ensure accurate
commissioning of activity. From December 2013 we have been running a scheme through LiA to raise
awareness of accurate GP data collection for our patients every time they attend.

Management reports are regularly collated to feedback on data quality to frontline services using local and
external sources.
A regular programme of audit is undertaken to review at least 300 patient records each month. This covers
both outpatient and admitted patient data, comparing information held in the paper case notes to the
electronic data collected. Validity checks on data show high compliance of national NHS code sets being
accurately applied with local information systems.

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

187

4

48

Statements of assurance
from the board

Leicester’s Hospitals submits records to the Secondary Uses Service for inclusion in Hospital Episode Statistics
which are included in the latest published data. Data published by the Secondary Uses Service for the period
April to December 2013 shows validity of data as follows:

Leicester’s Hospital

NHS Number

Admitted patient care

99.8%

Outpatient care

99.6%

Accident and Emergency care

98.3%

The hospital’s local coverage of NHS Number is higher than these figures indicate as we do not submit
any identifiable information such as NHS number for patients whose attendance data contains sensitive
information to the Secondary Uses Services.

Trust
Admitted patient care

General Medical
Outpatient care
Practice

Accident and Emergency care

100%
100%
99.9%

Leicester’s Hospital

Ethnicity Code

Admitted patient care

100%

Outpatient care

97.7%

Accident and Emergency care

87.0%

Ethnicity data coverage in our Emergency Department is 100%. The Urgent Care Centre data included in the
total is collected on a separate GP computer system managed as it is managed by George Eliot Hospital NHS
Trust.
Data Quality is now included in the CQC Intelligent Monitoring reports and for Leicester’s Hospitals this was
scored as ‘no evidence of risk’ in 2014.

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

188

49

4

Statements of assurance
from the board

Clinical coding error rate
Leicester’s Hospitals was subject to the Payment by
Leicester’s Hospitals was subject to the Payment
by Results (PbR) clinical coding audit during
January 2014. The audit sample was 200 episodes
(131 spells); 100 Admissions for Health Resource
Group (HRG) sub chapter (Immunology, infectious
diseases, poisoning, shock, special examinations,
screening and other healthcare contacts) with
specified level of complications and co-morbidities
and 100 Admissions through HRG sub chapter WA
with a primary diagnosis of R29.6 (tendency to fall
not elsewhere classified).
The percentage of incorrect primary diagnosis
in the sample of 131 spells was 34%. Due to the
targeted nature of the PbR audits and the small
sample of activity audited it is not recommended
that these results be extrapolated further than the
actual sample audited. However, they do provide
information that will help both commissioners and
providers decide if the controls over the accuracy
of their activity data are adequate, as well as
highlighting areas of concern they may wish to
investigate further.

Information Governance Toolkit
Requirement No. 11-505
1. a continuous clinical coding audit program
comprising of several small audits undertaken
throughout the year; or
2. a single one-off audit which should be
undertaken every 12 months by an NHS
Classifications approved clinical coding auditor
Leicester’s Hospitals adheres to both of these
requirements. From October 2013 there has been
a dedicated Auditor in place. Audits of Dr Foster
alerts including Deaths in Low Risk Mortality
diagnosis groups and Misadventure rates are
undertaken monthly.

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

Leicester’s Hospitals will be taking the following
action to improve data quality. The introduction
of the site lead role implemented in October
has improved localised expert support, closer
management of staff and improved team
communication. More time spent with clinicians
will ensure that complete information to support
coding is documented.

Information Governance Attainment
Tool Kit Attainment Level 2013/14
The Trust continues to deliver improvements in
the level of compliance with the performance
standards set in the annual information
governance toolkit, building on positive work
in the last three years. Improvements have been
delivered across all three hospital sites including;
updating policy guidance, training all staff as part
of our mandatory programme and introducing
new approaches to promoting ’privacy and security
awareness’.
Our ‘Privacy by Design’ strategy aims to enhance
the security of all our services and the information
used to deliver them, leading to improvements in:
i
i

i

Patient confidentiality via greater focus on
awareness-raising amongst key staff groups;
Knowledge management practices to improve
management of key corporate information
across services;
Employee training, development and
mentoring to raise information literacy.

Our Information Governance Assessment Report
overall score for 2013/14 was 83% and was graded
green indicating that it was satisfactory.

189

4

50

Statements of assurance
from the board

What others say about Leicester’s
Hospitals NHS: Statements from the
Care Quality Commission (CQC)
Leicester’s Hospitals is required to register with
the Care Quality Commission (CQC) and its current
registration status is registered without conditions.
The CQC has not taken enforcement action against
Leicester’s Hospitals during 2013/14.
We were one of the first Trusts to be inspected
under radical changes introduced by the CQC,
designed to provide a much more detailed picture
of care in hospitals than ever before.
An inspection team including doctors, nurses,
hospital managers, trained members of the public,
CQC inspectors and analysts, visited Leicester Royal

Infirmary, Leicester General Hospital, Glenfield
Hospital and St Mary’s Birth Centre in January 2014.
The team visited our hospitals as part of an
announced inspection and examined the care
provided in accident and emergency (A&E), medical
care (including older people’s care), surgery,
intensive/critical care, maternity, children’s care,
end of life care and outpatients.
Overall, the report concludes that we are providing
services that are safe, effective, responsive, caring
and well-led; however, there were some areas for
improvement.
As a trust, we have been rated as ‘good’ in three
out of five areas and ‘requires improvement’ in
two, equating to an overall rating of ‘requires
improvement’.

University Hospitals of Leicester NHS Trust
Are acute services at this Trust safe?

Requires improvement

Are acute services at this Trust effective?

Good

Are acute services at this Trust effective?

Good

Are acute services at this Trust responsive?

Requires improvement
Good

Are acute services at this Trust well-led?
At a site level there are individual reports and ratings which equate to the following:
Leicester Royal Infirmary

Requires improvement

Leicester General Hospital

Requires improvement

Glenfield Hospital

Good

St Mary’s Birth Centre

Good

Inspectors made a number of positive findings during their visit and, feedback overwhelmingly showed that
our staff are caring.
We have an extensive team of specialist midwives who offer support and care to more vulnerable members
of the community.
At Glenfield Hospital, we have a quiet room and sitting room reserved for relatives of people being treated
in the intensive care unit. As the unit provides care and treatment for people from across Leicestershire,
there is also display giving details about local amenities and facilities.
Action had also been taken as a result of a clinical audit, to enhance the experience of patients across the
Trust.

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

190

51

4

Statements of assurance
from the board

However, the inspection found some areas where improvements were needed.
For example the CQC have advised that; we review resuscitation practice and equipment to ensure the safety
of patients; ensure all staff adhere to infection prevention control and practices; and dirty equipment was
found in some medical wards.
Staffing issues were also highlighted in the report. We need to ensure we have an appropriate number of
suitably qualified staff available. However, we had a recruitment plan in place prior to the inspection and
continue to recruit to fill vacancies our own staffing review has identified.
The inspectors asked us to ensure staff receive the training and support they need which is appropriate to
their roles.
The CQC also noted that some areas of our buildings need attention for example, some rooms were seen to
be too small; access was difficult to one particular area; and a roof was leaking at the time of the inspection.
Leicester’s Hospitals intends to take the following action to address the conclusions or requirements reported
by the CQC by working with our partner’s to agree an action plan and address the compliance actions by the
end of April 2014.
Full copies of the CQC reports can be found on our website www.leicestershospitals.nhs.uk/aboutus/
performance/care-quality-commission/
or by visiting www.cqc.org.uk.

CQC Outlier Alerts
The CQC mortality outliers programme looks at patterns of death rates within NHS Trusts. The programme
focuses on:
i
i
i

death rates in NHS trusts
changes and trends over time
the deaths of people with specific diseases and those undergoing surgery

Leicester’s Hospitals receive an alert if the number of deaths is much higher than normal. However, increased
death rates don’t always mean that there is a problem with the quality of care provided.
Leicester’s Hospitals have received two CQC outlier alerts in 2013/14; one in relation to a maternity indicator
(the rates of puerperal sepsis and other puerperal infections within 42 days of delivery) and the other in
relation to coronary artery bypass grafts (CABG).

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

191

4

52

Statements of assurance
from the board

Puerperal Sepsis
In August 2013 the CQC notified Leicester’s Hospitals that analysis of maternity indicators had indicated that
rates of puerperal sepsis and other puerperal infections within 42 days of delivery at our Trust have remained
significantly high since the previous alert for this indicator was closed in April 2012.
The following action was taken:
A case-note review, the review of audit data regarding serious septic illness and the review of audit data
regarding post-caesarean section wound infection all confirmed good clinical outcomes and failed to identify
any concerns regarding quality of care. However there were a number of issues identified that need to be
addressed including:
i
i
i
i

A need to improve coding of septic illness diagnoses to more accurately reflect the clinical diagnoses
A need to validate and benchmark the data being collected with regard to severe septic illness on our E3
database
A need to identify and implement at least one Quality Outcome Indicator to be included as a regular item
on our maternity dashboard
A review of pathways of care for women after discharge from hospital in conjunction with primary care
colleagues

An action plan has been implemented and the CQC has now closed the alert.

Coronary Artery Bypass Graft (CABG)
The raised mortality alert for this group has been reviewed. All of the deaths which have contributed to this
alert have been reviewed case-by-case at the Mortality and Morbidity meetings which are held monthly. No
significant cause of concern in the management of these patients was identified. We have identified a query
regarding coding and this has been discussed internally and with Dr Fosters Intelligence.
The Trust also regularly reviews its cardiac surgery outcomes using the data base provided by The Society of
Cardiothoracic Surgery (NICOR). This calculates risk-adjusted mortality overall and in sub-groups using an
adaptation of the ‘EuroSCORE’ model. The data for the period covered by the
Dr Foster Intelligence alert (2010/13) has now been published by The Society
of Cardiothoracic Surgery and has provided the Trust with further assurance about its cardiac surgery
outcomes.

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

192

53

4

Statement of directors’ responsibilities
in respect of the quality report

The Directors are required under the Health Act 2009 to prepare a Quality Account for
each financial year. The Department of Health has issued guidance on the form and
content and annual Quality Accounts which incorporates the legal requirements in
the Health Act 2009 and the National Health Service (Quality Accounts) Regulations
2010 (as amended by the National Health Service (Quality Accounts) Amendment
Regulations 2011).
In preparing the Quality Account, directors are required to take steps to satisfy
themselves that:


 7KH 4XDOLW\ $FFRXQW SUHVHQWV D EDODQFHG SLFWXUH RI WKH WUXVW¶V
performance over the period covered;



 7KH SHUIRUPDQFH LQIRUPDWLRQ UHSRUWHG LQ WKH 4XDOLW\ $FFRXQW LV
reliable and accurate;



 7KHUHDUHSURSHULQWHUQDOFRQWUROVRYHUWKHFROOHFWLRQDQGUHSRUWLQJ
of the measures of performance included in the Quality Account,
and these controls are subject to review to confirm that they are
working effectively in practice;



 7KH GDWD XQGHUSLQQLQJ WKH PHDVXUHV RI SHUIRUPDQFH UHSRUWHG LQ
the Quality Account is robust and reliable, conforms to specified
data quality standards and prescribed definitions, and is subject to
appropriate scruitiny and review;



 7KH 4XDOLW\ $FFRXQW KDV EHHQ SUHSDUHG LQ DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK
Department of Health guidelines.

The Directors confirm to the best of their knowledge and belief they have complied
with the above requirements in preparing the Quality Account.
By order of the Board
26 / 06 / 14

Richard Kilner, Acting Chair

26 / 06 / 14

John Adler, Chief Executive

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

193

5

54

Statements from our stakeholders
and external auditors

The draft Quality Account was shared with the
following stakeholders at the end of April 2014
i NHS Leicester City, East Leicestershire & Rutland
and West Leicestershire Clinical Commissioning
Group
i Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland Healthwatch
i NHS England
i Health and Wellbeing Scrutiny Commission at
Leicester City Council

Feedback has been received and included from NHS
Leicester City, East Leicestershire & Rutland and
West Leicestershire Clinical Commissioning Group,
Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland Healthwatch
and Health and Wellbeing Scrutiny Commission at
Leicester City Council.
As a result of the CCGs commentary amendments
have been made to the Quality Account to address
the five bullet points detailed in their commentary.

NHS Leicester City, East Leicestershire & Rutland and West Leicestershire CCG
Statement for UHL Quality Account
The following statement has been prepared on behalf of the NHS Leicester City, East
Leicestershire & Rutland and West Leicestershire CCGs for submission within the University
Hospitals of Leicester Quality Account 2013/14.
We would like to take this opportunity to thank University Hospitals of Leicester NHS Trust
(UHL) for inviting Commissioners to comment on the Quality Account for 2013/14 regarding
the services provided to patients.
As acknowledged in the Chief Executive¶V RSHQLQJ statement there are challenges for the
Trust across urgent and planned care, however, the CQC inspection recognised that staff
are both caring and passionate about their work. The increased investment in the nursing
establishment of £5.9m and the recruitment plan implemented is seen as a positive and
decisive action by the Trust to improve the quality of care for the patients of Leicester,
Leicestershire and Rutland. Commissioner quality monitoring visits have continued in
2013/14 and staff have continued to welcome commissioners to the areas visited and we
have seen improvements in ward based areas.
It is, however, of concern to Commissioners to note that the Quality Account demonstrates
that the Trust has not achieved all their priorities set for 2013/14. However we strongly
support the 7UXVW¶V focus on the UHL Quality and Safety Commitment for 2013 -15, to
reduce mortality, avoid harm and patient centred care (dignity and respect). Of particular
concern, is the continued challenge in ensuring access for patient across the emergency
care and planned care pathways to ensure that UHL can fulfil the pledges to patients set out
in the NHS Constitution.
During 2013/14 both Commissioners and the Trust remained focused on improvements
required to improve patient experience and outcomes against the 62 day cancer waits
pathway of care where we have seen much improvement with time to treatment for patients.
Commissioners were encouraged to see continued progress in organisational learning
across the Trust to prevent “Never Events” which reduced in number to 3 for 2013/14.
Further embedding the learning from all serious incidents was identified within the “5 critical
safety actions” work stream however this remains an on-going process and we are pleased
to see this continuing in 2014/15. The challenge of ensuring embedding into practice for
every practitioner remains a high priority to prevent similar incidents recurring and we feel
this needs focussed attention
As Commissioners we feel that the Quality Account would benefit from further explanation
University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

194

55

5

Statements from our stakeholders
and external auditors
As Commissioners we feel that the Quality Account would benefit from further explanation
on the achievements and challenges faced in the following areas:
- The establishment / re-establishment within UHL of revised quality governance
committees including Quality Assurance Committee, Mortality, Infection Prevention
Control, Safeguarding, Workforce etc. which ensure greater scrutiny of the quality of
care provided and describe the processes the Trust uses to establish assurance.
- The inclusion of details of CQC alerts received relating to puerperal sepsis and
coronary artery bypass grafting and actions taken by the Trust in response.
-

-

The inclusion of performance and actions to improve on areas subject to ‘Best
3UDFWLFH7DULII¶VXFKDVIUDFWXUHGQHFNRIIHPXUDQGVWURNHVHUYLFHV
How the Trust plans to demonstrate progress to achieving the future quality and
safety priorities and how these will be monitored and measured given the significant
challenge across the emergency care and planned care pathways
The use of patient stories can be very powerful and could be used to illustrate patient
experience more effectively and it would be useful to describe how the Trust embeds
the learning from these to improve clinical practice.

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

195

5













56

Statements from our stakeholders
and external auditors



May 29, 2014

HW LLR Joint Response
UHL Quality Account 2013 - 2014
This is a joint response on behalf of Leicester City, Leicestershire and Rutland
Healthwatches; we consider that the Quality Account for 2013/14 as a whole and
the opening Statement from the Chief Executive in particular presents a very
balanced picture, explaining exactly what is a Quality Account, and highlighting
those things done well and those where performance has fallen short of
expectations.
UHL have made much of their 'Quality Commitment', with three key strands of
work - saving more lives, reducing avoidable harm and improving patient
experience. There is more the Trust needs to do to understand the key drivers of
mortality and further improve its mortality rates. UHL has done very well in
tackling bed sores, falls and infections, especially clostridium difficicle and
MRSA.
Whilst a marked improvement in the 'friends and family test ' is reported, the
figure of 57.3% has to be seen against a national average of 67% and some way
short of the very best (93.8%). There is clear evidence of an upward trend and the
Chief Nurse can take credit for her focus on ward staffing levels with £5.9m being
made available for additional recruitment. Media reports and information coming
into Healthwatch though suggest some nursing staff still feel under great pressure
to deliver a safe service of quality and there is not yet the necessary level of
consistency to which everyone aspires.
Emergency care remains the most urgent quality issue whilst the ophthalmology
service too has struggled to keep up with demand. The Trust is implementing an
improvement plan for the latter which us due to be completed by June 2014.
Quality performance is reviewed in detail showing targets achieved or near plan
and those behind plan. Out of Hours and discharge require more work to improve
patient experience. We note the excellent work undertaken with people with
dementia. The Trust did not achieve the threshold for 'referral to treatment' (ie
18 weeks) in all specialties.


Complaints look high but the learning taken from "What do patients tell us?" is
encouraging and Healthwatch has been working with the Trust on the revision of
its Complaints Procedure following the Francis and Clywd Hart reports.


University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

196

57

Statements from our stakeholders
and external auditors


During the year a new overall management structure has been introduced
replacing 12 Clinical Business Units with seven smaller Clinical Management
Groups. There is a much more encouraging feel about the organisation than a year
ago and the "Listening into Action" initiative has been very well received.
The Chief Executive's Statement concludes with the quotation from the Chief
Inspector of Hospitals following the CQC inspection in January, "We found that the
University Hospitals of Leicester NHS Trust was providing services that were safe,
effective, responsive, caring and well-led." The CQC recognised that more needed
to be done in some areas and this is acknowledged in the Trust's Action Plan in
response to the inspection. Healthwatch supports the work being done.

Philip Parkinson

Vijay Sharma

Interim Chair of
Healthwatch
Leicester

Interim Chair of
Healthwatch
Leicestershire

(to 31st March 2014)

(to 4th February 2014)



University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

Jennifer
Fenelon

Rick Moore

Chair of Healthwatch
Rutland

Chair of Healthwatch
Leicestershire

(appointed 5th
February 2014)

197

5

58

Statements from our stakeholders
and external auditors

9th June 2014
To:
Sharon Hotson, Director of Clinical Quality
John Adler, Chief Executive
University Hospitals of Leicester (UHL)
RE: UNIVERSITY HOSPITALS OF LEICESTER TRUST (UHL) - DRAFT QUALITY
ACCOUNT 2013/14

Thank you for contacting the Health and Wellbeing Scrutiny
Commission at Leicester City Council, to request comments on your
draft Quality Accounts 2013-2014.
The Commission welcomed receiving UHL Quality Accounts last
year and did provide comments. The Commission has just
appointed a new membership this year 2014/15, therefore would
like to take up your invitation to make a visit to the hospitals to see
how services are provided.
We welcome your offer to attend the Health & Wellbeing Scrutiny
Commission to present your current Quality Accounts; however, this
has not been possible as the Commission has not met since April
2014. To inform you that the next meeting is planned to take place
on 1st July 2014.

Many thanks,

Councillor Michael Cooke
Chair of Health and Wellbeing Scrutiny Commission
LEICESTER CITY COUNCIL.

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

198

59

5

Independent auditors report
on annual quality account

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

199

5

60

Independent auditors report
on annual quality account

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

200

61

5

Independent auditors report
on annual quality account

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

201

5

62

Independent auditors report
on annual quality account

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

202

63

6

Appendices

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

(KevinHarris)

AugmentedCare

(KevinHarris)

CancerBoard

(RachelOverfield)

Qualitygovernance
development

(RichardMitchell)

QIPPProgramme

(MarkWightman)

OlderPeoplesStrategy

(RachelOverfield)

CQCactionplan

(JohnAdler)

7dayworking

(RachelOverfield)

Experience

(KevinHarris)

Effectiveness

(KevinHarris/RachelOverfield)

QualityCommitment
Safety

(JohnAdler)

Emergency
Care

(RichardMitchell)

Waitingtimes

ExecutivePerformance
Board

ExecutiveQualityBoard

PMO

Finance&Performance
Committee

Organisational
Development

ServiceStrategies

(AndrewChatten)

Estates

(PeterHollinshead)

Procurement

(PeterHollinshead)

(KateShields)

TheAlliance

(KateShields)

Children’sHospitalBoard

(StephenWard)

Governancedevelopment

(MarkWightman)

Communication,
engagement&marketing

(KateShields)

(RichardMitchell)

ClinicalCoding

ServiceLineManagement

(JohnAdler)

Theatres

Informationtechnology

Pharmacy

(KevinHarris)

(KateShields)

Research&innovation

Outpatients

(KateShields)

Reconfiguration&major
capitaldevelopment

(KateShields,KevinHarris/Mark
Wightman)

Partnerships

(PeterHollinshead)

Financialrecovery&capital
planning

(RachelOverfield)

Nursing,Midwifery&
Therapies

(KevinHarris)

Bestuseofstaff
Medical

(KateBradley)

Training&workforce
development

(KevinHarris)

MedicalEducation

(RachelOverfield)

ClinicalEducation

(KateBradley)

WorkforcePlanning

(KateBradley)

(JohnAdler)

(KateShields)

ListeningintoAction

ExecutiveWorkforceBoard

ClinicalStrategy

PMO

(KevinHarris/KateShields)

(RichardMitchell)

(KateShields)

Diagnostics

(RichardMitchell)

Bedutilisation

System
improvement

PMO

ExecutiveStrategyBoard

TrustBoard

PMO

AuditCommittee

6

QualityAssurance
Committee


  
Content&governancestructure

203
64

Appendix 1
Caring at its best – structure

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

o
o
o
o
o

Responsive
services which
people choose to
use
Integrated care in
partnership with
others

Enhanced
reputation in
research,
innovation and
clinical education

Delivering
services through
a caring,
professional
passionate and
valued workforce

o
o
o
o
o
o

A safe,
sustainable,
productive high
performing NHS
FT

Development of a 5 year LLR system plan
Development of the UHL 5 year plan
Priority capital schemes: Emergency Floor and Vascular move to GH
A strategy for children’s services
Procurement of an Electronic Patient Record system
Implementation of the CRUK Centre and more patients in clinical trials
New partnerships (incl. Alliance and across East Midlands)

Deliver emergency care improvement plan
Increase bed capacity and staffing
Deliver the RTT (18 week) improvement plan
Protection of day case and elective work
Improve productivity through re-design of major systems
Deliver £45m CIP and financial bottom line

PerformanceandFinance:Deliveringthebasics

o
o
o
o
o
o
o

Strategy:TakingforwardourStrategicDirection

DeliveringCaringatitsBestprioritiesfor2014/15

An effective,
joined up
emergency care
system

Next phases of Listening into Action (LiA)
Experiments in autonomy, incentivisation and shared governance
Improvements in medical education
Development of new roles (linked to productivity improvement)
A workforce plan to complement our 5 year strategic plan

Workforce:Empoweringourpeople

o Provideeffectivecare,e.g.
o 7 Day services
o Pathway improvements (e.g. heart failure and pneumonia
o Mortality reviews
o Improvesafety,e.g.
o Resuscitation procedures
o Sepsis
o Safety Thermometer
o CareandCompassion,e.g.
o Care of older people
o End of life care
o Dementia care

Quality:OurextendedQualityCommitment

Safe, high quality
patient centred
healthcare

Strategic objectives

Values

Enabled by better
estate, equipment
& technology

6

Vision

5 year strategy

65

204

Appendix 1 continued
Caring at its best - content

205

6

66

Appendix 2.1

Appendix 2.1 National clinical audits that Leicester’s Hospitals was eligible
to participate in during 2013/14
Category

Project Title

Did the Trust
participate?

Percentage of Cases
Submitted

UHL
Ref No.

Acute

National Emergency Laparotomy Audit (2013/14)

Yes

Data collection ongoing

6306

Heart

Myocardial ischaemia (MINAP) (heart attack)
(UCLH/NCASP) 2013/14)

Yes

Data collection ongoing

6323

Acute

Intensive Care National Audit & Research Centre
(ICNARC) Casemix Programme 2013/14)

Yes

Data collection ongoing

6358

Acute

National Joint Registry (NJR) (BOA/Northgate)
(2013/14)

Yes

Data collection ongoing

6369

Cancer

National Bowel Cancer Audit (NBoCap)
(2012/13)

Yes

100%

6370

Cancer

National Lung Cancer Audit (NCLA)
(RCP/NCASP) (2013/14)

Yes

Data collection ongoing

6372

Heart

National CABG and Valvular Surgery Audit
(Adult Cardiac Surgery) (2013/14)

Yes

Data collection ongoing

6374

Heart

National Cardiac Rhythm Management Audit
(Cardiac Arrhythmia) (2013/14)

Yes

Data collection ongoing

6375

Heart

National Congenitial Heart Disease Audit
(Paediatric Cardiac Surgery) (2013 Activity)
(2013/14)

Yes

Data collection ongoing

6376

Heart

Adult Cardiac Interventions National Audit
(Coronary Angioplasty) (NICOR)
(2013 Activity) (2013/14)

Yes

Data collection ongoing

6377

Heart

National Heart Failure Audit (CCAD) (2013/14)

Yes

Data collection ongoing

6378

Long term
conditions

National Diabetes Audit (Adult) (2013/14)

Yes

100%

6379

Long term
conditions

National Paediatric Diabetes Audit (2013/14)

Yes

Data collection ongoing

6380

Older People

Sentinel Stroke National Audit Programme
(SSNAP) (2013/14)

Yes

Data collection ongoing

6384

Older People

National Falls and Fragility Fractures Audit
(RCP) (2013/14) (includes National Hip Fractures
Database (NHFD))

Yes

98-99% to NHFD

6387

Women’s &
Children’s Health

National Neonatal Audit 2013 (NNAP) (RCPCH)
(2013/14)

Yes

100%

6394

Women’s &
Children’s Health

National Paediatric Intensive Care Audit
Network (PICANET) (2013/14)

Yes

100%

6395

Long term
conditions

BTS Bronchiectasis Audit (Children) (2013/14)

Yes

100%

6397b

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

206

67

6

Appendix 2.1 continued

Category

Project Title

Did the Trust
participate?

Percentage of Cases
Submitted

UHL
Ref No.

Long term
conditions

Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease (COPD)
(RCP) (2013/14)

Yes

Data collection ongoing

6398

Acute

Emergency Oxygen Audit
(British Thoracic Society) (2013/14)

No - (2012 audits
results for trust
were excellent
so service agreed
re-audit not
required)

None

6400

Women’s &
Children’s Health

Children’s Asthma Audit (College of Emergency
Medicine/CEM) (2013/14)

Yes

Data collection ongoing

6401

Acute

National Audit of Seizure Management
(NASH) (2013/14)

No - (audited
not undertaken
due to staff
shortages – audit
rescheduled for
April 2014 locally)

None

6402

Women’s &
Children’s Health

Paediatric Asthma Audit (BTS) (2013/14)

Yes

100%

6406

Acute

Paracetamol Overdose (CEM) (2013/14)

Yes

Data collection ongoing

6407

Cancer

National Prostate Cancer Audit (RCS) (2013/14)

Yes

Data collection ongoing

6408

Long term
conditions

Renel Replacement Therapy (NHSBT) (2013/14)

Yes

100%

6409

Acute

Severe Sepsis and Septic Shock (CEM) (2013/14)

Yes

Data collection ongoing

6410

Acute

Severe Trauma Audit and Research Network
(TARN) (2013)

Yes

100%

6411

Other

Hip 2013/14 Patient Reported Outcome
Measures (PROMs)

Yes

Data collection ongoing

6855a

Other

Knee 2013/14 Patient Reported Outcome
Measures (PROMs)

Yes

Data collection ongoing

6855b

Other

Groin Hernia 2013/14 Patient Reported
Outcome Measures (PROMs)

Yes

Data collection ongoing

6855c

Other

Varicose Vein 2013/14 Patient Reported
Outcome Measures (PROMs)

Yes

Data collection ongoing

6855d

Blood &
Transplant

National Comparative Audit of Blood
Transfusion Programme

Yes

Data collection ongoing

6818

Cancer

National Database for Head and Neck Cancer
(DAHNO) (BAHNO/NCASP) (2013/14)

Yes

>95%

6338

Cancer

National Oesophago-Gastric (UGI) Cancer Audit
(2013/14)

Yes

100%

6373

207

6

68

Appendix 2.1 continued
and Appendix 2.2

Category

Project Title

Did the Trust
participate?

Percentage of Cases
Submitted

UHL
Ref No.

Heart

National Cardiac Arrest Audit (2013/14)

Yes

Data collection ongoing

6071

Heart

National Vascular Registry (2013/14)

Yes

Data collection ongoing

6888

Long term
conditions

Inflammatory Bowel Disease (IBD) (2013/14)
(Paediatric and Adult)

Yes

100%

6160
(Adult
6139
Paed)

Long term
conditions

National Audit of Rheumatoid and Early
Inflammatory Arthritis (NCAPOP 2013/14)

Yes

Data collection ongoing

6739

Women’s &
Children’s Health

Child Health Clinical Outcome Review
Programme (CHR-UK) (2013/14)

Yes

100%

6430

Women’s &
Children’s Health

National Paediatric Epilepsy Audit
(Round 2 - 2012/14)

Yes

100%

6244

Mental Health

National Audit of Schizophrenia (NAS)

N/A

–

–

Mental Health

Prescribing Observatory for Mental Health
(POMH)

N/A

–

–

Appendix 2.2 National confidential enquiries that Leicester’s Hospitals was
eleigible to participated in during 2013/14
Name of Audit /
Confidential Enquiry

Did the Trust
participate?

Percentage of Cases
Submitted

NCEPOD Publication
‘Measuring the Units’
Alcohol related liver disease study

Yes

4 out of 6 questionnaires
and 3 out of 6 notes

NCEPOD Publication
‘Managing the Flow’
Subarachnoid haemorrhage study

Yes

100% (7 out of 7)

NCEPOD Study Tracheostomy
Data collection complete.
Study not yet published

Yes

86% (42 out of 49)

MBRRACE-UK
National Maternal, Newborn and
Infant Review Programme (2013/14)

Yes

99% (113 out of 114)

Mental Health Clinical Review Programme
National Confidential Inquiry into Suicide and
Homicide for People with Mental Illness (NCISH)

N/A

–

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

208

69

6

Appendix 3

Examples of audits and the improvments to patient care as a result

This section gives some detail around the improvements to patient care that have occurred as a
result of clinical audits undertaken within each of the 4 clinical divisions. For the purpose of this
report a brief overview has been provided however each story has a reference number so if you
would like any further details around the audit please contact Carl Walker, Clinical Audit Manager.
Email: carl.walker@uhl-tr.nhs.uk

e
y
el 3 ired b t
th
he
lev
r
e
s
ete
n t ck nodgael as reqtrueatmetnhe
f
hairn
ou
t
hc on o Ven lls. mom th.thi
i
the learly
t
f
e
l
a
a
c he
ti
era nd ohiedn
tn
er mw
on i
)
ic to ich t
he or s, 2 4) F y Th s
tchiev tm. ent- sionTIA Ctlinh
ts a cov e ei
sw
h
the
a
in
(w
en 5% t thw
r
on
:
&
fet ne
ce
i
saellowseiporopn
s
hewsiUnit hilst
A as a treai
een
atm ed 9se
t
lce I),
Sa sys
r iotcn
v
.
s
s
e
o
r
,
e
f
s
d
e
u
r
n
s
S
m
v sdar
t
s
T
e
t fo
o
h re
s
t
of th et
Hceda
fii
e w ntialD
m
sio do). W v
iee
ts
fruoe
se e
s
i
U
e
r
a
n, e
a
is
c
s
g
h
N
s
re
ly
c
n
a
a
c
d
t
c
a
s uca che sta coveer sn
sults in
is a h
ceenc tdom s d’osn’tatD
nsio nw
tsi
st’as
s hy
it ess Suctool thrmiavnpiressuns (CtAuSse tuhea single itv
al reith
nd’s
ti
art D
ien perte ine
ub t. Sucatdmire rgniceacl kA etn
gas
tio
t
re
l He st Midla that
ienalthitaS
d
yeser’s
p ir c
t
s
a
l
r
n
%
t
i
s
n
y
h
u
e
it
e
a
e
i
s
o
0
a
e
r
re
o
S
d
e
n
in
it
a
i
a
a
D
t is ef hDnd 4 ectudin to ts on e of paluh dk nod t the i10ll d
w
u
c
u
r dc ensuStyu
ic ate g t oiflthd
i
hec hyisbeyega Conge ss t the E howed
ehr
e
x
t
A
r
h
o
in
t
b
c
d
it
ip
e
e
t
re
e s within the
e
r
e
ohigu, w
d
m -ris hils C
A
a
th
thuh
es l dA
tsg o e mTa suopneal oan
ccery a ntre s es
.h
Th ted partics daureC
gnleorA
c
ra
) o 3 a lInfA beg tienar a
nd r
u
d
h
:
i
n
e
se
u
it
it
a
t
]
e
n
s
a
ti
rg
e
t
t
e
n
e
n
i
id
t
a
a
cc
w
w
a
s en
C
o Su
c
y
psu ly t
n U esrsym wn; (ige w iov
lrido
Nnais
irccgenof t of d’osse,C&
w
ST HSCla
nc 2, ara
w
reHlaL ’tos
ers inpC
line ome
li
Au
truic
t etart
in D
eitroa f di
UK lan
Ct loe&
ed d sceatelr [A
dooe
lsuor al
he
ll Clin
N va e adeinriinc
vid r ad
eudotin
rs
srgseaekr
Cl
sbuaa
l
aoic
r Un
igahus eraltshehe p
A,uthd dengitreaal H . es are in
Paerin tmen n
the
e
r
e
re
ig
o
n
fo
c
ly
d
ic
f
fo
e
,
e
r
e
e
p
t
h
3
fo
v
r
d
in
in
e
t
t
d
t
ti
e
ly
r
y
b
h to an at
g
W
2n
m
o
m 3D
ed oarrdlyucsedda erta Cibounteg uictckoSome
r
like
it Hot! that there is e
s s trea e
eof nC
G led U are pn
aboion
e e i or tehod
and o
soinrtan ast rniptre in
df
nu
e .%
lin e). C dntr C
rd/1s aiv
reis
mphylaceiveseat up W
wount sere
qou e
r p 1) C
llow ando
kthac
A
lts a
misp tin, gnot le CEApcee rin
wnadsa
t adrr 3o2f me oend ensasa nf tccu
cte
at lta
nodits U(aaHtlleL’ds ar
hy thesacte
hc n
at iatClrimnom S fn
It a W
is im
id
pro rec
in som
lle
it
t showed
e
EAs en bee ple maerk ploiosuA
al tseta yoreusu
t ( to ci

rm edd advise phretv ffincieoy foicr in4hg0a auiltls tre vidtiinokg
e
nar Anaesthetics
sCh mum
r
u
a
st
t s vIto
ead
space
e audititle for
team takeThthe
Warming” Audit.
ge“Patient
ll linann n iewn pro
sh, ethn
a e nio
35)
h eeig aeetio
tiss as to mou tmen l to a vtheisr tar u large more Tterhepeaetnrfoasvdhesoim
awn o an tth
or oc The leaNHnsho tion Asso allPheal is co
cia
te stora
clactiopke
repth
eit et)nw nt (#53
ant to nd /nstrom
d
t
good
inadequa of the Trust.
seelahsn iarenedss ttwhaitishe )wdito,beilsispMoTeIA
onsdsiv arlwraete
gatio d edseeaaasthsecss
are le tu trea entia , or o secon rry eou ital. W cW
ninfe
or with
aid
s to be
lyislin
rp ass Safetyed byPrteha snea’ pin realtaheterded thaartms” datsaurvey
ib
ita s inim
aum aliasdtitio
e ing continue .
ly are po and
yth imdpreatinodnib
areas
irect
am
ndfo
ebtotilin
t M om
ca th sp
ain
uce
cularthe
vis urate is ess odes
dhrm
ietpca m
o
This year’s
winner
was
Anaesthetics
teamsom
for their
d omfgdow
ic
nstes
e parameters
ed
ds of the clinical audit competition
parti
u cr
ty an Pr
ndganyd:onfhthoe he Eas m
ctigvhge im
c Dore
0o-lu
s
a
ck
n
ar
t
in
rg
e
v
n
s
a
e
lo
r
t
c
ge
3
nd
d
it
S
e
T
u
n
t
n
p
p
id
un
re
y
t
s
h
c
C
le
sta
e
s
.
Fr
m
vi
ak
w
e
u
o
e
C nd l NH velo eas m fr , 3) mme . ST “ sed S ty)dto udnit A eliver r and ues onardudioitelodLo9n5d%,EoAsoinupts :a third nretrehtreo(NlpouprsoedvpeinweerdpfoiturhrrcinoinCegmnttategr ime tumedTreeithnuisn%dra)eisrttupreyth,thateemteam
be
ough results for
most of “Patient
sand Perioperative
Warming
(#5922).
- dards
ional Stan
ainst re-audit
g The winning
found to Alth
Nataudit
yHypothermia”
rin
nic
anple
ito
n dlem
entation of amsim
still below the
monare
a
e
e electro
imp
re
l
r
in
The
tu
er
t
ra
a ona s de to m ‘har TE) reco 12/13 : er-ba deplaute T)feActioy rorf: daruomtidou oyctuisstreic twCoams ya rtthaakt aelldonCaml grertmniae’stdionest cegrsaeamriimtoUmHt.LieThneetaplapacyyRnerfrTt.2rit:Bnaineginsthrttaisreaw )thm(2ep.4liletentesiddswesbroidf thadesurganeagrdWyoithf thchosen
stick
d
ws
n
rin
by votesiof a panel
clinicians
project
it sholead,
e of audit lead spo
mpe – was presented by theaud
r

Fe

0

n

10

c

95

v

90

)
(%

pt

t
Oc

Ja

De

Ma

b

13

20

No

Se

Pa

tie

nts

5
dd setand
se
nrad larg pro th aspea
ce u galle led in
ciclo te
dm
3 trcvus
C
our
es nW
oenreteadA
oaApurgeerfo
ece nd
M mea
1co
ny
(100%), in
itekklog
(V DH) f 20 ogpyap teoddu MRd in swcpauriola
ing and
l C t8 aitltehfdia
wa als are
te.
-depth
artsure (using a against
iaarm
w dPh
.
ctdifisaydsossap
ny:s, escrib
very
dxpeato
a ua
taecrtic
lyoy
u wa Jkulp
m
ctinrm
mitlipsahit(#n63uaffbleDe
dk
ineq
(
an
I n edant d tiontao s AuhPdea
tsit
T
ero
enatte
ehy
m
o ol e inM
ad
he12 anundd
a
Andrew
NICE
guidance
had
n
e ca
ple
eth
ans ltenPackham.
g eow pr
inthe
o
aprru
brpfelee9aye
sim
al He An initial audit
issue(CG65)
m
in
s) has resulted
ivsrla
ditused aant raisp
icalinDr
the vis
Hhsar
letpu’s
y reede yMAed
. shown shortfalls
dbeitsan
2s0eeco
raEtio
ydth
80nd a
-is
ltctsep
ist
nas. mT
y py (ityaalisaV
pee
era
n
paiele
tie nsr’s
elloM
tie nh a
win thsaud
e S sio hat olis ealth end ncrs th oim
ots’s
ess this that
.e Clin
sev
nic
ic
r stereLoim
g it the caseiatrnote
f un edubnT
de ed
icngfeth
itmin
ad
m
tiogd om
naisitb.is tiseoeaxntiei
pamee
en
rrhyan
liw
a il i p yHheaealtNdoesnetido otid eA
reupueg ieavcin
ment in
st
To addr Patient
us
ofso be
the
a new
(Inditherm
Warming
- seetice
NICE MTG7).
gn acted byatrialling
fort
rovesystem
vio
g Arrpre
Th ofes ts t mb
Thnis5 ndaurdseofothey Jw
Cinoteam
oym eota
ro W
nge in prac
o
ed ntoimp
cha
ofin
f H the Oiste teon
rt ilsste
readethaedi
emdlt
su
hgprsos ache
r n her viapbecandrapeT
ifica
ayeysel.tTo2hof
pbts.
easeeW
an has be
v ancar
srsbttroLn-rece
uevrg
criskttaoix
m
of
sign
re
a ove
T
rk
pl
r
P
o
o
a
lts
s
a
d
n
e
7e
r
s
e
o
n
th
l
in
%
a
r
n
p
p
n
resu
r
ed
c
(
in
p
y
sy
e
M
e
v
m
tio
e
h
t
in
por
t
a
g
p
The
y
s
w
o
’s
.
g
t
a standards,
r
,
th
0
d
h
ssthe
lsBu are
ac in compliance
ot ntal
re los
tuhrtieT 1L
tice
p tie bo
n showed
s am
nassm su
. Fo
sedeem
enAnouaudit
bs lumapsrbee c sfto9llo waelp
l prac
ale
5au
otrial
etwenta
llcic
s of
with
both
an improvement
withdsuce
thedNICE
ein
t acroof
mlle
loed
has prod
ect
sllkcin tomN
en ol b adm gIenrs dio isssuae s ardtheto t iatIin
ti
N
in
C
ce
U
o
d
artm
c
S
asp
e
c
a
w
fu
ow
f
Te
e
d
dep
e
e
ian
d
i
W
F
it
e
e
d
ease
A
a
h
ent
B
n
h
d
y
a
N
it
pl
sh
o
k
o
v
a
incr
e
d
e
m
o
ar
em
re
il
r
d
n
t oeu ta t ls
th audeitcashowed an
C
t pe Au
v c70 uld ow
p rom art t to m na Ra ET, ti y w
a roemanagit te
C e dCheaod
hditng
ioally ad
sho
Com
esr.agehow
tial
len xicitedgaan sie
tand
dent
Aud Tori
sdse
stand
icraaltion very
stan
mvpre
u.ermg lat)e.d
is
e
e
e
d
g
sub
e
d
in
t
all
ly
y
lin
W
a
s
r
t
r
,
w
for
significant
cost
savings.
The
new
equipment
will
now
be
introduced
and
the
potential
ss
o
la
re
a
iv
a
ll
v
c
C
a
d
n
b
curr
b
lu
a
r
).
us
h
au
nit
ro
s
w
p
o
e
h
a
T
.
a
e
o
e
R
the
k
Tr heshowe
nminist
mro uA
sic incoenc aria 869en g a- t mo
Cd rt sh
too atin ancd vnKedav sdhiv
w ce
sh akin
th De me it Te d M y. IM
ver nic e
V
to
od ac
owthe
ten in adh
portan thehad
n eese wditithreati
gorove
th
eren
as
ment in
thisTth
im
silliveTrust,
r
olup (stCipE re.
brefield 0m9e,nsthor ew
e
their ad
ou t csotUea hteitan
po of re
lls, rneg tro th
imp
40%aaudits
nthe
hinw
d are
lts c ons
e
d
is w
re
snwg tttohraedteney inv (#4evid listwice anrere ianowtof
20n’s– in
any
are
monitored and addressed.
icproblems
ues to. be
lvia
h9eto
hhnt
sU auplic
thatacross
0at de fof ed ap
)ldensure
r nadvin
InteXIZ
T ) re with
Th asu L Au ts Wa surv or fa gtaivfoi eleicng. ur cval im ave e ca g
g nalso9elin
co
ild repeated
for oeac
nw
resuorb
eitda MV
ayBcom
him ) patient safety and
e EML
KWU
etnatset%hedo. festevr.ide t hreeare theemethdeir (3 dC
e
AN
in 2
eICth
5 8afes
r) pr
ess_P
komatmaehum
lishe
roevin
tap tremo e lo H h -fre
dccM[
seAcan
ov
Tre e
of ch pub
dc
n
in led
CdBitUguid
e0im
ternoas com
r Ibs ra
d5923
(#
(#
s
p
t
n
VKQ
r
o
3
C
s
pare
D
me UH por e ST ses f e da eh
ft
n
is
w
n
p
s
v
KQM
e
h
t
(P
a
ea
h
y
o
e
9
e
s
9
a
.
ic
n
o
a
t
LMÅ
n
ar
t
Th
l
im
le
r
s
e
s
r
E
d
n
,
t
lo
e
n f tim
r pmecCo de9lo
lle
is e leng bita
ar meter,
r
at 5 g set
ss e u r
of care
ro p
by
D m
h
ol.mondeitori
e
p
om troacre
h
of
limng para
ec dow
incrid
U Lead1stan
exc
dit
t
v to L s p isttico hKa is ra urg
dsta
it.e thequality
nthk (#ndainrds
Th d su te t st nu ate t ing nhCe t easu the har imp rou s to
gibilitoyutc an
orivehr, othe
aud
thAudtit aw d by CsBof
ro
esdte
eocf te
ak au taertroe f treaads 2, agdne t auwdoit stsatat ffh twhteh Ut erfotore s eodfiaPneriwit
e sh we lie follow le
to be e across (#6061).
ise ome vedthe
ibinLpFgeo ic
st-p e oenxepwith
er es
en anoutc
an mple ciali alid n be atiot to m and nce s are ing g g, aim
w
bre Thegehheseresw
tthe
bd huedmit ). Hilodw
ic
ll t g it o
rens del
tht tn
S au
andcr0in
elin s. w bettopr
pro
%doisitt 1inand
mitorg
ndi
nwt 00u
in
t
pract
TAhe ursnincedws grspinitaolr re
and
t guidine
-a
ys h gui
co spe ion v atio nform ned time perie sult teer rsin
o toc l ov
TI,e event
eFwan
nw
itadhtio
X%
tha y inter AUTh
chreaasa[tat.arte1-a
ssels an e
good nt teams
r hoed ),rA
oJUT3id
a.nd sli3tisdain cpatie
pr
e T s Nu
ria ain
re n pro
e nt orm e I
x
t
e
n
e
a
e
h
r
a
v
a
e
r
it
C
ig
ar
d
n
e
h
b
it
d
v
E
h
y
n
y
e
s
.
re
s
e
sh
s
w
a
d
a
oled t
a
h atle
t
T ve inf
e
w
ce V il.schreo only
L’ e S of t.
the process of
ar
onwt ur allca e(6llilvus
dre
ld
ferr
ferg
de ov
rd anTdrut roem
d safe ding
ped atedwaypto
a eetinng diff er. remain,
will
The team are in
itc
spte enaastiotynoft stadycetatrotrdanuscin it - chil ated, re 5re9Td7Fu7E).Butra
ld
pre the cial c was ms” shou at UH t. Th ctor arge
t
nis
wa the erefo
th t
mtioimptorove
consultant who
ef
(# V aofda nicatae develo nts tre etevC
elo
U, stri
1 alitien er e in
t
ud estireg
Bnu
e
e
h
p v n ar
nt
forting ge men
sm
appointing a new time supporting
to d So ool “har nts
ca
upoaf rthaus nywo eit1s st a , inre
n is
d e darea
v fo trtheeateTdTGPD Tphaert ntCs litre
iea dedi
Som
s t targ t Dir this
t
tie ithin .edaus d patie ts reg rust. ision s v nin
q
io
ra
d
r
t
a
id
t
b
t
a
thei
ie
an
u
oing
w
e
ie
of
d
n
e
a
c
th
p
le
d
th
d
e
in
d
f
ong
r
f
t
in ine
p t] w lthit w of en e T
: es
pe
a
cearlyrtinththe
iv ed aremoef isorbe nd a aud amsinaes th lyoarnfo SPDF d yasMe
ris dr
e ospend som
ST ion f pa
er depart
and
PsoAf ohsetas
pradtsdic
velo
icul
t
ho hind istan ving
e
ice
ad
m
g
t
D
in
a
serv
ivin
s
C
s
:
To
m
e
%
:
F
tor
NIV
e
h
rece
o
e
t
e
d
te
e
)
s
n
x
u
e
ra
t
w
6
t
ent
pira
w
t ’s te raeas
). t of the pati a prog
of Acute and Hom
m
at
all va giash au ene vem rinen
way
ppmen
Th uct % o ove be Ass chie
Q uwct anda cath re
s 2nitthof
esuUK
u o
toththis oarwouedRT2C stethreeasperopinriadica Res
th
n en
2C
osing the
man
ngdc d (first in
of ent awarenessthe
reuarrepa
 teotic
ro hild
ted
h e the rokf apaillity
re age
aen
ith Acf thoerpm
itte ntat
y.e wS
St algthBT
rele.georFall war pC
caud
ndes:A.ion
red t 95 rt ab htly rum, in a
hheca
tiofonpati
te
fopo
edllin
es ine is a business plan prop
ion
ie cef annat
(RT
h iono
a ya. nd DtTh
whete
nta
c admit years) s otm
wreem
stdoc
isedut uidelinther
y e g a t im lls w utdhite oin
r ichsraabo
ere
termume
itNIV,
qmun
ortdec
lem
lPe on
icloh eeaVen
in
thud
nwditanyim
ll re tion o tori
G
tha cha h slig eld ions
tila
ure
r
re ave
log Th
itdopl tion
tio
r dw asrit
rCoatti
eaeio
fa -Ay n sure
dpnsh
h
t in caopte
n 3 ith ved freducotoN
hioal
.
bsiv
ment
re
and
shotsurelts-a ha
aticre
cit F m
ng
e
M is
tonc nva
a y . ueualtu enttaof
on wisionHL/SaBTO nce withestablish
thmon
itori
frsu
r im
Nrtout
TI.apÅMT
ndO
No
litonAAUnsn
sa inadi
Ca rk h UwH.rLadiois raisinsuppo ce of pRteed bodbeperescaHreospoitbael e(>aim
wpro nRg bloetepdleut
ion-I
L
iceadrco,twud
a
d
ca
fe
a
re
n
ip
f
t
Th houg nor div
u
Q
c
U
li
p
ll
u
n
s
N
di
o
TMV
es
tio
d
u
lia
h
it
fr
IP
n
s
c
e
is
t
l
M
a
pr
ta
o
e
ia
I\/
m
C
a
.
au
p d(\P
p
a pl
lo
h
n e ac
e
ona
d
d
ri rg ctmM
ic
d encove
care
l,
e du
sQ
ce
re re
of a regi
deyoDdTplethe atitio.in
[PW
hip
auem
to iden ado bnowildnre
n in n of
esca
pract rove com as also par
ulo
gtu
nen’s eaamls htaavre mtheeasu yt, aesppeaA
imegpro
alt Elea t the
fr
oaTm
lhe _[
e t wo th: wew s t
fotriolatio
ptorosta
d
ion
y f(NI
is dtnhtre
aGr oawlseodits
ynan
hen aV)
raisudrl
p
v sis andnd gentl de hre Jbin
Thin
g im
tbhest to tim
se
rovis
o2Cy).ms
vedeel
ty anning Unit
to th
of
cialiisstwNIV
tede
im 2C ituhrce itie
orndtMhis sll
pim
R1po
inc ially s also ChPla thehate
h in
tennts uce blish
is ng
l as
eterfor
tio
cdileondtper
by ppor
of a spe
nrtkle
athe
r
w re
emen
qinuL t aosfotlloca
as it u
es. Th ent in safe Wea y in
prcoaof
aieom
SaettacQtPwe
thlast iffi
ernista
it is ’sm
desta52o)rdof
t
bseesed
r.yoreneThe
W
itre
newfed
g T RT r wso ior e
to
llesh
enince
peartecid
dsam
asrow
20 effg,
Trus
Init is ha ary inthautdits uystoauds aroo reNVfru\rQesÅM d0o).u m
them
F im
su
y tti
uideelin
heen
rDiats
and
n6in
t currentl
com
2 nerlyese
nsooare
iae ltatiopar
r ma p elpsaretieo(#w
edaute
eoven
en
thin
arpa
in gplac
aeuca
wh
eewhLaevic(re
thrtein
ll l: efantr mQnLdM (#5rr6gie0 otytoare havreinin
sin ts for lose ity pr of th ing s
isNof
prove m
ed Th
h ess al pa revcio
asmt thth%
roobved
obgdy uco
t NIV
is firm
onen
c
d
m
a
th
h
n
th
t
im
st
rm
p
lo
a
war
iu
o
a
p
a
w
h
ing
ll
Is
ion
b
Be
r
o
sc
t
fo
d
u
in
als
a
d
if
f
arat
m
n
nurs
)
t
r
L
d
T
ra
h
t
n
its
t
d co
c
c
i
na9t 0alo adkite poIs. tidon
in put
o aed dintta
ip tur
prep
l
k
a e
at on
cu
8 e,iowit
vetherwar
lo ssuere
m I ilr da rereelcliheebnt igh te fhicshtrid
le
n
hican
alnas
er
doim
ringcati
their
riti
aurentsw
ne itionskedeple
4spic
2o)on
lood vity. audit which went into a Divisional round.
is trespecialty
≥ ia tlo
CAfU Caforward
edu
fo fob. winning
thr e20oof12
reUTen
e rv
nat
5in62istratEach
anof al
17tim
Re e aud even d qua emb worthis h of th
auoiate
Q\e[mrPecthein
dswa t t id mlity ce ra (wCnlout
ie(Rw3of m
d lop re
#re
ta Thfaeptaataie
acti
roLvld
)ion
and will
(m
ds encdeefiotsf o
ice oNoing
d fois
set pin
r gatllCyaAsrueptd
ctong
ar
s)P (Anad
tsn. the Divisional
) wg,
ein
arerdvan
swypl
dl ahiovnaliod ple
Asdcuvlo
raan
oe of udit wffiatthoepoqrauttaelid
rdar:n
staff
pby
Iinp]om
e KMim
io
pselected
efo powit
were
management
teams.
am
t istroatfllen
onooeW
bnce
ro
Th ked l an a m team 2C, ent 2C
be
an Aw
afidcrm
haor
r plia
andcidbneannwinners
tu
e tarhyeplapdruofocprinm
a r oeirci p an glolitgTe
Uc;ovisDivisional
llGercom
rtly
ge with the
u
w
a
r
e
n
t
d
y
s
d
t
c
sho
t
d
ic
o
e
V
d
B
in
on
m
t
cha
g.
e
n
f
e
sk
s
s
d
n
n
ro
an
e
t
M
in
e
e
lt
M
m
ri
in
a
s
(
maj
li
s
A
a
aba on
w t icse mit rds
ag Te ritet form
p C esrin
focu The
or
adRosestu
io l setIn
cbinta
m
nhoeit
lin nic ith dit RT opm e RT
naare
^ITua ciTdhe es using asstsh com onua
get m
rd ndaeware
t hsta
ote
arse, aemsdencaiofo
th
’ )itEach
m
Unit remains
Divisional winner
then
presented.
chgaaftrd
submitted to
athata
n of the
Tarterswas
al 8ZM qghaifnety bs.eJBTihnhgelilpnegtegrre-s ns Nemreicdro rgonn
r 2 usiudoitn t(iisn w eut)m. ber
nstvic
ehudaltdtioio
ibnatst4ad, f)t.he nof eing
cli ar. W l Au with vel th
ve otte
e at% operatio
nts oin
eiegw
rdicm
ncy rates
i S rStPsricN lyn, adth ro tio
n
nic re
d f1
1o rov
n
e
iebvodacie
N
the Trust
Ainheow
15
t).
ypatieY1tr’sanicsf
enreacnharee pasn(aset#ie
intine ncshaa
eIe thtac o p fec
nimp
al Aaterepio-osnredleisaafl
t. ns havrreensttapnradact (righ
ttib
high bed occupa
6
Cli ssu a h etm
ye nica me e d ithi
the
it
0
W
t
T
o
u
io
n
n
D
ll
3
t
il
F
es
t
pt
e
a
d
lo
45)
re
/
u
a
t
n
brd (#56
Mrtu it n ta ecstib
i
i
e : s catUhIP unoend erft in
0 prom at its
u stllare
h
as.
t e toef e fa
foA th
acn pdla
f cu dit y the
Boa
3ises
linhfo2arm
sia
%
vaelprc rAcute
in
Cl rt-t d th ta w
it oDivision
g
cfraocudisctioen easamo
a y e Cm
le
h t Pr gyall
O etqma orrndaoc ks
which com0prom
n EE
rinents
tieoau
wocliTnnruic mtiopL
f thAeuwed b
%
C30apati
acm
aondDe nddpduleram inhcipr pfron n(u. su CTte
t
a ase3finnd
hMZw
iate
wit hlyolod F
halin
GYB ubosr ytio
ant
ac
pa siste da e.
5d% ofollo
sfer of10appropr24/
ction
l Pe vThe
tran
croa Brgforamc eduamim fdul1t7o4e renstaetio
te of: was
ed onatth0) an EJUP rasnsp iondaurcin io]n. p nific
rs uTcFIisdSrtitBa. te adutdthitAsbbaiaas
err9ieaken
theduir
the
Cardiology
Team
for
ssm1ent
80% redu
urawinner
as ality mm ister mP
in
nodcaerrt Acute Division
na
e inwim ealpn .thme ribThOeATUaJE
95%Unit from
,t u
byrtr lleTcIts n sig with
91% asse11/2
BV
13
ds to an plication rate
Acc iction
to the
mleagfadrceitypae iclerote
wdsaswinuas yshon s
givP m
ie .e h atrpele e: sc allPC
on
r
sp
v
LRI.
rre
e
d
a
w
qu ogra reg the t (#6 d"iSt.F cptoiortn pthede in[CcAoU
the
p
e
as cay resultatofGlen
r gpyr vEeBr PDhof e aou cotm
re
imiopsie
field52tand
lic com ment for
% This2/co
30
here hrtyb) dceitsim
5a%long-standing
ritas.Mr Limprovements
ho lianc
uitltof , , pmade
ly
e
is
i
u
bo

t
t
ia
s
s
7
s
p
r
t
g
t
n
o
o
ll
l
unit
n
lo
t
em
.
x
a
y
d
e
d
a
n
y
2
F
re
di
a
s
u
ce:
n
n
bo
s
p re
o
d rom haic p
in
lectio audit
m
unco bheW ia rahbeeuderAssour
P a
aeud by enational
e au
gn
e bty
th%
n‘At ud liasbe‘MINAP’
lin treat appears
r
oc s owa
in throm
ea au nt
mig
) ol com 365)
pliae dT JF ob e s tImag
t)heisehilip
oMl ali (#6011).
oglobu d.
d
ted since 50do
eotaehthca
ceiafli3re-p
cuedllit arerere
t. s.com
Cu dit T PU) sme ed t fboellen thoch acklsP
en
an rthecr ontrim
sing 77% postGoymTnhe ecteBDIicrliainnacetetd7hit2eheal
immun observe
oshLfp
athy an t in
pe
#6
to
pl
of %
e team
lt60op7ervpoertrdiceexa ie
s sa futiSmith
USuem
dw
red a simpwleith neuropifica
had used
btydhow
G
ontionsexplained
sidethe
Au cer ( sses devis has xan thoPbia ent ards (
rathe
and c collBWFntimmoprdrnm
ntemen
a nre
hiorpcssaeMartin
gvie
g c Ac
saauy t reHsu#sueheOhrbeoswte
s ,
is s,ofte
e CinBclu
50 n con
UP
h itnt
A sign prov
ntdge
deAlth
infe
n
m
a oug
gentbfo
s in20th11
nin
patie
wle
td s rin
trices w atw8eFllIahrneoArgcorcuoalt-m
FO s
uAeed baastnakLGviaoTfh
Ul sk A was ” and
rdadnefid
ed kno
patie
o
a real im
rm
rdpin
1]:3and
t
(Xa icrroove stand
refin
te
a
nt
audit
to
challenge
change
practice.
ti
[ED
h
a
re,
0
n
N
en
or
h
s
a
t
rre
edu
u
ent
ction in the
ru
u
2
U
es
a
d
u
g
t
t
d
i
proc
w
e
cu
rtm
redu
c
e
p
F
pr
li
ue ohms, inddricm enc
b
c
pa
ig
c o ’
aydules in invassive
R
elafucy
to reto
ltiinDe
13).
tannn t. thscM
isreceiving 35 are required
mimp tional tGo5SFB s Aure O
PU ion 1
51
derg
t Em
s
h
hat idaen is n ersaudith aond esenht obalo
ru
(#
i
t
fi
g
he
t
y
e
t
y:
t
re
t
s
e
e
ro
e
n
e
nce
g
t
h
ly
reiffi
ca
os
s ou
c and experie
stha
n uen
ig bro
h
rate of
eskill
ptG
tient
bro itehraco pwro
odp
m
fw
n e17 us
prm
Th bit
Nin
sellighting gth
eu
s’ int
and
ernative, consistencypa
An udniat: VkEeJUnP occu howed naTl ghuerf lisssihoned andblohN
nav
eone
ic Inieetr
uhingh
aiph
aeyreoeno
st.uArell loan
drav
oringrealtaccuracy
w
c
s
palpation was
(wt th diewtrheofrePer
“Am
otabi
T bisim
eanera
s
explensu
tBa
avt m
io
it d
o co d ormo
de
dbin
crist
nts.
se
rudm
urbu
e san
tric
m
itndh A
one
re
xtnatoau b agcyclo
ists
e patie
lin
medUitatio
us t ofanthe
Planned
Division
ml p
wi e A 3eFr rhyylo mia nat daeyssoem
efoautinen
y.
observed
e
sea ssrdtieoitr is ceanunloog
ia
d Obste elogsysaerw
for thaes
age nul
led efitsro
aur thpa
inm
nt ienc
).nabced
st- renc s utn d eSstsaapctuesrat’es neceDtHo of 14 lroCvin
ent for th ofbe
mso.bio mancan
s bpre
3pro
iveens nificeffic
hsioieteiclin eldcaepu
sygi
hasg
last year
ic
m
o
ure
s
in
1
fo
t
area
Im
ss
n
u
T
c
n
6
this
ts
m
se
e
e
:
r
t
d
y
5
to
e
e
(down from
n
as
n
ap gy). nauisotpib id nm
te Division
s
th
e mo
T he
n went
nti sPlanned
or
(# has roohpa
tsauc eekeitiniclr rs
sign, award
aud
berioin
com
tio
ctcycl
.es evgen
ofirst
Orthopaedics
for
eabThe
t i nec ebaTr ptlitah nugm sloimclo
diay
faitto
re
)
A
s
f
s
r
k
enc
i
b
r
ad
y
e
u
lp
rall
ri
n
d
ris
8
erg
s
8
o
t
eu
m
ve
In
ove
r
a
ft
T
it
e
a
e
Em
a
G
n
f
d
s
the
d
a
m
it
s
a
s
g
eeraual
p othe
m ead
d me
an in
rioust’ uon
41% to 24%).
ner#5h38 ri
dt in2rathe
defi
mof
ow encce
rsin
wscits
atper
l 1m2 a re-audit
ted
Ad s au the f th caoin mrinibimi icsthhUae rino 200l mtahnseepolfaybiarrpeltem
auodud
o
h
for
vie
ligh
ph
0
v
s
e
r
re
b
high
in
u
io
t
r
g
e
fo
n
R
(
the
es
nt
o
a
their
of
‘Antibiotic
Prophylaxis
in
Fractured
Neck
ff
t
r
t
pe
of
r
).
in
pr
l hsem Th netsnee bf re
w ance
e (EDf s),ta
Ttinatgy isatsicle w
e e o ag for sc iont d %. na haintio
dinicgroe peen
facsilit
i
orm
ne
7cat patie
ait
ltsatin
All other criteria
perf
in
3
d
and
y
d
n
u
h
o
h
to
nt
7
e
.
o
th
te
w
f
t
0
ap
i
me
e
c
is
t
r
niqu
e
5
e
ie
ts
d
)
h
s
uc
c
er
v
art
it
i
g
s
e
ib
n
t
e
tech
o Dep
T ov
thie eta.nIts xtd r d hlig
nd
threin
m
of th notntia
shte
co
n nc l pr ants, a vsr6in R se wdrueatasim
w
ti2o1en
it (#. Theitiaudit
in reatm
ent
n showed
pall aas
of
Femur
Patients’
only
anrventions to
ioOnseuss
inte
a
3
l
io
d
lt
n
t
t
p
t
it
a
e
e
c
at
t
remained similar.
tre
ig
u
4
r
n
ificant
e
u
c
pote
d
h
r
n
s
t
l
a
n
and
r
a
e
re;
t
in
c
a
alim
o ed
p su m bia ion81%ito hgthhin erathmetoat a ianuemr traali
to
skitesttiga
eedr (#tion
procedu
o ri
12 prior for
ve respriov
onstrate that sign
em
t
red.
0
i
inv
v
side
c
n
n
c
2
t
t
d
(
s
e
con
li
t
s
r
e
x
ro
s
g
o
n
ess
h
ha
n
c
t
s
A
o
The results dem
e
a
h
wer
improvement
in
care,
but
also
the
importance
engaging
n
e imping dir
clinical
thes
a rfo icr da
o hoiguh btoett reusm
ndapr
arcect acc patients.
e ehave
improve
till itoprlia irnd le of a
udit
aim
can be made in
Leic vid
cate wthe
eM
 simply
indiuse
improvements
LÆ]QL
pe tim men ce m Anltd h uncche inasirtenr hicbomr aanndda part ocols
taThe
f. by pro to th
of
IV
of
(#5717)
colleagues
rather
than
changing
policy
f
da
tion
Z]O
bina
a
nt
OL
e
t
com
of
t
a
a
n
XTQV
rre
m
t
e
s
Cu on. gle case AV3003 n with
ce s as pro
practice, but
an com ma ces isher ite, ewn 90%
JTWWL[IU
usi
in icatio
uVe
f an the rs
ired to target
r
or transfon
ly one sin Acclic
e
compland
.
re rfor info of ad avuedb et o cthat mou lance
approaches is requ d. Inter
administration
embo chosen
over mor
my
u
a g
tifie
pe lso re nce h h tar ught t rveil ecto
therapyy
thrombo lowas
each deficit iden
13),
the
bulin
ic
entl
a
Women’s &imChildren’s
Division
sequ
su ephr
- Jan 20 sed
cation (IPE) has
Edu
tho
11
munog sub
l
ona
It a port s wh
20
essi
n
Prof
(Ja
n
d in is addres
2 yearsevaluate
to
itate change by
im licie
than
believe
potential to facil
The Women’s and
Children’s
Division
winner
was an
am
ion
ivat
te
d.
e
mot
nd
,
te
po
th
seco
tion
en
the
bora
em
which
enhancing colla
ns implSusceptibility
audit of ‘Access to
Familialtio
Cancer
Clinics’ e
. (#5571)
by the ac audit cycl her
and consistency
furtrecent publicity for
re athe
a very newsworthy subject whe
given
e
patients werher
100discovering
Angelina Jolie’s decision after
familial
cancer risk (#5821)

ti
Na

s
its se
ud cces
A
led su
te- iated
a
or c
rp so
Co d as
an

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

209

6

70

Appendix 3

Some like it Hot!
Anaesthetics team take the title for “Patient Warming” Audit.
This year’s winner of the clinical audit competition was the Anaesthetics team for their
re-audit of “Patient Warming and Perioperative Hypothermia” (#5922). The winning audit chosen by votes of a panel of audit lead clinicians – was presented by the project lead,
Dr Andrew Packham. An initial audit against the NICE guidance (CG65) had shown shortfalls
so the team acted by trialling a new system (Inditherm Patient Warming - see NICE MTG7).
An audit of the trial showed both an improvement in compliance with the NICE standards,
and the potential for significant cost savings. The new equipment will now be introduced
across the Trust, with repeated audits to ensure any problems are monitored and addressed.

Each specialty put forward their winning audit which went into a Divisional round.
Divisional winners were selected by the Divisional management teams.
Each Divisional winner was then presented.
Acute Division
The Acute Division winner was the Cardiology Team for
improvements made as a result of a long-standing
national ‘MINAP’ audit (#6011).
Martin Smith explained how the team had used the
audit to challenge and change practice.

Planned Division
The Planned Division award went to Orthopaedics for
their re-audit of ‘Antibiotic Prophylaxis in Fractured Neck
of Femur Patients’. The audit showed not only an
improvement in care, but also the importance engaging
colleagues rather than simply changing policy (#5717)

Women’s & Children’s Division
The Women’s and Children’s Division winner was an
audit of ‘Access to Familial Cancer Susceptibility Clinics’ a very newsworthy subject given the recent publicity for
Angelina Jolie’s decision after discovering her familial
cancer risk (#5821)

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

210

71

6

Appendix 3

Clinical Audit Successes within the

Acute Care Division

Dermatology:
A previous audit in several
aspects of ciclosporin
monitoring and management
of complications had showed
LMÅKQMVKQM[_PMVKWUXIZML
with the standards set by
guidelines.

Respiratory Medicine:
The national BTS audit of
Non-Invasive Ventilation
(NIV)[PW_[\PI\/TMVÅMTL
performs well in its provision
of NIV when compared to the
national picture,
re, with
compliance with
h
standards
improving in
most areas.

Image source:
healthcare-philips.com

Emergency Department [ED]:
Peripheral intravenous
cannulation is one of the most
common procedures
performed in the Emergency
Department (ED), facilitating
investigation and treatment
by providing direct access for
JTWWL[IUXTQVOLZ]OIVLÆ]QL
administration or transfusion.

The implementation of a simple
measure (using a ciclosporin sticker in
the case notes) has resulted in a very
significant improvement in
departmental practice. The results of
the current audit showed an increase
of 20 – 40% in adherence to the
published guidelines for each
monitoring parameter, as compared
with the outcomes of the 1st audit.

Although results for some parameters
are still below the National Standards
(100%), our audit shows
that the simple
ce
change in practice
has produced a
very substantial
improvement in
patient safety and
quality of care
(#6061).

Some areas for improvement remain,
particularly in the ongoing
management of the patient receiving
NIV, documentation of patient
monitoring and decisions about
escalation of care.

The team are in the process of
appointing a new consultant who will
spend some of their time supporting
the Acute and Home NIV service and
there is a business plan proposing the
establishment
of a regional IP
Weaning Unit
currently in
preparation
and will
shortly be
submitted to
the Trust
Board (#5645)

The establishment of a specialist NIV
ward is firmly
fir
in place and the
educ
education of the ward nursing
staff is an ongoing activity.
Th major challenge with the
The
operation of the Unit remains
the high bed occupancy rates
which compromises prompt
transfer
tr
of appropriate patients
to the Unit from assessment
units at Glenfield and the LRI.
Although it is often considered a simple
invasive procedure, refined knowledge,
skill and experience are required to
ensure accuracy, consistency and
efficiency.
A first audit cycle of this area last year
highlighted deficits in the overall
technique and performance of the
procedure; potential interventions to
improve these were considered.
The use of the
AccuVein AV3003
03
was chosen and
subsequently
evaluated in
the second
audit cycle
where a further
100 patients weree

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

observed.
A significant
reduction in the
rate of repalpation was
observed
(down from
41% to 24%).
All other criteria
remained similar.r.
The results demonstrate that significant
impr
improvements
can be made in clinical
practice,
but a combination of
pr
ap
approaches
is required to target
each deficit identified. Inter
Professional Education (IPE) has the
potential to facilitate change by
en
enhancing
collaboration, motivation
and consistency. (#5571)
an

211

6

72

Appendix 3

Clinical Audit Successes within the

Acute Care Division

Pharmacy:
This year’s annual trust wide
audit of Leicester Medicine
Code showed mixed results.

Nutrition and Dietetics:
A MDT audit of Nutritional
care of elderly fractured NOF
inpatients showed poor
nutritional screening, care
planning, interventions and
monitoring.

The audit showed that there is
inadequate storage space in some
area
areas of the Trust.
Fridges particularly are poor with
Frid
many
ma found to be unlocked and
temperature
monitoring
te
in
inadequate.
To address this issue an in-depth
action
plan has been devised.
ac
Compliance
with the
Co
ad
administration standards
continues to be good across all
areas (#5923)

Prescribing continues to be good
against most standards.
With the electronic
prescribing and
administration
system being
rolled out across
the Trust it is hoped
that this will
improve the
legibility of
prescribing and
provide an audit
trail.
To address this a dedicated nutrition
carepathway was developed and
implemented (first in the UK).
A snapshot re-audit post
implementation has indicated shorter
length of stay and reduced pressure
sore incidence.
The audit was also the winner of Trust
Caring at its Best
Award for 2012 for
focus on what
matters most
(right).

Caring at its best
Neurology:
An audit of Intravenous
Immunoglobulin Use and
adverse events in patients
with peripheral neuropathy
highlighted the need for
improved risk assessments.

Actions implemented since the audit
in 2011 included a review of dosing
schedules in current patients,
highlighting those receiving 35g or
more and exploring alternative
regimens for these patients.
In addition, assessment for the
presence of other risk factors to be
conducted at patient reviews and
prior to initiation of therapy in new
patients.
Current data indicate we have had
only one single case of
thromboembolic complication with
immunoglobulin therapy over more
than 2 years (Jan 2011- Jan 2013),
which the team believe is addressed
by the actions implemented.

This corresponds to an 80% reduction
in thromboembolic complication rate
post-immunoglobulin treatment for
patients with neuropathy and appears
to represent a real improvement in
patient care (#5113).

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

212

73

6

Appendix 3

Clinical Audit Successes within the

Women’s & Children’s Division

Women’s:
The audit programme within
Women’s played a key part in
helping the Women’s Hospital
achieve CNST Level 2.

More than 40 audits (all
directly linked to providing
evidence for the assessment)
were undertaken and
completed by the team led
by Andrea Akkad and
Lorraine Matthews, and
supported by the Clinical
Audit Team. For details of
these audits see Women’s
CBU audit report.

The CBU also held their own Clinical
Audit awards afternoon which was
organised by CBU Lead - Dr Ibrahim.
The event proved to be an excellent
way to share good practice across the
CBU, meeting different teams and
celebrating together.

Neonatal Team:
The Neonatal team (pictured)
won the audience vote for
their BLEED audit (#6151).

The team’s aim is to improve
documentation of parental assent for
administration of blood components
and provision of parental information
regarding risks and benefits of
transfusion (in the form on an
information leaflet).
A baseline audit of current practice
was undertaken followed by the

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

implementation of a programme of
education which raised awareness of
best practice UHL/SaBTO Guidelines in
order to improve compliance with
these guidelines. This was also part of
the overall improvement in safety and
practice of blood component
administration.

213

6

74

Appendix 3

Clinical Audit Successes within the

Women’s & Children’s Division

Paediatric Cardiology:
An audit undertaken,
because of an apparent
increase in wound
breakdown following surgery
in 2009, showed an increased
incidence of wound
breakdown. Comprehensive
changes were implemented
and a re-audit was
performed.

The number of wound breakdown
cases showed a marked reduction
compared with the previous
retrospective audit, especially for the
serious deep surgical site infection
cases. The percentage of wound
problems during this audit is within
the limits published in the literature,
demonstrating the effectiveness of the
Wound Care package implemented
(#4869).

This year’s national results of the
National Congenital Heart Disease
Audit of surgery at the East Midland’s
Congenital Heart Centre showed that
UHL’s outcomes are in line with the
national standards and, for some
conditions, the results are above the
national rate (#5335)

East Midlands
Congenital Heart Centre

Children’s:
Re-Audit of the measurement of
blood pressure admitted to the
Children’s Hospital (>3 years) showed
that the team have improved from the
previous audit and measuring blood
pressure far more frequently, especially
in older children (#5600).

Obstetrics and Gynaecology:
There is now a well
established audit programme
in Obstetrics and
Gynaecology with bimonthly
departmental audit
presentation meetings.
An audit newsletter helps
disseminate
results of
audits to all
staff.

A re-audit of Perioribital and orbital
cellulitis in children showed that after
introducing a new guideline following
the 1st audit - children are now better
examined, investigated, referred
appropriately and treated (#5977).

The latest National Paediatric
Intensive Care Audit Network
(PICANET) report showed the
outcomes of children’s intensive care
in Leicester are improving and are well
within the expected limits (#5989)

The audit team have closed a number
of legacy audits and action plans have
been completed in over 95% of the
speciality audits.
The Obstetric audit ‘Audit of
indication for caesarean section,
prophylactic and infection control
measures’ was runnerup in the CBU
audit forum day on 17th May 2013
(#5613).
Reaudit of antimicrobial prescribing in
October 2012 after intensive
education of staff showed a significant
improvement in results in comparison
to the March 2012 audit (#5737c).

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

214

75

6

Appendix 3

Clinical Audit Successes within the

Planned Care Division

Vascular:
The National Carotid
Interventions Audit focuses on
surgical carotid endarterectomy
(CEA).

Musculoskeletal:
8ZM^ITMVKMI]LQ\[PILQLMV\QÅML
a high incidence of indwelling
catheters being used with
subsequent catheter-associated
urinary tract infections
[CAUTIs].

Urology:
Renal mass biopsies are
increasingly performed prior to
treatment with tyrosine kinase
inhibitors in metastatic renal
cancer and in localised renal
tumours as part of active
surveillance protocols and prior
to nephrectomy.

It is important for UHL to participate in
this audit, not least because we are the
second largest CEA centre in the UK
and carry out more CEAs than any
London hospital. We performed 32% of
all CEAs in the East Midlands and
performed a third more cases than the
second largest centre (Nottingham)
The results show that UHL performs
well, achieving a median delay from
symptom to surgery of 9 days against a
UK average of 15 days. This is despite
having to include the Burton-referred
CEAs as they invariably take longer to
get to Leicester.
The two statistics where we are at
variance with the UK is the median time
spent in hospital before surgery (3 days
vs 1 nationally), and the median length
of inpatient stay (6 vs 3 days). However,
this is because we transfer patients

directly from the TIA Clinic to the
Surgical Admissions Unit (which clearly
other centres don’t do). Whilst on the
Unit, we ensure patients are fit for
surgery and get their hypertension, etc,
sorted out; (ie we may be getting
penalised for our own superefficiency). Certainly, the rapid access
TIA clinic has contributed greatly to
getting patients treated quickly.
The 30-day death/stroke rate was 3/123
(2.4%) is pretty impressive when you
consider that most underwent
expedited surgery
following onset of
symptoms.
The full report
with detailed
results can be
accessed via this
link (#5930)

Reduction of these was therefore
targeted as a quality indicator for the
department.
Following implementation of a new
urinary catheterisation protocol
(which was trialled on the hip fracture
ward (R32) at the Leicester Royal
Infirmary) we looked at the effect this
had on reducing CAUTIs.
We reviewed case notes of 174 hip
fracture patients admitted before
implementation of the new protocol
and 174 hip fracture patients after its
implementation.
The overall CAUTI rate was 32% pre-

protocol and
reduced to 30% post-protocol.
The audit showed that none of the
patients treated only by intermittent
catheterisation developed a CAUTI,
whereas 26% of patients treated with
an indwelling catheter did develop a
CAUTI.
The audit results therefore support the
new protocol, and that intermittent
catheterisation is the safer option when
treating urinary retention in hip fracture
patients and helps reduce the
incidence of CAUTIs (#6252)

An audit of these biopsies was carried
out at LGH supervised by Mr Leyshon
Griffiths, and showed excellent results
which confirm the biopsies are reliable,
accurate and useful in defining further
management. All of the standards
agreed for the audit were met.
The audit has enabled us to counsel
patients about the benefits and
limitations of renal mass biopsy in
Leicester (#4321)

Audit standard Target
No.
%
Result of pts

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

Accurate
prediction of:
Malignancy

95%

100%

30/30

Subtype

75%

91%

24/30

Fuhrman grade

50%

52%

11/21

Necrosis

50%

77%

22/30

215

6

76

Appendix 3

Clinical Audit Successes within the

Planned Care Division

Oncology:
Intensity Modulated
Radiotherapy (IMRT) Audit.
IMRT is a specialised way of
giving radiotherapy and
shaping the radiation dose to
the tumour volume.

It allows sparing of normal healthy
tissue and treatment of at-risk nodal
areas to a prophylactic dose, whilst the
visible tumour receives a higher dose.
Accurate treatment set up and
delivery is essential to avoid missing
tumour and nodes, or over treating
healthy tissue
This practice was audited and the
standard used was that 95% of the
volume of the at risk nodal groups
should be covered by the radiation
field in at least 90% of patients.
Treatment toxicity was prospectively
recorded for eating and skin reactions.

source: www.radiology.georgiahealth.edu

The audit looked at coverage achieved
at the start of treatment and showed
that 100% of treatments at the neck
nodal levels 1 and 2, and 99% of

treatments at neck nodal level 3
achieved 95% coverage as required by
the standard. At the end of treatment
100% coverage was achieved.
There was substantial treatmentrelated toxicity.
Weight loss during treatment causes
peripheral structures of the neck to
shrink into the planned high dose
treatment area.
We have implemented assessments by
Dietitians to advise on early feeding to
help minimise weight loss and are also
improving immobilisation of the
patient during radiation planning and
treatment. Better immobilisation will
enable smaller treatment volumes and
less toxicity (#6313)

Corporate-led Audits
and associated successes
Pathology:
t "SFBVEJUPGYBOUIPDISPNJB
collection, transport and handling
following the introduction of
xanthochromia collection packs
(XanthoPacks) has shown significant
improvement to compliance with
national standards (#6365)
t 3FBVEJUPG5SFBUNFOUPG
Staphylococcus Aureus
bacteraemia showed that
compliance to national guidance
for minimum of 14 days of
antibiotics has improved
(81% vs 60% in 2008).
Although the duration of antibiotics
is much better than the previous
audit, we are still not achieving our
target of 90% compliance rate. It is
thought that the standard extra text

at the bottom of the blood culture
report might have improved the
compliance rate from the last audit.
A microbiology review on the wards
following the bacteraemia to advise
clinicians about the appropriate
duration of antibiotics, as well as
giving a code for the antibiotics for
the minimum duration of 14 d,
might be helpful to increase
compliance rate.

t QSPDFTTGPDVTFEBVEJUTXFSF
conducted as part of accreditation
to CPA Standards in Clinical
Microbiology.
Compliance with current CPA
Standards is monitored and most
audits showed an
improvement
(#5628)

t 8FIBWFBDIJFWFEBDPOTJEFSBCMZ
higher compliance rate of repeat
blood cultures at 72 hours.
This might be as a result of the extra
text at the bottom of the report.
This can be reiterated during the
microbiology review on the wards
(#5388).

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

216

77

6

Appendix 3

Corporate-led Audits
and associated successes
National NHS Safety Thermometer [ST]:
The ST was developed by the NHS for the NHS and is a tool that allows healthcare
professionals to measure a snapshot (or prevalence) of harm and the proportion of
patients that are ‘harm free’ in relation to 1) Grade 2, 3 and 4 pressure ulcers, 2) Venous
thrombo-embolism (VTE), 3) Catheter Associated Urinary Infections (CAUTI), & 4) Falls.

Patients (%)

The Department of Health (DH) recommended that all healthcare providers begin to use the NHS Safety Thermometer
measurement tool by the end of 2012/13. ST “harms” data is collected for all inpatients on a single day once a month.
The UHL Audit Team administers the paper-based ST survey
Percentage of patients harm free:
and supports Ward Managers (or nominated deputy) to
100
complete the ST survey.
The specialist nurses for falls, VTE, tissue viability and infection
95
prevention validate the data for every ward and patient prior
90
to the information being sent electronically to the Health
and Social care Information Centre.
85
The ST tool was designed to measure local improvement and
80
reduction in “harms” over time and the DH have stipulated
that 95% of patients should experience harm-free care.
75
The chart above shows that UHL’s results are improving
70
although slightly behind target. The ST steering group, led
Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb
by Eleanor Meldrum, Assistant Director of Nursing, aims to
2012
2013
support the divisions in achieving this target.

Mar

Releasing Time to Care (RT2C):
The audits for RT2C work have
linked even closer with the UHL
clinical and quality priorities this
year. With a member of the
Clinical Audit team working
part-time with RT2C, this has
assisted the development of the
quality data within the RT2C
programme.
Currently registered with the Clinical
Audit Team is the monthly Pressure
Ulcer (PU) audit (#6130) and Falls

Risk Assessment audit.
The PU was devised to support
“Ambition 1” and has been adopted by

all in patient ward areas [where
relevant] within the Trust.
The Falls audit was devised to assist in
raising awareness of patient safety and
to support improvements regarding the
incidence of falls within the Trust.
Initially adopted by the Acute Division
this has also now been incorporated as
necessary in Planned care.
Additional audits have also been
developed locally to assist areas with
quality improvements around the
Safety Thermometer and Nursing
metrics. These audits are carried out
monthly, helping staff to identify areas
in order to progress their quality

Trust-wide Antimicrobial Policy
Adherence Audit:
This audit is undertaken to
provide the necessary
assurance of the Trust’s
performance against the DH
antimicrobial prescribing
recommendations, and the local Commissioners’
performance monitoring.
It also reinforces and highlights within the Trust the
importance of adherence to the antimicrobial guidelines and
policies which have been instrumental in the Trust’s success

University Hospital of Leicester Trust - Quality Account 2013 / 2014

standards. Further area-specific RT2C
audits which CBUs may wish to
concentrate on, have also been
developed.
All audits provide evidence to assist
nursing staff to set realistic goals
towards growth that is then remeasured in order to raise their own
quality of care.
For further details
ails
around any of
the RT2C audits
or work streams
ams
please email
Judy Queally.

in reducing its Clostridium Difficile infection rate.
An internal standard of ≥90% has been agreed, which the
Trust achieved on the last audit (Nov 2012). The audit and
completed actions are formally reported at QPMG (Quality
Performance Management Group) and the audit is also
reviewed and discussed at the AWP (Antimicrobial Working
Party).
The audits are the responsibility of each CBU; data is
collected by prescribers (usually FY1’s or 2’s) and validated by
an Antimicrobial Pharmacist. The Clinical Audit Team leads
and co-ordinates the audit and the final report is written and
presented by the Lead Antimicrobial Pharmacist.
(webpage link via #6073)

217

If you would like this information in another language or format,
please contact the service equality manager on 0116 250 2959

218

This page is intentionally left blank

219

Agenda Item 18

‘12 hours in A&E’
Patients’ Experiences of
Accident and Emergency (A&E)
Executive Summary and Recommendations
1. Overview
Healthwatch Leicestershire spent 12-hours in the A&E Department at
Leicester Royal Infirmary (LRI) on Friday 27 June 2014 from 8.30am to
8.30pm.
2. Our aim
Our aim was to understand patients’ experiences in light of LRI
consistently failing to meet the national target of 95% patients seen
and discharged within 4 hours. In the week we visited, 93.6% of
patients were seen and discharged within 4 hours at LRI; 263 patients
were not seen and discharged within 4 hours.1
3. Who we spoke to
HWL listened to 88 patients across the adults and children’s A&E
Departments. Patients spoke positively about their A&E experience,
in particular:
• Patients had promptly seen a doctor or nurse at the point of triage
• Patients were provided with information that was clear and easy to
understand
• Vast majority of patients were seen and discharged within the 4 hour
target
• The one patient who was not seen and discharged within 4 hours
rated their experience as excellent.
4. Emerging findings
What has emerged from listening to patients’ experiences is:
• Nearly four out of ten patients we spoke to had attended A&E in the
last 12 months. These patients were more likely to seek help
elsewhere before attending A&E, suggesting they may be more aware
of alternative services available.
• 42% of patients we spoke to came straight to A&E without seeking
advice from other services. Reasons provided included long term
conditions or severity of injury.
1

NHS England (2014) ‘A&E weekly activity statistics, NHS and independent sector
organisations in England’, published 4 July 2014, available at:
http://www.england.nhs.uk/statistics/statistical-work-areas/ae-waiting-timesand-activity/weekly-ae-sitreps-2014-15/

220

•
•

•

Some patients tried to get a GP appointment before attending A&E
but were unsuccessful.
58% of patients had sought advice before coming to A&E and had
been advised to attend by: GP or health professional (37%), 999
emergency services (10%) NHS 111 (6%) or other (3%).
Nearly 7 out of 10 patients were able to name their GP Practice.

5. Recommendations
Based on our findings, HWL offer three key recommendations:
1. Adequate resourcing and better promotion of alternative care
pathways available to patients before accessing A&E. Whilst we found
over half of patients are using more suitable care pathways before
accessing A&E, more work needs to be done to promote alternative
pathways and reduce the unwanted burden on A&E for the four out of
ten patients who may have been better treated elsewhere.
2. More collaborative and integrated working between Urgent Care
Centre (UCC) and A&E, for example reallocating resources or redirecting patients at peak times. We found communication and
teamwork between UCC and A&E could be improved.
3. Better information and signage. We suggest better promotion of the
feedback and reporting systems available (which didn’t appear to be
used by patients, yet would provide valuable feedback for UHL to act
on) and better use of available wall space to promote the importance
‘choosing better’ and when to access GP, Pharmacy, NHS 111 and 999
emergency services.
We recommend reviewing the signage to UCC and Adults A&E
Department, as it was potentially confusing to first time visitors.

Healthwatch Leicestershire welcomes the opportunity to work with UHL
to help implement our recommendations.

8 July 2014

221

Agenda Item 19

CARE AND SUPPORT ACT CONSULTATION
INFORMATION FOR HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARDS
Overview
The draft regulations and guidance for the Care and Support Act were published on June 6th,
for consultation between June 6th and August 15th.
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/updating-our-care-and-support-system-draftregulations-and-guidance
This consultation is only for the elements that come into effect in 2015/16, (consultation on
the cap on care costs etc. which come into effect in 2016/17 will be planned at a later time).
There was a regional event in the East Midlands on June 9th, primarily for adult social care
audience. This was the first of several planned events by DH/ADASS/LGA to engage in the
regions. Presentation slides are available at this link http://www.adass.org.uk/east-midlandsregion/.
The regulations and guidance documents are quite lengthy but the chapter headings will
help you navigate to the sections you might wish to review in more depth. The guidance
broadly covers duties and guidance relating to themed areas such as:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Wellbeing
Prevention
Personalisation
Integration
Carers
Info, advice, advocacy
Assessment and eligibility (new national eligibility thresholds proposed/defined)
Transitions
Specific matters relating to Prisoners
Market development
Safeguarding
Continuity of care when people move between authority boundaries.

There are a series of consultation questions which can be used to structure feedback in
each chapter, general comments can also be submitted and are welcomed during the
consultation. Following consultation final documentation will be published in October.
Engaging with Health and Wellbeing Boards
Boards will wish to be aware of this consultation and how to respond, and will wish to ensure
NHS partners, other agencies and the public are aware of the consultation.
As a starting point HWB Board officers should contact their DASS to understand how the
local adult social care team are engaged with the consultation and the local approach being
taken to engagement to make sure there is coordination in terms of messaging with partners
and the public. Your DASS will also have information about the local implementation plan
and key milestones for this in your LA.

222

HWB Boards will wish to consider in particular the impact of the proposals on:
•

Services users and carers

•

Commissioning strategy for prevention

•

How the proposals relate to the local joint health and wellbeing strategy and the
better care fund plan

•

The potential impact on the service model(s) and costs of providing adult social care
support and any risks this presents. (this is subject to some national modelling work
across a number of LAs, a process which your DASS will already be engaged with)

Please consider this item for your next scheduled HWB board meeting/development session,
or if there are no scheduled meetings of the Board within the consultation period, discuss
with your DASS how to actively engage the Board in other ways, and support them with
briefing materials.
Additional Materials/Information
There are 11 fact sheets to support the consultation documents which can be accessed at
this link
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/care-act-2014-part-1-factsheets
An easy read version is available at this weblink
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/317822/Care_
Act_easyread.pdf
How to respond to the Consultation
Click here to Respond online
Or respond via Email:
careactconsultation@dh.gsi.gov.uk
Or write to:
Care and Support consultation team
Department of Health
Room 313B, Richmond House
79 Whitehall
London
SW1A 2NS

Briefing note by: Cheryl Davenport Cheryl.davenport@leics.gov.uk 0116 305 4212, June 10, 2014

